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Part I -- FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



 

Microvision, Inc. 
Consolidated Balance Sheet 

(In thousands, except per share data) 
(Unaudited)

                                                                                                                June 30,      December 31,
                                                                                                                  2005           2004
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
Assets                                                                                                                                    
Current Assets
   Cash and cash equivalents                                                                                 $       2,327  $       1,268
   Investment securities, available-for-sale                                                                            --             --
   Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $200 and $193                                                           1,108          5,227
   Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts                                       1,228            597
   Inventory                                                                                                         3,240          3,167
   Other current assets                                                                                              1,236          1,293
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
   Total current assets                                                                                              9,139         11,552

Investment in Lumera                                                                                                 4,938         10,201
Property and equipment, net                                                                                          1,615          2,318
Restricted investments                                                                                               1,101          1,238
Restricted investment in Lumera                                                                                      2,673             --
Other assets                                                                                                           203            229
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
   Total assets                                                                                              $      19,669  $      25,538
                                                                                                              =============  =============
                                                                                                                                          
Liabilities, Mandatorily Redeemable Convertible Preferred Stock and Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity                                        
Current Liabilities
   Accounts payable                                                                                          $       2,111  $       2,624
   Accrued liabilities                                                                                               4,328          4,538
   Allowance for estimated contract losses                                                                              --             53
   Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts                                          50          3,318
   Liability associated with common stock warrants                                                                   1,336             --
   Current portion of notes payable                                                                                  3,632             --
   Current portion of capital lease obligations                                                                         15             39
   Current portion of long-term debt                                                                                    61             77
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
   Total current liabilities                                                                                        11,533         10,649

Notes payable, net of current portion                                                                                2,576             --
Liability associated with embedded derivative feature                                                                2,211             --
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion                                                                        7              9
Long-term debt, net of current portion                                                                                  --             22
Deferred rent, net of current portion                                                                                   --             21
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
   Total liabilities                                                                                                16,327         10,701
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
Commitments and contingencies                                                                                           --             --

Mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock, par value $.001;
   25,000 shares authorized; 10 and 10 shares issued and outstanding
   (liquidation preference of $10,000)                                                                              $8,038          7,647
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
Shareholders' (Deficit) Equity
   Common stock, par value $.001; 73,000 shares authorzed; 21,483 and
      21,509 shares issued and outstanding                                                                              21             22
   Additional paid-in capital                                                                                      196,204        196,929
   Deferred compensation                                                                                               (49)          (305)
   Subscriptions receivable from related parties                                                                        --           (166)
   Receivables from related parties, net                                                                            (1,823)        (1,823)
   Accumulated deficit                                                                                            (199,049)      (187,467)
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
   Total shareholders' (deficit) equity                                                                             (4,696)         7,190
                                                                                                              -------------  -------------
   Total liabilities, mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock and shareholders' (deficit) equity  $      19,669  $      25,538
                                                                                                              =============  =============

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 

Microvision, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Operations 

(In thousands, except per share data) 
(Unaudited) 

                                                                                        Three Months Ended       Six Months Ended
                                                                                            June 30,                June 30,
                                                                                      ----------------------  ----------------------
                                                                                         2005        2004        2005        2004
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Contract revenue                                                                     $    3,682  $    1,811  $    7,064  $    4,110
Product revenue                                                                           1,043         587       1,643       1,262
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
    Total revenue                                                                         4,725       2,398       8,707       5,372
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Cost of contract revenue                                                                  1,668       1,192       3,496       2,397
Cost of product revenue                                                                   2,217         638       3,367       1,303
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
    Total cost of revenue                                                                 3,885       1,830       6,863       3,700
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Gross margin                                                                                840         568       1,844       1,672
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Research and development expense (exclusive of non-cash
    compensation expense of $0 and $281 for the three
    months and $0 and $566 for the six months
    ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively)                                           2,037       3,343       3,921       7,962
Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense (exclusive of
    non-cash compensation expense of $125 and $652 for
    the three months and $256 and $1,050 for the six
    months ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively)                                    4,516       5,191       9,051       9,764
Non-cash compensation expense                                                               125         933         256       1,616
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
    Total operating expenses                                                              6,678       9,467      13,228      19,342
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Loss from operations                                                                     (5,838)     (8,899)    (11,384)    (17,670)
Interest income                                                                              68          79         125         181
Interest expense                                                                           (879)        (89)     (1,070)        (97)
Gain on derivative features of notes payable, net                                         1,343          --       1,058          --
Other income (expense)                                                                      (12)         --          (3)         --
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Loss before minority interests and equity in losses of Lumera                            (5,318)     (8,909)    (11,274)    (17,586)
Minority interests in loss of consolidated subsidiary                                        --         397          --       2,384
Equity in losses of Lumera                                                                 (934)         --      (1,878)         --
Gain on sale of equity method investment                                                  1,570          --       1,570          --
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Net loss                                                                                 (4,682)     (8,512)    (11,582)    (15,202)
Less: Stated dividend on mandatorily redeemable convertible preferred stock                 (88)         --        (174)         --
Accretion to par value                                                                     (198)         --        (391)         --
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Net loss available for common shareholders                                           $   (4,968) $   (8,512) $  (12,147) $  (15,202)
                                                                                      ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

Net loss per share - basic and diluted                                               $    (0.23) $    (0.40) $    (0.57) $    (0.71)
                                                                                      ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

Weighted-average shares outstanding - basic and diluted                                  21,481      21,497      21,488      21,478
                                                                                      ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 



 

Microvision, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss 

(In thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

                                                                                        Three Months Ended       Six Months Ended
                                                                                            June 30,                June 30,
                                                                                      ----------------------  ----------------------
                                                                                         2005        2004        2005        2004
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Net loss                                                                             $   (4,682) $   (8,512) $  (11,582) $  (15,202)

Other comprehensive income (loss) -
Unrealized gain (loss) on investment securities, available-for-sale                          --          (9)         --         (23)
                                                                                      ----------  ----------  ----------  ----------
Comprehensive loss                                                                   $   (4,682) $   (8,521) $  (11,582) $  (15,225)
                                                                                      ==========  ==========  ==========  ==========



 

Microvision, Inc. 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 

(In thousands) 
(Unaudited)

                                                                                           Six Months Ended
                                                                                              June 30,
                                                                                        ----------------------
                                                                                           2005        2004
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
Cash flows from operating activities                                                                          
    Net loss                                                                              (11,582)    (15,202)
    Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operations
        Depreciation                                                                          849       1,378
        Non-cash expenses related to issuance of stock, warrants,
        options and amortization of deferred compensation                                     256       1,616
        Non-cash interest expense                                                             838          --
        Derivative features of notes payable                                               (1,058)         --
        Minority interests in loss of consolidated subsidiary                                  --      (2,384)
        Equity in losses of Lumera                                                          1,878          --
        Gain on sale of equity method investment                                           (1,570)         --
        Non-cash deferred rent                                                                (21)        (43)
        Interest on notes payable                                                              --          86
        Allowance for estimated contract losses                                               (53)         --
        Change in:
            Accounts receivable                                                             4,119         319
            Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted contracts      (631)       (121)
            Inventory                                                                         (73)     (2,490)
            Other current assets                                                              195        (597)
            Other assets                                                                      220          71
            Accounts payable                                                                 (522)      2,021
            Accrued liabilities                                                              (322)       (418)
            Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts    (3,268)         (3)
            Research liability, current and long-term                                          --      (1,870)
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
            Net cash used in operating activities                                         (10,745)    (17,637)
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
Cash flows from investing activities                                                                          
    Sales of investment securities                                                          1,248       8,589
    Purchases of investment securities                                                     (1,248)     (1,055)
    Sales of restricted investment securities                                               1,238       1,269
    Purchases of restricted investment securities                                          (1,101)     (1,238)
    Sale of long-term investment - Lumera                                                   2,282          --
    Purchases of property and equipment                                                      (137)       (585)
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
            Net cash provided by investing activities                                       2,282       6,980
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
Cash flows from financing activities                                                                          
    Principal payments under capital leases                                                   (26)        (40)
    Proceeds from issuance of short-term notes                                                 --       2,300
    Principal payments under long-term debt                                                   (38)        (33)
    Proceeds from issuance of notes and warrants                                           10,663          --
    Payments on notes payable                                                              (1,000)         --
    Increase in long term-debt                                                                 --          --
    Increase in deferred rent                                                                  --          --
    Payment of preferred dividend                                                             (86)         --
    Net proceeds from issuance of common stock                                                  9         363
    Net proceeds from sale of subsidiary's equity to minority interests                        --         500
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
            Net cash provided by financing activities                                       9,522       3,090
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents                                        1,059      (7,567)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period                                            1,268      10,700
                                                                                        ----------  ----------
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period                                                  2,327       3,133
                                                                                        ==========  ==========

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information                                                              
    Cash paid for interest                                                                    176          11
                                                                                        ==========  ==========
Supplemental schedule of non-cash investing and financing activities                                          
    Other non-cash additions to property and equipment                                         21          88
                                                                                        ==========  ==========

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

MICROVISION, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

June 30, 2005
(Unaudited)

Management's Statement

The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of June 30, 2005, the Consolidated Statements of Operations and Comprehensive Loss for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 and
June 30, 2004, and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 and June 30, 2004 have been prepared by Microvision, Inc. (the
"Company") and have not been audited. In the opinion of management, all adjustments necessary to state fairly the financial position at June 30, 2005 and the results of
operations and cash flows for all periods presented have been made and consist of normal recurring adjustments. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included
in financial statements prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles have been condensed or omitted pursuant to the rules of the SEC. You should read
these condensed financial statements in conjunction with the financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2004. The results of operations for the three months and six ended June 30, 2005 are not necessarily indicative of the operating results that may be attained
for the entire fiscal year.

At June 30, 2005, Microvision had $2.3 million in cash and cash equivalents and investment securities. In addition, in August 2005, the Company entered into a definitive
agreement with a holder of the Company's preferred stock and a new investor to sell 952,000 shares of common stock at a price of $5.25 per share and five-year warrants to
purchase 215,000 shares of common stock at a price of $6.50 per share for gross proceeds of $5.0 million



Microvision will require additional financing to fund its current operating plan beyond September, 2005. Microvision plans to raise additional cash to continue to fund its
operating plan past that date. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available to Microvision or that, if available, it will be available on terms acceptable to
Microvision on a timely basis. If adequate funds are not available to satisfy either short-term or long-term capital requirements, Microvision will be required to limit its
operations substantially. This limitation of operations may include reductions in capital expenditures and reductions in staff and operating costs.

Principles of Consolidation

Until July 2004, the consolidated financial statements included the accounts of Microvision, Inc. ("Microvision") or (the "Company) a Delaware corporation, and its majority-
owned subsidiary Lumera Corporation ("Lumera"), a Delaware corporation. In July 2004, Microvision's ownership interest in Lumera was reduced to 33% as a result of Lumera
completing an initial public offering of its common stock. Microvision currently owns 30% of Lumera's common stock. As a result of the reduction in ownership, Microvision
changed to the equity method of accounting for its investment in Lumera.

Inventory

Inventory at June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004 consisted of the following:

                                                 June 30,     December 31,
                                                   2005          2004
                                               ------------  ------------                            
Raw materials                                 $  1,251,000  $  1,607,000
Work-in-process                                    325,000        77,000
Finished goods                                   1,664,000     1,483,000
                                               ------------  ------------
                                              $  3,240,000  $  3,167,000
                                               ============  ============

 

 

 

The inventory at June 30, 2005 and December 31, 2004 consisted of raw materials; work in process and finished goods for Nomad and Flic. Inventory is stated at the lower of
cost or market, with cost determined on a weighted average basis. Management periodically assesses the need to provide for obsolescence of inventory and adjusts the carrying
value of inventory to its net realizable value when required. In addition, Microvision reduces the value of its inventory to its estimated scrap value when management
determines that it is not probable that the inventory will

 

 

 

be consumed through normal production during the next twelve months. During the six months ended June 30, 2005, and 2004, Microvision recorded inventory write-downs of
$1,391,000 and $299,000, respectively.

Convertible Notes

In March 2005, the Company raised $10,000,000 before issuance costs of $323,000 from the issuance of convertible notes ("Notes") and warrants to purchase an aggregate of
462,330 shares of Microvision common stock. The Notes are convertible on demand by the holders into Microvision common stock at a conversion price of $6.84 per share of
Microvision common stock or Lumera common stock held by the Company at a conversion price of $5.64 per share up to a limit of 1,750,000 shares of Lumera common stock.
The Note holders may convert all or a portion of their Notes. The initial conversion price is subject to adjustment in the event Microvision issues common stock or common
stock equivalents at a price per share of common stock below the conversion price of the Notes. In addition, upon the request of the Note holders, the Company is required to
redeem the Notes for cash upon a change of control or an event of default at a redemption price equal to 125% of the then outstanding balance of the Notes.

The terms of the Notes include interest at LIBOR plus 3.0% payable quarterly in cash or Microvision common stock, at the election of the Company, subject to certain
conditions. However, in no case shall the interest rate be less than 6.0% or greater than 8.0%. If the Company chooses to pay interest in Microvision common stock as opposed
to cash, the price will be based on 92% of the arithmetic average of the volume weighted average prices for the 10 trading days prior to the payment date. The Notes are payable
in six equal quarterly installments beginning in December 2005. The Company can subject to certain conditions, elect to make the payments in common stock in lieu of cash. If
the Company elects to pay in common stock, the Note holders can elect to receive Microvision or Lumera common stock. If the Note holders elect to receive Microvision or
Lumera common stock, payment in either stock will be issued at a 10% discount to the arithmetic average of the volume weighted average prices for the 15 trading days prior to
the payment date. Additionally, the Company can elect to convert the Notes into Microvision common stock if the stock price exceeds $11.97 per share for 20 out of any 30
consecutive trading days, subject to certain conditions.

The Company concluded that the Note holders' right to convert all or a portion of the Notes into Microvision or Lumera common stock is an embedded derivative instrument as
defined by FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Accordingly, $2,955,000 of the cash proceeds were allocated to the
embedded derivative instrument, which represents the fair value of the instrument on the date of issuance. The derivative instrument is valued using the higher of the
Microvision or Lumera conversion feature. At both the initial date of the transaction and at March 31, and June 30, 2005, the Lumera conversion feature had a higher value. The
value was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 75%; expected dividend yield of 0%; risk free
interest rate of 4.62%; and contractual life of nine months to two years, which corresponds to the principal repayment dates. Due to changes in Lumera's stock price and
remaining life, the fair value of the embedded derivative feature declined to $2,211,000 at June 30, 2005. The change in value of $1,038,000, and $744,000 for the three and six
months ended June 30, 2005 was recorded as a non-operating gain and is included in" Gain on derivative features of note payable, net" in the consolidated statement of
operations. The fair value of the instrument is included in Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2005 and subsequent changes in the fair value will be recorded in the statement of
operations each period.

The warrants vested on the date of grant, have an exercise price of $6.84 per share and expire in March 2010. The initial exercise price is subject to adjustment in the event
Microvision issues common stock or common stock equivalents at a price per share of common stock below the exercise price of the warrant. The warrants initially meet the
definition of a derivative instrument that must be accounted for as a liability under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-19, Accounting for Derivative
Financial Instruments Indexed to, and Potentially Settled in, a Company's Own Stock, because the Company has an obligation to register the common shares underlying the
warrants. Accordingly, $1,651,000 of the cash proceeds were allocated to the warrants, which represents the fair value of the warrants on the date of issuance and the amount
was recorded as a current liability. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the warrants will be recorded in the statement of operations each period and the classification of the
warrants as a liability will be assessed at each balance sheet date. The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:
expected volatility of 75%; expected dividend yield of 0%; risk free interest rate of 4.62%; and contractual life of five years.

 

 



 

 

 

The remaining gross proceeds of $5,394,000 were allocated to the Notes, which resulted in a discount from the face value of $4,606,000. This discount will be amortized to
interest expense using the interest method over the life of the Notes.

Subsequent to the end of the quarter, in July 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with the purchasers of the Company's Notes to amend the Notes. In connection with
the amendment, the Company issued warrants to purchase 750,000 shares of Microvision common stock. The three year warrants have an exercise price of $6.84 per share. The
conversion price of the Amended Notes and exercise price of the warrants are subject to anti-dilution adjustments, subject to conditions. In addition, the price at which the note
holder can convert the Notes to Microvision common stock was reduced to $5.85 per share, and the price at which the Company can manditorily convert the Notes to
Microvision common stock was reduced to $10.24. The Company has pledged 1,750,000 shares of its Lumera common stock as collateral for the Notes. As a result of the
amendment, the Notes are no longer exchangeable into Lumera common stock.

Net Loss Per Share

Basic net loss per share is calculated on the basis of the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding during the reporting periods. Diluted net loss per share is
calculated on the basis of the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding and taking into account the dilutive effect of all potential dilutive shares outstanding.
Diluted net loss per share for the three and six months ended June 30, 2005 is equal to basic net loss per share because the effect of potential common stock outstanding during
the periods, including options, warrants and common stock underlying convertible debt and preferred stock is anti-dilutive.

The components of basic and diluted earnings per share were as follows (in thousands, except earnings per share data):

                                                  Three Months Ended           Six Months Ended
                                                      June 30,                     June 30,
                                               --------------------------  --------------------------
                                                   2005          2004          2005          2004    
                                               ------------  ------------  ------------  ------------
Numerator:
Net loss available for common shareholders    $     (4,968) $     (8,512) $    (12,147) $    (15,202)
                                               ============  ============  ============  ============
Denominator:
Basic and diluted weighted-average
   common shares outstanding                        21,481        21,497        21,488        21,478
                                               ------------  ------------  ------------  ------------
Basic and diluted net loss per share          $      (0.23) $      (0.40) $      (0.57) $      (0.71)
                                               ============  ============  ============  ============

 

 

 

As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, Microvision had outstanding options and warrants to purchase 7, 239,000 and 6,029,000 shares of common stock, respectively. At June 30, 2005
the Company's preferred stock was convertible into 1,447,000 shares of common stock and the Company's convertible notes were convertible into 1,462,000 shares of common
stock.

 

Stock-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for stock-based employee compensation arrangements in accordance with the provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion ("APB") No. 25,
"Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees" and related amendments and interpretations including the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation Number
("FIN") 44, "Accounting for Certain Transactions Involving Stock Compensation," and complies with the disclosure provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation." The Company accounts for equity instruments issued to non-employees in accordance with the provisions of
SFAS No. 123 and Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 96-18.

 

 

 

 

 

Total non-cash stock-based compensation expense related to employee and director awards was $14,000 and $558,000; for the three months ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 and
$35,000 and $798,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Had compensation expense for employee and director options been determined using the
fair values at the grant dates consistent with the methodology prescribed under SFAS No. 123, the Company's consolidated net loss available to common shareholders and
associated net loss per share would have increased to the pro forma amounts shown below (in thousands):

                                               Three Months Ended          Three Months Ended
                                                      June 30,                    June 30,
                                               --------------------------  --------------------------
                                                   2005          2004          2005          2004    
                                               ------------  ------------  ------------  ------------
Net loss available for
  common shareholders, as reported            $     (4,968) $     (8,512) $    (12,147) $    (15,202)

Add:  Stock-based employee
  compensation expense included in
  net loss available for common
  shareholders, as reported, net of
  minority interest                                     14            86            35           139

Deduct: Stock-based
  employee compensation expense
  determined under fair value based



  method for all awards,  net of
  minority interest                                   (425)       (1,141)       (1,000)       (3,571)
                                               ------------  ------------  ------------  ------------
Net loss available for
  common shareholders, pro forma              $     (5,379) $     (9,567) $    (13,112) $    (18,634)
                                               ============  ============  ============  ============
Net loss per share (basic and diluted):
  As reported                                 $      (0.23) $      (0.40) $      (0.57) $      (0.71)
                                               ============  ============  ============  ============

  Pro Forma                                   $      (0.25) $      (0.45) $      (0.61) $      (0.87)
                                               ============  ============  ============  ============

Basic and diluted weighted-average
   common shares outstanding                        21,481        21,497        21,488        21,478
                                               ============  ============  ============  ============

Segment Information

Prior to Lumera's initial public offering in July 2004, the Company was organized into two segment - Microvision, which is
engaged in scanned beam displays and related technologies, and Lumera, which is engaged in optical systems
components technology.  The sebments were determined based on how management views and evaluates the Company's operations.

A portion of each segments' administration expenses arise from shared services and infrastructure that Microvision has provided to both segments in order to realize economies
of scale and to efficiently use resources. These efficiencies include costs of certain legal, accounting, human resources and other Microvision corporate and infrastructure costs.
These expenses are allocated to the segments and the allocation has been determined on a basis that the Company considered to be a reasonable reflection of the utilization of
services provided to, or benefits received by, the segments.

At June 30, 2005, Lumera is a significant unconsolidated equity investment of Microvision. For the three months ended June 30, 2005, Lumera revenue was $348,000, Gross
profit was $131,000, Loss from operations was $3.1 million and Net loss was $2.9 million. For the six months ended June 30, 2005, Lumera revenue was $588,000, Gross profit
was $203,000, Loss from operations was $6.1 million and Net loss was $5.8 million .At June 30, 2005, Lumera had Current assets of $25.8 million, Noncurrent assets of $1.6
million, current liabilities of $1.3 million and Shareholders equity of $26.1 million.

 

 

 

The following tables reflect the results of the Company's reportable segments for the three and six months ended June 30, 2004 under the Company's management system. The
performance of each segment is measured based on several metrics. These results are used, in part, by management, in evaluating the performance of, and in allocation of
resources to, each of the segments (in thousands):

                                                                                                   
                                                         Three months ended June 30, 2004
                                                 --------------------------------------------------
                                                 Microvision    Lumera     Eliminations    Total
                                                 -----------  -----------  -----------  -----------
                                                              (in thousands)                       
Contract revenue                                $     1,523  $       288  $        --  $     1,811
Product revenue                                         587           --           --          587
Cost of contract revenue                              1,004          188           --        1,192
Cost of product revenue                                 638           --           --          638
Research and development expense                      4,306         (963)          --        3,343
Marketing, general and administrative expense         4,440          751           --        5,191
Non-cash compensation expense                           168          765           --          933
Interest income                                          78            1           --           79
Interest expense                                          3           86           --           89
Segment loss                                          8,371          538         (397)       8,512
Depreciation                                            397          298           --          695
Expenditures for capital assets                         291           82           --          373
Segment assets                                       23,794        4,253       (7,359)      20,688

                                                                                                   
                                                         Six months ended June 30, 2004
                                                 --------------------------------------------------
                                                 Microvision    Lumera     Eliminations    Total
                                                 -----------  -----------  -----------  -----------
                                                              (in thousands)                       
Contract revenue                                $     3,506  $       604  $        --  $     4,110
Product revenue                                       1,262           --           --        1,262
Cost of contract revenue                              2,015          382           --        2,397
Cost of product revenue                               1,303           --           --        1,303
Research and development expense                      7,458          504           --        7,962
Marketing, general and administrative expense         8,573        1,191           --        9,764
Non-cash compensation expense                           350        1,266           --        1,616
Interest income                                         180            1           --          181
Interest expense                                         11           86           --           97
Segment loss                                         14,762        2,824       (2,384)      15,202
Depreciation                                            783          595           --        1,378
Expenditures for capital assets                         488           97           --          585
Segment assets                                       23,794        4,253       (7,359)      20,688

 

 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (``FASB'') issued SFAS No. 123(R), ``Share-Based
Payment'', which is a revision of SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, to be valued at fair value on the date of grant, and to be expensed over the applicable vesting period. Pro forma disclosure of the
income statement effects of share-based payments is no longer an alternative. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for all share-based awards granted on or after January 2,
2006. In addition, companies must also recognize compensation expense related to any awards that are not fully vested as of the effective date. Compensation expense
for the unvested awards will be measured based on the fair value of the awards previously calculated in developing the pro forma disclosures in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123.  The Company is evaluating the alternative methods for implementing SFAS No. 123(R). 



In March of 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107, which interprets SFAS No. 123(R). In particular, this SAB includes interpretive guidance
that may be applicable to the Company related to: share-based payment transactions with nonemployees; methods of valuing share-based payments; the classification
of compensation expense in the income statement; capitalization of compensation cost related to share-based payment arrangements; the accounting for income tax
effects of share-based payment arrangements upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R); the modification of employee share options prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R);
and disclosures in Management's Discussion and Analysis subsequent to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

 

In May of 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting for Changes and Error Corrections" which changes the requirements for the accounting for, and
reporting of, a change in accounting principle. Previously, most voluntary changes in accounting principle were recognized by including in net income of the period of
the change the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. This Statement requires retrospective application to prior periods' financial statements
of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period- specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. This Statement also
requires that a change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate
affected by a change in accounting principle. This Statement is effective for the Company for accounting principles changed on or after January 1, 2006.

 Subsequent Event

In August 2005, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with a holder of the Company's preferred stock and a new investor to sell 952,000 shares of
common stock at a price of $5.25 per share and five-year warrants to purchase 215,000 shares of common stock at a price of $6.50 per share for gross proceeds of
$5.0 million. The holder of the Company's preferred stock also agreed to convert 5,000 shares of the Company's preferred stock into shares of common stock. In
connection with these agreements the Company also issued 124,000 shares of its common stock to the preferred stock holder and adjusted the exercise price from
$8.16 to $6.84 per share for the existing warrants to purchase 361,795 shares of common stock issued in connection with the original sale of the Company's preferred
stock.

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Forward-Looking Statements

The information set forth in this report in Item 2, "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations," and Item 3,
"Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosure about Market Risk," includes "forward- looking statements" within the meaning of Section 21E of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), and is subject to the safe harbor created by that section. Such statements may include, but are not limited to,
projections of revenues, income or loss, capital expenditures, plans for product development and cooperative arrangements, future operations, financing needs or
plans of Microvision, as well as assumptions relating to the foregoing. The words "believe," "expect," "will," "anticipate," "estimate," "project," "plan," and similar
expressions identify forward-looking statements, which speak only as of the date the statement was made. Factors that could cause results to differ materially from
those projected or implied in the forward-looking statements are set forth below under the caption "Risk Factors Relating to Microvision's Business."

Overview

The company has historically included both Microvision, Inc. ("Microvision" or the "Company") and Lumera Corporation ("Lumera"), a subsidiary that was
consolidated prior to July 2004. In July 2004, Lumera completed an initial public offering of its common stock. After July 2004, due to the change in ownership
percentage, Microvision changed to the equity method of accounting for its investment in Lumera. Microvision designs and markets information display and image
capture products.

Scanned Beam Displays

Microvision is producing and selling the Nomad® Expert Technician System, a wireless, wearable computer with a head-worn see-through display. Microvision
introduced this second generation version of the Nomad Augmented Vision System in March 2004 and is initially targeting the automotive repair market and military
applications. Microvision has also developed prototype color scanned beam displays, including hand-held, head-worn and projection versions, and is currently
refining and further developing its scanned beam display technology for potential automotive, defense, aerospace, industrial, medical and consumer applications.
Microvision believes the scanned beam display technology may be useful in a variety of applications, including mobile communications, head-up displays for vehicles,
entertainment and consumer displays, and computing and visual simulation applications. Microvision expects that, in contrast to display solutions that use non-
scanning technologies, its scanned beam display technology will enable the production of high quality displays that are small and lightweight, use low power, can be
held or worn comfortably, and are competitively priced.

 

 

Microvision's scanned beam technology includes proprietary technology it has developed, technology licensed from other companies and the Virtual Retinal Display
™ technology licensed from the University of Washington.

Image Capture Devices

Microvision also sells the Flic® Laser Bar Code Scanner, a hand-held bar code scanner that uses its proprietary scanning technology. Microvision has introduced a
Bluetooth wireless version, the Flic Cordless Laser Bar Code Scanner. Microvision believes that the basic scanning components of the scanned beam display
technology may also be used to develop image capture products, such as miniature high-resolution laser cameras and 2D bar code readers that may have higher
performance and lower cost than those currently available.

Other Applications

Microvision is continuing to develop prototype automotive head-up displays, electronic view finders, and image capture products. These prototypes demonstrate that
scanned beam display technology can be used in different potential display and image capture products. Microvision believes that it can further develop these
prototypes into products that will meet the customer's specifications for size, brightness, image quality and cost. Microvision has continued development work on
these potential products in 2005.

Results of Operations

THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 COMPARED TO THREE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Contract Revenue. The Company earns contract revenue from performance on development contracts with the United States government and commercial customers.
Contract revenue in the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $1.9 million, or 103%, to $3.7 million from $1.8 million in the same period in 2004. For the
three months ended June 30, 2005, 19% of contract revenue was derived from performance on development contracts with the United States government and 81%
from performance on development contracts with commercial customers. For the three months ended June 30, 2004, 55% of contract revenue was derived from
performance on development contracts with the United States government and 45% from performance on development contracts with commercial customers.
Contract revenue included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was $288,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2004. One commercial
contract accounted for $2.7 million or 74% of contract revenue during the three months ended June 30, 2005.

In June 2005, the Company entered into a $4.4 million contract with General Dynamics C4 Systems to continue the development of a helmet-mounted display for the



Air Warrior Block 3 system. General Dynamics is under contract with the U.S. Army's Product Manager -- Air Warrior in Huntsville, Ala., to develop and integrate
the Air Warrior Block 3 system. The Microvision helmet-mounted display design will provide a full-color, see-through, daylight and night- readable, high-resolution
display.

Contract revenue is dependent upon the timing and value of contracts the Company has entered into and the availability of technical resources to perform work on
the contracts. Contract revenue was higher during the three months ended June 30, 2005 than the same period in 2004, due to higher beginning backlog and the
allocation of additional resources to contract revenue projects partially offset by the impact of no longer including Lumera's revenue. Due to the change from
consolidating Lumera to accounting for the investment under the equity method of accounting.

The Company believes that, as long as most of its revenue is earned from performance on development contracts, there may be a high degree of variability in revenue
from quarter to quarter.

Microvision's backlog of development contracts at June 30, 2005 was $5.9 million. All development contracts in backlog are scheduled for completion and delivery
during the next twelve months. Microvision's backlog of development contracts at June 30, 2004 was $4.9 million.

Product Revenue. Microvision earns product revenue from sales of Nomad and Flic. Product revenue in the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $456,000,
or 78%, to $1.0 million from $587,000 in the same period in 2004. For the three months ended June 30, 2005, 36% of product revenue was derived from the sales of
Flic units and 64% from sales of Nomad units. For the three months ended June 30, 2004, 71% of product revenue was derived from sales of Flic unites and 29%
from the sale of Nomad units. Microvision introduced a new version of

 

 

Nomad during the first quarter of 2004. The increase in Nomad sales is attributable to sales of Nomad units to the U.S. Army and automotive dealerships for use in
repair and maintenance applications. During the three months ended June 30, 2005, the company delivered 80 Nomad units to General Dynamics for the U.S. Army
Stryker Brigade and recognized revenue of $560,000

Microvision believes that product revenue will increase from both Flic and Nomad sales as the products gain market acceptance. Quarterly revenue may vary
substantially due to the timing of product orders from customers, production constraints and raw material availability.

The backlog of product orders at June 30, 2005 was approximately $900,000, all of which is scheduled for delivery during the next twelve months.

Cost of Contract Revenue. Cost of contract revenue includes both the direct and allocated indirect costs of performing on development contracts. Direct costs include
labor, materials and other costs incurred directly in performing on a contract. Indirect costs include labor and other costs associated with operating the Company's
research and development department and building the Company's technical capabilities and capacity. Cost of contract revenue is determined both by the level of
direct costs incurred on development contracts and by the level of indirect costs incurred in operating and building the Company's technical capabilities and
capacity. The cost of contract revenue can fluctuate substantially from period to period depending on the level of both the direct costs incurred in the performance of
projects and the level of indirect costs incurred.

Cost of contract revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $476,000, or 40%, to $1.7 million from $1.2 million in the same period in 2004. Cost
of contract revenue included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was $188,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2004. Total direct costs
for the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased by 65% from the same period in 2004. The total direct labor component of direct costs for the three months
ended June 30, 2005 increased by 11% from the same period in 2004.

Research and development overhead is allocated to both cost of contract revenue and research and development expense based on the proportion of direct cost
incurred in cost of contract revenue and research and development, respectively. As a result of the higher direct labor cost in cost of revenue and a higher overhead
rate for the three months ended June 30, 2005, approximately 25% more overhead was allocated to cost of revenue than in the same period in 2004.

Microvision expects that cost of contract revenue on an absolute dollar basis to increase in the future. This increase will likely result from additional development
contract work that Microvision expects to perform. The cost of revenue as a percentage of revenue can fluctuate significantly from period to period, depending on the
contract and contract cost mix and the levels of direct and indirect costs incurred. Microvision expects the cost of contract revenue, as a percentage of contract
revenue, to fluctuate modestly over time.

Cost of Product Revenue. Cost of product revenue includes both the direct and allocated indirect costs of manufacturing Nomads and Flics sold to customers. Direct
costs include labor, materials and other costs incurred directly in the manufacture of Flic and Nomad. Indirect costs include labor and other costs associated with
operating Microvision manufacturing capabilities and capacity.

Cost of product revenue for the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $1.6 million or 247%, to $2.2 million from $638,000 in the same period in 2004.

Cost of product revenue includes inventory write-off's of approximately $500,000 and $289,000 for the three months ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The
write-offs were due to changes in product design and customer demand that caused components and accessories to become obsolete or slow-moving. Microvision
values inventory at the lower of cost or market. Microvision also reduces the value of its inventory to its estimated scrap value when management determines that it
is not probable that the inventory will be utilized through normal production during the next 12 months.

Manufacturing overhead is allocated to inventory, cost of product revenue, cost of contract revenue, and research and development expense based on the proportion
of direct material purchased for the respective activity. During the three months ending June 30, 2005 the Company expensed approximately $400,000 of
manufacturing overhead associated with production capacity in excess of production requirements.

 

 

The Company capitalizes manufacturing costs associated with the procurement and assembly of Nomad and Flic products. The fully burdened cost of the inventory
is charged to cost of product revenue as the products are sold. The Company also performs a lower of cost or market analysis to determine that the fully burdened
cost of the inventory is not in excess of the expected selling price of the finished units. As a result of this analysis the company recorded a lower of cost or market
adjustment of approximately $450,000 in the three months ended June 30, 2005.

Microvision expects that cost of product revenue on an absolute dollar basis will increase in the future. This increase will likely result from expected sales of
commercial products. The cost of product revenue as a percentage of product revenue can fluctuate significantly from period to period, depending on the product
mix, the level of overhead expense and the volume of direct materials purchased.

Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense consists of:

Compensation related costs of employees and contractors engaged in internal research and product development activities,
Research fees paid to the University of Washington under Sponsored Research Agreement for Lumera (until July 2004),
Laboratory operations, outsourced development and processing work,
Fees and expenses related to patent applications, prosecution and protection,



Nomad production cost in excess of Nomad revenue (until October 2004),
Other operating expenses and
Costs incurred in acquiring and maintaining licenses.

Research and development expense in the three months ended June 30, 2005 decreased by $1.3 million or 39%, to $2.0 million from $3.3 million in the same period in
2004. Research and development expense included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was a credit of $963,000 for the three months ended
June 30, 2004.

Research and development expense in the three months ended June 30, 2004 included approximately 900,000 in manufacturing overhead associated with Nomad
production. The company classified Nomad manufacturing expense in excess of Nomad product revenue as research and development expense until the Nomad
design and production capabilities were sufficiently mature to support commercial production, in the fourth quarter of 2004.

Microvision believes that a substantial level of continuing research and development expense will be required to develop additional commercial products using the
scanned beam display technology. Accordingly, Microvision anticipates its level of research and development spending will continue to be substantial. These expenses
could be incurred as a result of:

Subcontracting work to development partners,
Expanding and equipping in-house laboratories,
Acquiring rights to additional technologies,
Incurring related operating expenses, and
Hiring additional technical and support personnel.

Sales, Marketing, General and Administrative Expense. Sales, marketing, , general and administrative expenses include compensation and support costs for sales,
marketing, management and administrative staff, and for other general and administrative costs, including legal and accounting services, consultants and other
operating expenses.

Sales, marketing, , general and administrative expenses in the three months ended June 30, 2005 decreased by $675,000, or 13%, to $4.5 million from $5.2 million in
the same period in 2004. Sales, marketing, general and administrative expense included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was $751,000
for the three months ended June 30, 2004. Microvision expects marketing, general and administrative expenses to increase, commensurate with increases in revenue,
in future periods as Microvision:

Adds to its sales and marketing staff,
Makes additional investments in sales and marketing activities, and
Increases the level of corporate and administrative activity.

 

 

 

 

Non-Cash Compensation Expense. Non-cash compensation expense in the three months ended June 30, 2005 decreased $808,000 or 87%, to $125,000 from $933,000 in
the same period in 2004.

The following table shows the major components of non-cash compensation expense for the three months ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

                                                           Three Months Ended
                                                              June 30,
                                                          ----------------------
                                                             2005        2004
                                                          ----------  ----------                      
Microvision securities issued to third parties           $  111,000  $  151,000
Microvision stock options issued to employees                    --      12,000
Microvision options issued to non-management directors       14,000       5,000
Lumera non-cash compensation expense                             --     765,000
                                                          ----------  ----------
                                                         $  125,000  $  933,000
                                                          ==========  ==========

 

 

At June 30, 2005, Microvision had $49,000 of unamortized non-cash compensation expense that will be amortized over the next year.

Interest Income. Interest income in the three months ended June 30, 2005 decreased by $11,000, or 14%, to $68,000 from $79,000 in the same period in 2004. This
decrease resulted primarily from lower average cash and investment securities balances in the three months ended June 30, 2005 than the average cash and
investment securities balances in the same period of the prior year.

Interest Expense. Interest expense in the three months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $790,000 to $879,000 from $89,000 in the same period in 2004. In March
2005, the Company raised $10 million before issuance costs of $323,000 from the issuance of convertible notes ("Notes") and warrants to purchase an aggregate of
462,330 shares of Microvision common stock. This increase in interest expense relates to the stated interest on the notes, as well as the amortization of the discount
recorded on the notes due to the warrants and embedded derivative feature of the Notes. The Company interest expense will be substantially higher than in previous
periods as a result of this transaction.

 

Gain on derivative feature of notes payable. In connection with the issuance of the Company's notes in March 2005 the Company concluded that the Note holders' right
to convert all or a portion of the Notes into Microvision or Lumera common stock is an embedded derivative instrument as defined by FASB Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Accordingly, $2,955,000 of the cash proceeds were allocated to the embedded derivative instrument,
which represents the fair value of the instrument on the date of issuance. The derivative instrument is valued using the higher of the Microvision or Lumera
conversion feature. At both the initial date of the transaction and at June 30, 2005, the Lumera conversion feature had a higher value. The value was determined
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 75%; expected dividend yield of 0%; risk free interest rate of
4.62%; and contractual life of nine months to two years, which corresponds to the principal repayment dates. Due to change in the stock price and remaining life, the
fair value of the embedded derivative instrument decreased to $2.2 million at June 30, 2005. The change in value of $1.0 million , was recorded as a non-operating
gain and is included in" Gain on derivative features of note payable, net" in the consolidated statement of operations. The fair value of the instrument is included in



Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2005 and subsequent changes in the fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations each period.

Gain on Sale of Equity Method Investment. In June 2005, Microvision sold 457,488 shares of its Lumera common stock at prices between $4.95 and $5.00 per share.
The total proceeds from the sales were $2.3 million. The sales price was higher than the average carrying value of the shares and the Company recognized a gain of
$1.6 million in June 2005.

Non-cash Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock. In September 2004, Microvision raised $10.0 million before issuance costs of $90,000 from the sale of
10,000 shares of convertible preferred stock and a warrant to purchase 361,795 shares of common stock. The preferred stock terms include a cumulative dividend of
3.5% per annum, payable quarterly in cash or registered common stock, at the election of the Company, subject to certain conditions.

The net cash proceeds of $9,910,000 were allocated to the preferred stock and the warrant based on the relative fair values of the securities. The warrants were
valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: expected volatility, 75%; risk free interest rate, 3.4, and contractual life five
years. $1.3 million of the proceeds were allocated to the warrant and was recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital.

 

Subsequent to the relative fair value allocation, the effective conversion price of the convertible preferred stock was less than the closing price of Microvision's
common stock on the date of commitment to purchase the preferred stock. This beneficial conversion feature was measured as $1.2 million, which represents the
difference between the fair value of the common stock and the effective conversion price. This beneficial conversion feature was recorded to additional paid-in capital
and will be recorded as a deemed dividend to preferred stockholders (accretion) over the stated life of the preferred stock using the effective interest method, which is
three years. During the three months ended June 30, 2005 the Company recorded $88,000 in dividends on the preferred stock and $198,000 in accretion of the
beneficial conversion feature of the preferred stock.

SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 COMPARED TO SIX MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Contract Revenue. Contract revenue in the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $3.0 million, or 72%, to $7.1 million from $4.1 million in the same period in
2004. For the six months ended June 30, 2005, 28% of contract revenue was derived from performance on development contracts with the United States government
and 72% from performance on development contracts with commercial customers. For the six months ended June 30, 2004, 54% of contract revenue was derived
from performance on development contracts with the United States government and 46% from performance on development contracts with commercial customers.
Contract revenue included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was $604,000 for the six months ended June 30, 2004. One commercial
contract accounted for $4.5 million or 64% of contract revenue during the six months ended June 30, 2005.

 

Product Revenue. Product revenue in the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $381,000, or 30%, to $1.6 million from $1.3 million in the same period in 2004.
For the six months ended June 30, 2005, 47% of product revenue was derived from the sales of Flic units and 53% from sales of Nomad units. For the six months
ended June 30, 2004, 86% of product revenue was derived from sales of Flic units and 14% from sales of Nomad units. During the first half of 2004, Microvision
delivered a large Flic order to one customer, which order was not repeated in 2005. Microvision introduced a new version of Nomad during the first quarter of 2004.
The increase in Nomad sales is attributable to sales of Nomad units to the U.S. Army and automotive dealerships for use in repair and maintenance applications.

Cost of Contract Revenue. Cost of contract revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $1.1 million, or 46%, to $3.5 million from $2.4 million in the
same period in 2004. Cost of contract revenue included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was $382,000 for the six months ended June 30,
2004. Total direct costs for the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by 78% from the same period in 2004. The total direct labor component of direct costs for
the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by 24% from the same period in 2004. As a result of the higher direct labor cost in cost of revenue for the six months
ended June 30, 2005, approximately 20% more overhead was allocated to cost of revenue than in the same period in 2004.

Cost of Product Revenue. Cost of product revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $2.1 million or 158%, to $3.4 million from $1.3 million in the
same period in 2004. Cost of product revenue for the six months ended June 30, 2005 includes the write-off of $1.4 million of inventory. The write-offs were due to
changes in product design and customer demand that caused components and accessories to become obsolete or slow-moving. Microvision also reduces the value of its
inventory to its estimated scrap value when management determines that it is not probable that the inventory will be utilized through normal production during the
next 12 months.

Manufacturing overhead is allocated to inventory, cost of product revenue, cost of contract revenue, and research and development expense based on the proportion
of direct material purchased for the respective activity. During the six months ending June 30, 2005 the Company expensed approximately $400,000 of
manufacturing overhead associated with production capacity in excess of production requirements.

 

 

 

 

The Company capitalizes manufacturing costs associated with the procurement and assembly of Nomad and Flic products. The fully burdened cost of the inventory
is charged to cost of product revenue as the products are sold. The Company also performs a lower of cost or market analysis to determine that the fully burdened
cost of the inventory is not in excess of the expected selling price of the finished units. As a result of this analysis the company recorded a lower of cost or market
adjustment of approximately $450,000 in the six months ended June 30, 2005.

 

Research and Development Expense. Research and development expense in the six months ended June 30, 2005 decreased by $4.0 million, or 51%, to $3.9 million from
$8.0 million in the same period in 2004. Research and development expense included in Microvision's consolidated financial statements for Lumera was $504,000
million for the six months ended June 30, 2004. The remaining decline is a result of a shift from research and development cost to work on revenue contracts and the
full absorption of manufacturing overhead cost.

Research and development expense in the six months ended June 30, 2004 included approximately $1.7 million in manufacturing overhead associated with Nomad
production. The company classified Nomad manufacturing expense in excess of Nomad product revenue as research and development expense until the Nomad
design and production capabilities were sufficiently mature to support commercial production, in the fourth quarter of 2004.

 

Sales, marketing, General and Administrative Expense. Sales, marketing, general and administrative expenses in the six months ended June 30, 2005 decreased by
$713,000, or 7%, to $9.1 million from $9.8 million in the same period in 2004. Marketing, general and administrative expense included in Microvision's consolidated
financial statements for Lumera was $1.2 million for the six months ended June 30, 2004. The increase in Microvision marketing, selling, general and administrative
expense is attributable to increased sales and marketing costs for the Nomad product. Microvision's increased costs included salaries, travel and promotion costs
directly related to Nomad sales activity.



Non-Cash Compensation Expense. Non-cash compensation expense in the six months ended June 30, 2005 decreased $1.4 million or 84%, to $256,000 from $1.6
million in the same period in 2004.

The following table shows the major components of non-cash compensation expense for the six months ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

                                                            Six Months Ended
                                                              June 30,
                                                          ----------------------
                                                             2005        2004
                                                          ----------  ----------                      
Microvision securities issued to third parties           $  221,000  $  309,000
Microvision stock options issued to employees                    --      36,000
Microvision options issued to non-management directors       35,000       5,000
Lumera non-cash compensation expense                             --   1,266,000
                                                          ----------  ----------
                                                         $  256,000  $1,616,000
                                                          ==========  ==========

 

 

 

Interest Income. Interest income in the six months ended June 30, 2005 decreased by $56,000, or 31%, to $125,000 from $181,000 in the same period in 2004. This
decrease resulted primarily from lower average cash and investment securities balances in the six months ended June 30, 2005 than the average cash and investment
securities balances in the same period of the prior year.

Interest Expense. Interest expense in the six months ended June 30, 2005 increased by $1.0 million to $1.1 million from $97,000 in the same period in 2004. In March
2005, the Company raised $10 million before issuance costs of $323,000 from the issuance of convertible notes ("Notes") and warrants to purchase an aggregate of
462,330 shares of Microvision common stock. This increase in interest expense relates to the stated interest on the notes, as well as the amortization of the discount
recorded on the notes due to the warrants and embedded derivative feature of the Notes. The Company interest expense will be substantially higher than in previous
periods as a result of this transaction.

 

Gain on derivative feature of notes payable. In connection with the issuance of the Company's notes in March 2005 Company concluded that the Note holders' right to
convert all or a portion of the Notes into Microvision or Lumera common stock is an embedded derivative instrument as defined by FASB Statement No. 133,
Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Accordingly, $2,955,000 of the cash proceeds were allocated to the embedded derivative instrument,
which represents the fair value of the instrument on the date of issuance. The derivative instrument is valued using the higher of the Microvision or Lumera
conversion feature. At both the initial date of the transaction and at June 30, 2005, the Lumera conversion feature had a higher value. The value was determined
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 75%; expected dividend yield of 0%; risk free interest rate of
4.62%; and contractual life of nine months to two years, which corresponds to the principal repayment dates. Due to change in the stock price and remaining life, the
fair value of the embedded derivative instrument decreased to $2.2 million at June 30, 2005. The change in value of $744,000, was recorded as a non-operating gain
and is included in" Gain on derivative features of note payable, net" in the consolidated statement of operations. The fair value of the instrument is included in Long-
term liabilities at June 30, 2005 and subsequent changes in the fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations each period.

Gain on Sale of Equity Method Investments. In June 2005, Microvision sold 457,488 shares of its Lumera common stock at prices between $4.95 and $5.00 per share.
The total proceeds from the sales were $2.3 million. The sales price was higher than the average carrying value of the shares and the Company recognized a gain of
$1.6 million in June 2005.

Non-cash Beneficial Conversion Feature of Preferred Stock. In September 2004, Microvision raised $10.0 million before issuance costs of $90,000 from the sale of
10,000 shares of convertible preferred stock and a warrant to purchase 361,795 shares of common stock. The preferred stock terms include a dividend of 3.5% per
annum, payable quarterly in cash or registered common stock, at the election of the Company, subject to certain conditions.

The net cash proceeds of $9,910,000 were allocated to the preferred stock and the warrant based on the relative fair values of the securities. The warrants were
valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: expected volatility, 75%; risk free interest rate, 3.4, and contractual life five
years. $1.3 million of the proceeds were allocated to the warrant and was recorded as an increase to additional paid-in capital.

 

Subsequent to the relative fair value allocation, the effective conversion price of the convertible preferred stock was less than the closing price of Microvision's
common stock on the date of commitment to purchase the preferred stock. This beneficial conversion feature was measured as $1.2 million, which represents the
difference between the fair value of the common stock and the effective conversion price. This beneficial conversion feature was recorded to additional paid-in capital
and will be recorded as a deemed dividend to preferred stockholders (accretion) over the stated life of the preferred stock using the effective interest method, which is
three years. During the six months ended June 30, 2005 the Company recorded $174,000 in dividends on the preferred stock and $391,000 in accretion of the
beneficial conversion feature of the preferred stock.

 

 

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In August 2005, the Company entered into a definitive agreement with a holder of the Company's preferred stock and a new investor to sell 952,000 shares of
common stock at a price of $5.25 per share and five-year warrants to purchase 215,000 shares of common stock at a price of $6.50 per share for gross proceeds of
$5.0 million. The holder of the Company's preferred stock also agreed to convert 5,000 shares of the Company's preferred stock into shares of common stock. In
connection with these agreements the Company also issued 124,000 shares of its common stock to the preferred stock holder and adjusted the exercise price from
$8.16 to $6.84 per share for the existing warrants to purchase 361,795 shares of common stock issued in connection with the original sale of the Company's preferred
stock.

The Company has funded operations to date primarily through the sale of common stock, convertible preferred stock, convertible debt, warrants and, to a lesser
extent, from development contract revenues and product sales. At June 30, 2005, Microvision had $2.3 million in cash and cash equivalents and investment securities.

Microvision believes that its current cash and cash equivalents balance as of June 30, 2005 totaling $2.3 million and the $5.0 million proceeds from the recent sale of
its common stock and warrants will satisfy its budgeted cash requirements through September 2005 based on its current operating plan. Microvision will require
additional financing to fund its current operating plan beyond September 2005. Microvision owns 3, 226, 000 shares of Lumera common stock that have not been
pledged as security. Based on the August 1, 2005 closing price of $4.80, the Lumera shares have a market value of $15.5 million. Microvision plans to raise additional



cash to continue to fund its operating plan past that date. There can be no assurance that additional financing will be available to Microvision or that, if available, it
will be available on terms acceptable to Microvision on a timely basis. If adequate funds are not available to satisfy either short-term or long-term capital
requirements, Microvision will be required to limit its operations substantially. This limitation of operations may include reduction in capital expenditures, as well as
reductions in staff and operating costs.

In June, 2005 the Company entered into a lease for a 67,000 square foot facility in Redmond, Washington. The Company plans to move into the new facility before
the lease on its current facility in Bothell, Washington expires in April, 2006. In connection with the lease the Company is required to provide the leaseholder an
irrevocable letter of credit for $1.0 million in August, 2005.

Cash used in operating activities totaled $10.7 million during the six months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $17.6 million during the same period in 2004. Cash
used in operating activities for each period resulted primarily from the net loss for the period.

Cash provided by investing activities totaled $2.3 million during the six months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $7.0 million during the same period of 2004. In
June 2005 the Company raised 2.3 million from the sale of Lumera Common Stock. The Company used cash of $137,000 for capital expenditures during the six
months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $585,000 during the same period in 2004. Capital expenditures include leasehold improvements to leased office space and
computer hardware and software, laboratory equipment and furniture and fixtures to support operations.

Cash provided by financing activities totaled $9.5 million during the six months ended June 30, 2005, compared to $3.1 million during the same period in 2004.

In March 2005, the Company raised $10,000,000 before issuance costs of $323,000 from the issuance of convertible notes ("Notes") and warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 462,330 shares of Microvision common stock. The Notes are convertible on demand by the holders into Microvision common stock at a conversion price
of $6.84 per share of Microvision common stock or Lumera common stock held by the Company at a conversion price of $5.64 per share up to a limit of 1,750,000
shares of Lumera common stock. The Note holders may convert all or a portion of their Notes. The initial conversion price is subject to adjustment in the event
Microvision issues common stock or common stock equivalents at a price per share of common stock below the conversion price of the Notes. In addition, upon the
request of the Note holders, the Company is required to redeem the Notes for cash upon a change of control or an event of default at a redemption price equal to
125% of the then outstanding balance of the Notes.

The terms of the Notes include interest at LIBOR plus 3.0% payable quarterly in cash or Microvision common stock, at the election of the Company, subject to
certain conditions. However, in no case shall the interest rate be less than 6.0% or greater than 8.0%. If the Company chooses to pay interest in Microvision common
stock as opposed to cash, the price will be based on 92% of the arithmetic average of the volume weighted average prices for the 10 trading days prior to the payment
date. The Notes are payable in six equal quarterly installments beginning in December 2005. The Company can, subject to certain conditions, elect to make the
payments to common stock, in lieu of cash. If the Company elects to pay in common stock, the Note holders can elect to receive Microvision or Lumera common stock.
If the Note holders elect to receive Microvision or Lumera common stock, payment in either stock will be issued at a 10% discount to the arithmetic average of the
volume weighted average prices for the 15 trading days prior to the payment date. Additionally, the Company can elect to convert the Notes into Microvision
common stock if the stock price exceeds $11.97 per share for 20 out of any 30 consecutive trading days, subject to certain conditions.

The Company concluded that the Note holders' right to convert all or a portion of the Notes into Microvision or Lumera common stock is an embedded derivative
instrument as defined by FASB Statement No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. Accordingly, $2,955,000 of the cash proceeds were
allocated to the embedded derivative instrument, which represents the fair value of the instrument on the date of issuance. The derivative instrument is valued using
the higher of the Microvision or Lumera conversion feature. At both the initial date of the transaction and at June 30, 2005, the Lumera conversion feature had a
higher value. The value was determined using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions: expected volatility of 75%; expected dividend
yield of 0%; risk free interest rate of 4.62%; and contractual life of nine months to two years, which corresponds to the principal repayment dates. Due to change in
the stock price and remaining life, the fair value of the embedded derivative instrument increased to $3,249,000 at June 30, 2005. The change in value of $294,000 was
recorded as a non-operating expense and is included in "Loss on derivative features of note payable net" in the consolidated statement of operations. The fair value
of the instrument is included in Long-term liabilities at June 30, 2005 and subsequent changes in the fair value will be recorded in the statement of operations each
period.

The warrants vested on the date of grant, have an exercise price of $6.84 per share and expire in March 2010. The initial exercise price is subject to adjustment in the
event Microvision issues common stock or common stock equivalents at a price per share of common stock below the exercise price of the warrant. The warrants
initially meet the definition of a derivative instrument that must be accounted for as a liability under the provisions of Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 00-19,
Accounting for Derivative Financial Instruments Indexed to, and

Potentially Settled in, a Company's Own Stock, because the Company has an obligation to register the common shares underlying the warrants. Accordingly,
$1,651,000 of the cash proceeds were allocated to the warrants, which represents the fair value of the warrants on the date of issuance and the amount was recorded
as a current liability. Subsequent changes in the fair value of the warrants will be recorded in the statement of operations each period and the classification of the
warrants as a liability will be assessed at each balance sheet date. The warrants were valued using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following
assumptions: expected volatility of 75%; expected dividend yield of 0%; risk free interest rate of 4.62%; and contractual life of five years.

The remaining gross proceeds of $5,394,000 were allocated to the Notes, which resulted in a discount from the face value of $4,606,000. This discount will be
amortized to interest expense using the interest method over the life of the Notes.

Subsequent to the end of the quarter, in July 2005, the Company entered into an agreement with the purchasers of the Company's Notes to amend the Notes. In
connection with the amendment, the Company issued warrants to purchase 750,000 shares of Microvision common stock. The three year warrants have an exercise
price of $6.84 per share. The conversion price of the Amended Notes and exercise price of the warrants are subject to anti-dilution adjustments, subject to conditions.
In addition, the price at which the note holder can convert the Notes to Microvision common stock was reduced to $5.85 per share, and the price at which the
Company can manditorily convert the Notes to Microvision common stock was reduced to $10.24. The Company has pledged 1,750,000 shares of its Lumera common
stock as collateral for the Notes. As a result of the amendment, the Notes are no longer exchangeable into Lumera common stock

Future operating expenditures and capital requirements will depend on numerous factors, including the following:

The progress of research and development programs,
The progress in commercialization activities and arrangements,
The cost of filing, prosecuting, defending and enforcing any patent claims and other intellectual property rights,
Competing technological and market developments, and
Microvision's ability to establish cooperative development, joint venture and licensing arrangements.

 

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements - On December 16, 2004, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (``FASB'') issued SFAS No. 123(R), ``Share-Based
Payment'', which is a revision of SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB Opinion No. 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees, including
grants of employee stock options, to be valued at fair value on the date of grant, and to be expensed over the applicable vesting period. Pro forma disclosure of the
income statement effects of share-based payments is no longer an alternative. SFAS No. 123(R) is effective for all share-based awards granted on or after January 1,
2006. In addition, companies must also recognize compensation expense related to any awards that are not fully vested as of the effective date. Compensation expense
for the unvested awards will be measured based on the fair value of the awards previously calculated in developing the pro forma disclosures in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123.  The Company is evaluating the alternative methods for implementing SFAS No. 123(R). 

In March of 2005, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 107, which interprets SFAS No. 123(R). In particular, this SAB includes interpretive guidance



that may be applicable to the Company related to: share-based payment transactions with nonemployees; methods of valuing share-based payments; the classification
of compensation expense in the income statement; capitalization of compensation cost related to share-based payment arrangements; the accounting for income tax
effects of share-based payment arrangements upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R); the modification of employee share options prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R);
and disclosures in Management's Discussion and Analysis subsequent to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R).

 

In May of 2005, the FASB issued SFAS No. 154, "Accounting for Changes and Error Corrections" which changes the requirements for the accounting for, and
reporting of, a change in accounting principle. Previously, most voluntary changes in accounting principle were recognized by including in net income of the period of
the change the cumulative effect of changing to the new accounting principle. This Statement requires retrospective application to prior periods' financial statements
of changes in accounting principle, unless it is impracticable to determine either the period- specific effects or the cumulative effect of the change. This Statement also
requires that a change in depreciation, amortization, or depletion method for long-lived, nonfinancial assets be accounted for as a change in accounting estimate
affected by a change in accounting principle. This Statement is effective for the Company for accounting principles changed on or after January 1, 2006

Risk Factors Relating to the Microvision Business

We have a history of operating losses and expect to incur significant losses in the future.

We have had substantial losses since our inception and we anticipate an operating loss at least through the year ending December 31, 2005. We cannot assure you
that we will ever become or remain profitable.

As of June 30, 2005, we had an accumulated deficit of $199.0 million.
We incurred consolidated net losses of $128.0 million from inception through 2002, $26.2 million in 2003, $33.2 million in 2004 and $11.6 million for the
six months ended June 30, 2005.

The likelihood of our success must be considered in light of the expenses, difficulties and delays frequently encountered by companies formed to develop and market
new technologies. In particular, our operations to date have focused primarily on research and development of the scanned beam technology and development of

demonstration units. We introduced our first two commercial products during 2002. We are unable to accurately estimate future revenues and operating expenses
based upon historical performance.

We cannot be certain that we will succeed in obtaining additional development contracts or that we will be able to obtain substantial customer orders for our
products. In light of these factors, we expect to continue to incur substantial losses and negative cash flow at least through 2005 and likely thereafter. We cannot be
certain that we will achieve positive cash flow at any time in the future.

We will require additional capital to continue to fund our operations and to implement our business plan. If we do not obtain additional capital, we may be required
to limit our operations substantially. Raising additional capital may dilute the value of current shareholders' shares.

Based on our current operating plan and budgeted cash requirements, we have cash to fund operations through September 2005. We will require additional capital to
continue to fund our operations, including to:

Further develop the scanned beam technology,
Add manufacturing capacity,
Develop and protect our intellectual property rights, and
Fund long-term business development opportunities.

We will require additional cash to fund our operations in 2005. Microvision owns 3,326,000 shares of Lumera common stock that are not pledged to the holders of the
Company's notes. Based on the August 1, 2005 closing price of $4.80 the Lumera shares have a market value of $15.5 million. If revenues are less than we anticipate,
if the level and mix of revenues vary from anticipated amounts and allocations or if expenses exceed the amounts budgeted, we may require additional capital earlier
to further the development of our technologies, for expenses associated with product development, and to respond to competitive pressures or to meet unanticipated
development difficulties. In addition, our operating plan provides for the development of strategic relationships with systems and equipment manufacturers that may
require additional investments by us. Additional financing may not be available

 

 

 

to us or, if available, may not be available on terms acceptable to us on a timely basis. If adequate funds are not available to satisfy either short-term or long-term
capital requirements, we may be required to limit our operations substantially. Our capital requirements will depend on many factors, including, but not limited to,
the rate at which we can, directly or through arrangements with original equipment manufacturers, introduce products incorporating the scanned beam and optical
material technologies and the market acceptance and competitive position of such products. Raising additional capital may involve issuing securities with rights and
preferences that are senior to our common stock and may dilute the value of current shareholders' shares. This limitation of operations may include reductions in
capital expenditures and reductions in staff and discretionary cost, which may include non-contractual research cost.

The value of our investment in Lumera may decrease.

A significant portion of our assets and present source of liquidity are constituted by our investment in Lumera. Lumera's stock price is subject to fluctuation and may
decrease, lowering the value of our investment. We own approximately 30% of Lumera's common stock. Since we hold a large percentage of Lumera's common
stock, if an active market does not develop or is not sustained, it may be difficult for us to sell our shares of Lumera's common stock at an attractive price or at all.
The likelihood of Lumera's success, and the value of the common stock we hold, must be considered in light of the risks frequently encountered by early stage
companies, especially those formed to develop and market new technologies. These risks include Lumera's potential inability to establish product sales and marketing
capabilities; to establish and maintain markets for their potential products; and to continue to develop and upgrade their technologies to keep pace with changes in
technology and the growth of markets using polymer materials. If Lumera is unsuccessful in meeting these challenges, its stock price, and the value of our investment,
could decrease.

The issuance of our notes and related warrants may not have been exempt from the registration or qualification requirements under federal securities laws and the
securities laws of certain states, which would result in the purchasers having rescission rights under applicable law; in the event of a successful claim, we may incur
resulting liabilities that we may be unable to satisfy.

The initial issuance of the notes and related warrants as well as the recent amendments to the notes and related warrants might not have been exempt from the
registration or qualification requirements under federal securities laws and the securities laws of certain states.  If not exempt, among other potential remedies, a
holder of the notes could seek rescission of its investment transactions.  If our initial offering were held by a court to be in violation of the Securities Act of 1933, we
could be required to repurchase the securities sold to the purchasers in that offering at the original aggregate purchase price paid of $10 million plus statutory
interest from the date of purchase, for a period of one year following the date of the violation. We do not have sufficient cash on hand to satisfy any such claim or
other claim relating to the issuance or amendment of the notes if successful, and we may be unable to raise any needed funds.



Our Senior Secured Exchangeable Convertible Notes may adversely impact our common stockholders or limit our ability to obtain additional financing.

In March 2005, we issued the Senior Secured Exchangeable Convertible Notes (the "Notes") described in Liquidity and Capital. Among other provisions, the Notes
include material limitations on our ability to incur additional debt or incur liens while the Notes are outstanding. These limitations could materially adversely affect
our ability to raise funds we expect to need in 2006.

We cannot be certain that the scanned beam technology or products incorporating this technology will achieve market acceptance. If the scanned beam technology
does not achieve market acceptance, our revenues may not grow.

Our success will depend in part on customer acceptance of the scanned beam technology. The scanned beam technology may not be accepted by manufacturers who
use display technologies in their products, by systems

integrators who incorporate our products into their products or by consumers of these products. To be accepted, the scanned beam technology must meet the
expectations of our potential customers in the defense, industrial, medical and consumer markets. If our technology fails to achieve market acceptance, we may not be
able to continue to develop the scanned beam technology.

It may become more difficult to sell our stock in the public market.

Our common stock is listed for quotation on the NASDAQ National Market. To keep our listing on this market, we must meet NASDAQ's listing maintenance
standards. If we are unable to continue to meet NASDAQ's listing maintenance standards, our common stock could be delisted from the NASDAQ National Market.
If our common

stock were delisted, we likely would seek to list the common stock on the NASDAQ SmallCap Market, the American Stock Exchange or on a regional stock exchange.
Listing on such other market or exchange could reduce the liquidity for our common stock. If our common stock were not listed on the SmallCap Market or an
exchange, trading of our common stock would be conducted in the over-the-counter market on an electronic bulletin board established for unlisted securities or
directly through market makers in our common stock. If our common stock were to trade in the over-the- counter market, an investor would find it more difficult to
dispose of, or to obtain accurate quotations for the price of, the common stock. A delisting from the NASDAQ National Market and failure to obtain listing on such
other market or exchange would subject our securities to so-called penny stock rules that impose additional sales practice and market- making requirements on
broker-dealers who sell or make a market in such securities. Consequently, removal from the NASDAQ National Market and failure to obtain listing on another
market or exchange could affect the ability or willingness of broker-dealers to sell or make a market in our common stock and the ability of purchasers of our
common stock to sell their securities in the secondary market. In addition, when the market price of our common stock is less than $5.00 per share, we become
subject to penny stock rules even if our common stock is still listed on the NASDAQ National Market. While the penny stock rules should not affect the quotation of
our common stock on the NASDAQ National Market, these rules may further limit the market liquidity of our common stock and the ability of investors to sell our
common stock in the secondary market. During the first and second quarter of 2003, the third quarter of 2004, and the second quarter of 2005, the market price of
our stock traded below $5.00 per share. On August 1, 2005 the closing price of our stock was $6.20.

Our lack of the financial and technical resources relative to our competitors may limit our revenues, potential profits, overall market share or value.

Our current products and potential future products will compete with established manufacturers of existing products and companies developing new technologies.
Many of our competitors have substantially greater financial, technical and other resources than us. Because of their greater resources, our competitors may develop
products or technologies that are superior to our own. The introduction of superior competing products or technologies could result in reduced revenues, lower
margins or loss of market share, any of which could reduce the value of our business.

We may not be able to keep up with rapid technological change and our financial results may suffer.

The information display industry has been characterized by rapidly changing technology, accelerated product obsolescence and continuously evolving industry
standards. Our success will depend upon our ability to further develop the scanned beam technology and to cost effectively introduce new products and features in a
timely manner to meet evolving customer requirements and compete with competitors' product advances.

We may not succeed in these efforts because of:

delays in product development,
lack of market acceptance for our products, or
lack of funds to invest in product development and marketing.

The occurrence of any of the above factors could result in decreased revenues, market share and value.

We could face lawsuits related to our use of the scanned beam technology or other technologies. Defending these suits would be costly and time consuming. An
adverse outcome in any such matter could limit our ability to commercialize our technology and products, reduce our revenues and increase our operating expenses.

We are aware of several patents held by third parties that relate to certain aspects of scanned beam displays and image capture products. These patents could be used
as a basis to challenge the validity, limit the scope or limit our ability to obtain additional or broader patent rights of our patents or patents we have licensed. A
successful challenge to the validity of our patents or patents we have licensed could limit our ability to commercialize the scanned beam technology and other
technologies and, consequently, materially reduce our revenues. Moreover, we cannot be certain that patent holders or other third parties will not claim infringement
by us with respect to current

and future technology. Because U.S. patent applications are held and examined in secrecy, it is also possible that presently pending U.S. applications will eventually be
issued with claims that will be infringed by our products or the scanned beam technology. The defense and prosecution of a patent suit would be costly and time
consuming, even if the outcome were ultimately favorable to us. An adverse outcome in the defense of a patent suit could subject us to significant cost, to require
others and us to cease selling products that incorporate scanned beam technology, to cease licensing scanned beam technology or to require disputed rights to be
licensed from third parties. Such licenses, if available, would increase our operating expenses. Moreover, if claims of infringement are asserted against our future co-
development partners or customers, those partners or customers may seek indemnification from us for damages or expenses they incur.

Our planned future products are dependent on advances in technology by other companies.

We rely on and will continue to rely on technologies, such as light sources and optical components that are developed and produced by other companies. The
commercial success of certain of our planned future products will depend in part on advances in these and other technologies by other companies. Due to the current
business environment, many companies that are developing new technologies are reducing expenditures on research and development. This may delay the
development and commercialization of components we would use to manufacture certain of our planned future products.

Our products may be subject to future health and safety regulations that could increase our development and production costs.

Products incorporating scanned beam display technology could become subject to new health and safety regulations that would reduce our ability to commercialize
the scanned beam display technology. Compliance with any such new regulations would likely increase our cost to develop and produce products using the scanned
beam display technology and adversely affect our financial results.

If we cannot manufacture products at competitive prices, our financial results will be adversely affected.



To date, we have produced limited quantities of Nomad and Flic and demonstration units for research, development and demonstration purposes. The cost per unit
for these units currently exceeds the level at which we could expect to profitably sell these products. If we cannot lower our cost of production, we may face increased
demands on our financial resources, possibly requiring additional equity and/or debt financing to sustain our business operations.

Our future growth will suffer if we do not achieve sufficient market acceptance of our products to compete effectively.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability to gain acceptance of our current and future products by a large number of customers. Achieving market-based
acceptance for our products will require marketing efforts and the expenditure of financial and other resources to create product awareness and demand by potential
customers. We may be unable to offer products consistently or at all that compete effectively with products of others on the basis of price or performance. Failure to
achieve broad acceptance of our products by potential customers and to effectively compete would have a material adverse effect on our operating results.

Because we plan to continue using foreign contract manufacturers, our operating results could be harmed by economic, political, regulatory and other factors in
foreign countries.

We currently use a contract manufacturer in Asia to manufacture Flic, and we plan to continue using foreign manufacturers to manufacture some of our products
where appropriate. These international operations are subject to inherent risks, which may adversely affect us, including:

political and economic instability;
high levels of inflation, historically the case in a number of countries in Asia;
burdens and costs of compliance with a variety of foreign laws;
foreign taxes; and
changes in tariff rates or other trade and monetary policies.

 

 

 

 

If we experience delays or failures in developing commercially viable products, we may have lower revenues.

We began production of the current version of Nomad in the first quarter of 2004. In September 2002, we introduced Flic. In addition, we have developed
demonstration units incorporating the scanned beam technology. However, we must undertake additional research, development and testing before we are able to
develop additional products for commercial sale. Product development delays by us or our potential product development partners, or the inability to enter into
relationships with these partners, may delay or prevent us from introducing products for commercial sale.

If we cannot supply products in commercial quantities, we will not achieve commercial success.

We are developing our capability to manufacture products in commercial quantities. Our success depends in part on our ability to provide our components and
future products in commercial quantities at competitive prices. Accordingly, we will be required to obtain access, through business partners or contract
manufacturers, to manufacturing capacity and processes for the commercial production of our expected future products. We cannot be certain that we will
successfully obtain access to sufficient manufacturing resources. Future manufacturing limitations of our suppliers could result in a limitation on the number of
products incorporating our technology that we are able to produce.

If our licensors and we are unable to obtain effective intellectual property protection for our products and technology, we may be unable to compete with other
companies.

Intellectual property protection for our products is important and uncertain. If we do not obtain effective intellectual property protection for our products, processes
and technology, we may be subject to increased competition. Our commercial success will depend in part on our ability and the ability of the University of
Washington and our other licensors to maintain the proprietary nature of the scanned beam display and other key technologies by securing valid and enforceable
patents and effectively maintaining unpatented technology as trade secrets. We try to protect our proprietary technology by seeking to obtain United States and
foreign patents in our name, or licenses to third-party patents, related to proprietary technology, inventions, and improvements that may be important to the
development of our business. However, our patent position and the patent position of the University of Washington and other licensors involve complex legal and
factual questions. The standards that the United States Patent and Trademark Office and its foreign counterparts use to grant patents are not always applied
predictably or uniformly and can change. Additionally, the scope of patents are subject to interpretation by courts and their validity can be subject to challenges and
defenses, including challenges and defenses based on the existence of prior art. Consequently, we cannot be certain as to the extent to which we will be able to obtain
patents for our new products and technology or the extent to which the patents that we already own or license from others protect our products and technology.
Reduction in scope of protection or invalidation of our licensed or owned patents, or our inability to obtain new patents, may enable other companies to develop
products that compete with ours on the basis of the same or similar technology.

We also rely on the law of trade secrets to protect unpatented know-how and technology to maintain our competitive position. We try to protect this know-how and
technology by limiting access to the trade secrets to those of our employees, contractors and partners with a need to know such information and by entering into
confidentiality agreements with parties that have access to it, such as our employees, consultants and business partners. Any of these parties could breach the
agreements and disclose our trade secrets or confidential information, or our competitors might learn of the information in some other way. If any trade secret not
protected by a patent were to be disclosed to or independently developed by a competitor, our competitive position could be materially harmed.

We could be exposed to significant product liability claims that could be time-consuming and costly, divert management attention and adversely affect our ability to
obtain and maintain insurance coverage.

We may be subject to product liability claims if any of our product applications are alleged to be defective or cause harmful effects. For example, because our scanned
beam displays are designed to scan a low power beam of colored light into the user's eye, the testing, manufacture, marketing and sale of these products involve an
inherent risk that product liability claims will be asserted against us. Product liability claims or other claims related to our products, regardless of their outcome,
could require us to spend significant time and money in litigation, divert management time and attention, require us to pay significant damages, harm our reputation
or hinder acceptance of our products. Any successful product liability claim may prevent us from obtaining adequate product liability insurance in the future on
commercially desirable or reasonable terms. An inability to obtain sufficient insurance coverage at an acceptable cost or otherwise to protect against potential
product liability claims could prevent or inhibit the commercialization of our products.

We rely heavily on a limited number of development contracts with the U.S. government, which are subject to immediate termination by the government for
convenience at any time, and the termination of one or more of these contracts could have a material adverse impact on our operations.

During 2004 and 2003, 42%, and 49% respectively, of Microvision's consolidated revenue was derived from performance on a limited number of development
contracts with the U.S. government. Therefore, any significant

disruption or deterioration of our relationship with the U.S. government would significantly reduce our revenues. Our government programs must compete with
programs managed by other contractors for limited amounts and uncertain levels of funding. The total amount and levels of funding are susceptible to significant



fluctuations on a year-to-year basis. Our competitors continuously engage in efforts to expand their business relationships with the government and are likely to
continue these efforts in the future. Our contracts with the government are subject to immediate termination by the government for convenience at any time. The
government may choose to use contractors with competing display technologies or it may decide to discontinue any of our programs altogether. In addition, those
development contracts that we do obtain require ongoing compliance with applicable government regulations. Termination of our development contracts, a shift in
government spending to other programs in which we are not involved, a reduction in government spending generally, or our failure to meet applicable government
regulations could have severe consequences for our results of operations.

Our products have long sales cycles, which make it difficult to plan our expenses and forecast our revenues.

Our products have lengthy sales cycles that involve numerous steps including discussion of a product application, exploring the technical feasibility of a proposed
product, evaluating the costs of manufacturing a product and manufacturing or contracting out the manufacturing of the product. Our long sales cycle, which can
last several years, makes it difficult to predict the quarter in which sales will occur. Delays in sales could cause significant variability in our revenues and operating
results for any particular quarterly period.

Our exploratory arrangements may not lead to products that will be profitable.

Our developmental contracts, including our relationships with parties such as the U.S. government, Ethicon Endo-Surgery, Inc., Canon, BMW and Volkswagen of
America, are exploratory in nature and are intended to develop new types of products for new applications. These efforts may prove unsuccessful and these
relationships may not result in the development of products that will be profitable.

Our revenues are highly sensitive to developments in the defense industry.

Our revenues to date have been derived principally from product development research relating to defense applications of the scanned beam display technology. We
believe that development programs and sales of potential products in this market will represent a significant portion of our future revenues. Developments that
adversely affect the defense sector, including delays in government funding and a general economic downturn, could cause our revenues to decline substantially.

Our Virtual Retinal Display technology depends on our licenses from the University of Washington. If we lose our rights under the licenses, our operations would be
adversely affected.

We have acquired the exclusive rights to the Virtual Retinal Display under a license from the University of Washington. The license expires upon expiration of the
last of the University of Washington's patents that relate to this technology, which we currently anticipate will not occur until after 2011. We could lose our exclusivity
under the license if we fail to respond to an infringement action or fail to use our best efforts to commercialize the licensed technology. In addition, the University of
Washington may terminate the license upon our breach and has the right to consent to all sublicense arrangements. If we were to lose our rights under the license, or
if the University of Washington were to refuse to consent to future sublicenses, we would lose a competitive advantage in the market, and may even lose the ability to
commercialize our products completely. Either of these results could substantially decrease our revenues.

We are dependent on third parties in order to develop, manufacture, sell and market our products.

Our strategy for commercializing the scanned beam technology and products incorporating the scanned beam technology includes entering into cooperative
development, manufacturing, sales and marketing arrangements with corporate partners, original equipment manufacturers and other third parties. We cannot be
certain that we will be able to negotiate arrangements on acceptable terms, if at all, or that these arrangements will be successful in yielding commercially viable
products. If we cannot establish these arrangements, we would require additional capital to undertake such activities on our own and would require extensive
manufacturing, sales and marketing expertise that we do not currently possess and that may be difficult to obtain. In addition, we could encounter significant delays
in introducing the scanned beam technology or find that the development, manufacture or sale of products incorporating the scanned beam technology would not be
feasible. To the extent that we enter into cooperative development, sales and marketing or other joint venture arrangements, our revenues will depend upon the
performance of third parties. We cannot be certain that any such arrangements will be successful.

Loss of any of our key personnel could have a negative effect on the operation of our business.

Our success depends on our executive officers and other key personnel and on the ability to attract and retain qualified new personnel. Achievement of our business
objectives will require substantial additional expertise in the areas of sales and marketing, research and product development and manufacturing. Competition for
qualified personnel in these fields is intense, and the inability to attract and retain additional highly skilled personnel, or the loss of key personnel, could reduce our
revenues and adversely affect our business.

Our quarterly performance may vary substantially and this variance, as well as general market conditions, may cause our stock price to fluctuate greatly and
potentially expose us to litigation.

Our revenues to date have been generated from a limited number of development contracts with U.S. government entities and commercial partners. Our quarterly
operating results may vary significantly based on:

reductions or delays in funding of development programs involving new information display technologies by the U.S. government or our current or
prospective commercial partners;
changes in evaluations and recommendations by any securities analysts following our stock or our industry generally;
announcements by other companies in our industry;
changes in business or regulatory conditions;
announcements or implementation by our competitors of technological innovations or new products;
the status of particular development programs and the timing of performance under specific development agreements;
economic and stock market conditions; or
other factors unrelated to our company or industry.

In one or more future quarters, our results of operations may fall below the expectations of securities analysts and investors and the trading price of our common
stock may decline as a consequence. In addition, following periods of volatility in the market price of a company's securities, shareholders often have instituted
securities class action

litigation against that company. If we become involved in a class action suit, it could divert the attention of management, and, if adversely determined, could require
us to pay substantial damages.

If we fail to manage expansion effectively, our revenue and expenses could be adversely affected.

Our ability to successfully offer products and implement our business plan in a rapidly evolving market requires an effective planning and management process. We
have significantly expanded the scope of our operations. The growth in business and relationships with customers and other third parties has placed, and will
continue to place, a significant strain on our management systems and resources. We will need to continue to improve our financial and managerial controls,
reporting systems and procedures and will need to continue to train and manage our work force.

 

 



 

 

 

 

ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Substantially all of the Company's cash equivalents and investment securities are at fixed interest rates and, as such, the fair value of these instruments is affected by
changes in market interest rates. Due to the generally short-term maturities of these investment securities, Microvision believes that the market risk arising from its
holdings of these financial instruments is not material

The Company's investment policy restricts investments to ensure principal preservation and liquidity. The Company invests cash that it expects to use within
approximately sixty days in U.S. treasury-backed instruments. The Company invests cash in excess of approximately sixty days of its requirements in high quality
investment securities. The investment securities portfolio is limited to U.S. government and U.S. government agency debt securities and other high- grade securities
generally with maturities of three years or less.

The weighted average maturities of cash equivalents and investment securities available-for-sale as of June 30, 2005, are as follows (dollar amounts in thousands):

                                      Amount      Percent
                                     ---------  ---------
Cash and equivalents                   $2,327     100.00%
Less than one year                         --         --
                                     ---------  ---------
                                        2,327     100.00%
                                     =========  =========

 

Microvision owns 4,976,000 total shares of Lumera common stock, of which 1,750,000 are pledged as collateral to the holders of the company's convertible notes.
Based on Lumera's closing stock price on August 1, 2005 of $4.80 per share, the market value of Microvision's investment in Lumera common stock is $23.9 million,
and the market value of the unpledged shares of Lumera common stock is $15.5 million. The market price of Lumera's common stock is subject to fluctuations based
on Lumera's financial performance and overall market conditions.

Presently, all of the Company's development contract payments are denominated in U.S. dollars and, consequently, the Company believes it has no material foreign
currency exchange rate risk. However, in the future Microvision may enter into development contracts or product sales in foreign currencies that may subject
Microvision to foreign exchange rate risk.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we have evaluated the
effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report and, based on
this evaluation, our principal executive officer and principal financial officer have concluded that these disclosure controls and procedures are effective. There were
no changes in our internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) that occurred during the period covered by this report that
have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II

OTHER INFORMATION

 

ITEM 4.        SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

The Company's Annual Shareholder's Meeting was held on June 30, 2005.  The following proposal was introduced and voted on:

 

Proposal No. 1 - Election of Directors

Name Votes For Votes Against

Richard F. Rutkowski 19,266,789 953,315

Stephen R. Willey 20,015,005 205,099

Jacqueline Brandwynne 19,375,490 844,614

Richard A. Cowell 19,840,704 379,400

Slade Gorton 20,026,228 193,876

Walter J. Lack 19,299,788 920,316

Robert A. Ratliffe 19,530,966 689,138

Dennis Reimer 19,527,961 692,143

   

 

Proposal No. 2 - Amendment to the Independent Director Stock Option Plan



For Against Abstain

4,629,712 2,395,131 106,475

 

ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 Of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

10.1 Lease Agreement between CarrAmerica Reality Operating Partnership, L/P. and Microvision, Inc. dated
June 14, 2005

 

 

SIGNATURES

In accordance with the requirements of the Exchange Act, the registrant caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

 MICROVISION, INC.

Date: August 9, 2005 BY: /s/ Richard F. Rutkowski

  Richard F. Rutkowski

  Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

Date: August 9, 2005 BY: /s/ Jeff Wilson

  Jeff Wilson

  Vice President, Accounting

(Principal Accounting Officer)
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31.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
as adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

31.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification Pursuant to Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 Of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.1 Chief Executive Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

32.2 Chief Financial Officer Certification pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States
Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

10.1 Lease Agreement between CarrAmerica Reality Operating Partnership, L/P. and Microvision, Inc. dated
June 14, 2005
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Lease

 

REDMOND HILLTOP
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Between

 

MICROVISION, INC.,

(Tenant)

and

 

 

CARRAMERICA REALTY OPERATING PARTNERSHIP, L.P.

(Landlord)

 

July 15, 2005
 

LEASE

 

THIS LEASE (the "Lease") is made as of June ____, 2005 between CarrAmerica Realty Operating Partnership, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (the "Landlord") and the
Tenant as named in the Schedule below. The term "Project" means the buildings (the "Buildings") known as "Building B" located at 6222 - 185th Avenue NE, Redmond, WA
98052, and "Building C" located at 6244 - 185th Avenue NE, Redmond, WA 98052, and the land (the " Land") located within the Project known as Redmond Hilltop Corporate
Center, Redmond, Washington. "Premises" means that part of the Project leased to Tenant described in the Schedule and outlined on Appendix A. The Land is legally described
on Appendix F hereto.

The following schedule (the "Schedule") is an integral part of this Lease. Terms defined in this Schedule shall have the same meaning throughout the Lease.

SCHEDULE

1. Tenant: Microvision, Inc., a Delaware corporation



2. Premises: 43,046 rentable square feet in Building B, and 23,917 rentable square feet located in Building C

3. Total Rentable Square Feet of the Premises: 66,963 (as measured by 1996 BOMA Standard Units of Measurement).

4. Tenant's Proportionate Share: (a) 100%, based upon a total of 43,046 rentable square feet in Building B, and 50%, based on a total of 47,834
rentable square feet in Building C, as to all Operating Costs relating solely to the respective Buildings, including, without limitation, HVAC maintenance
and repairs, elevator maintenance and repairs, building management fee, janitorial services and supplies, window cleaning and property insurance; (b)
73.7% (based upon a total of 90,880 rentable square feet in the Buildings) of all Operating Costs of the Project, excluding all Operating Costs attributable
to all or any part of any Building in the Project, but including without limitation, landscape costs, parking lot repair and maintenance, and Landlord's
liability insurance costs; (c) 100% of all Taxes applicable to Building B and the separately assessed tax parcel on which it is located, and 50% of all
Taxes applicable to Building C and the separately assessed tax parcel upon which it is located; and (d) an amount fairly and equitably apportioned by
Landlord, based on the total rentable square feet in the Premises and the total rentable square feet in the buildings in Landlord's Pacific Northwest
portfolio, of Landlord's administration and overhead costs ("Landlord's Overhead"). Tenant's obligation for Landlord's Overhead shall not increase by
more than four percent (4%) per Fiscal Year on a compounding and cumulative basis over the course of the Term.

5. Security Deposit: Letter of Credit, as set forth in Section 20, below

6. Tenant's Real Estate Broker for this Lease: Washington Partners, Inc.

7. Landlord's Real Estate Broker for this Lease: Broderick Group, Inc.

8. Tenant Improvements, if any: See the Tenant Improvement Agreement attached hereto as Appendix C

9. Commencement Date: The later of (a) the date which is eight (8) months following the date that Landlord shall have delivered exclusive possession
of the Premises to Tenant for purposes of construction of its Initial Improvements (as defined in and pursuant to Appendix C hereto, Tenant Improvement
Agreement) or (b) February 1, 2006 (subject to Section 3B, below, and subject to any Landlord Delay, as set forth in Appendix C hereto). Landlord and
Tenant shall execute a Commencement Date Confirmation substantially in the form of Appendix E promptly following the Commencement Date.

10. Termination Date/Term : Ninety (90) months (7.5 years) after the Commencement Date, or if the Commencement Date is not the first day of a
month, then 90 months after the first day of the following month.

11. Guarantor: N/A

12. Base Rent:

Period

Months 1 - 7*

Months 8 - 24

Months 25 - 48

Months 49 - 60

Months 61 - 72

Months 73 - 84

Months 85 - 90

Annual Base
Rent per RSF

$12.00

$12.00

$12.50

$13.00

$13.50

$14.00

$14.50

Annual
Base Rent

$803,556.00

$803,556.00

$837,037.50

$870,519.00

$904,000.50

$937,482.00

$970,963.50

Monthly
Base Rent

$66,963.00

$66,963.00

$69,753.13

$72,543.25

$75,333.38

$78,123.50

$80,913.63

*Base Rent for months 1 - 7 of the Lease term shall be abated.

1. LEASE AGREEMENT. On the terms stated in this Lease, Landlord leases the Premises to Tenant, and Tenant leases the Premises from Landlord, for the Term beginning on
the Commencement Date and ending on the Termination Date unless extended or sooner terminated pursuant to this Lease. Landlord also grants to Tenant nonexclusive rights
to the use of all common areas located from time to time in the Building and areas adjacent thereto and the benefit of all other easements, rights, and provisions of any covenants
and restrictions pertaining to the Building and the Project which are intended for the common use and enjoyment of other occupants and tenants thereof.

2. RENT.

A. Types of Rent. Tenant shall pay the following Rent in the form of a check to Landlord at the following address:

CarrAmerica Realty O.P, L.P.

t/a Redmond Hilltop

P.O. Box 642926

Pittsburgh, PA 15264-2926

or by wire transfer as follows:

PNC Bank

PNC Transit Number: 043000096

PNC Account Number: 1004339188

Reference: Customer t/a Redmond Hilltop

or in such other manner as Landlord may notify Tenant:

(1) Base Rent in monthly installments in advance, the first monthly installment payable on the Commencement Date and thereafter on or before the first day of
each month of the Term in the amount set forth on the Schedule.

(2) Operating Cost Share Rent in an amount equal to the Tenant's Proportionate Share of the Operating Costs for the applicable fiscal year of the Lease, paid
monthly in advance, the first monthly installment payable on the Commencement Date and thereafter on or before the first day of each month of the Term, in an



estimated amount. Definitions of Operating Costs and Tenant's Proportionate Share, and the method for billing and payment of Operating Cost Share Rent are set
forth in Sections 2B, 2C and 2D.

(3) Tax Share Rent in an amount equal to the Tenant's Proportionate Share of the Taxes for the applicable fiscal year of this Lease, paid monthly in advance, the
first monthly installment payable on the Commencement Date and thereafter on or before the first day of each month of the Term, in an estimated amount. A
definition of Taxes and the method for billing and payment of Tax Share Rent are set forth in Sections 2B, 2C and 2D.

(4) Additional Rent in the amount of all costs, expenses, liabilities, and amounts which Tenant is required to pay under this Lease, excluding Base Rent,
Operating Cost Share Rent, and Tax Share Rent, but including any interest for late payment of any item of Rent.

(5) Rent as used in this Lease means Base Rent, Operating Cost Share Rent, Tax Share Rent and Additional Rent. Tenant's agreement to pay Rent is an
independent covenant, with no right of setoff, deduction or counterclaim of any kind.

B. Payment of Operating Cost Share Rent and Tax Share Rent.

(1) Payment of Estimated Operating Cost Share Rent and Tax Share Rent. Landlord shall estimate the Operating Costs and Taxes of the Project by April 1 of
each year, or as soon as reasonably possible thereafter. If Landlord receives more accurate information with respect to the actual Operating Costs and Taxes
(such as the final real estate tax assessment or tax rate for the Project) Landlord may revise these estimates to more accurately reflect the actual costs. Landlord
agrees that during the first year of the Lease, the aggregate of Tenant's obligation for Operating Cost Share Rent (exclusive of charges for water, electricity, trash
hauling, gas, and janitorial services) and Tax Share Rent shall not exceed $4.08 per rentable square foot of Premises area.

Within the later of (a) ten (10) days after receiving the original or revised estimate from Landlord, or (b) the date that the next monthly Base Rent payment is
due, Tenant shall pay Landlord one-twelfth (1/12th) of Tenant's Proportionate Share of this estimate, multiplied by the number of months that have elapsed in the
applicable fiscal year to the date of such payment including the current month, minus payments previously made by Tenant for the months elapsed. On the first
day of each month thereafter, Tenant shall pay Landlord one-twelfth (1/12th) of Tenant's Proportionate Share of this estimate, until a new estimate becomes
applicable.

(2) Correction of Operating Cost Share Rent. Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a report for the previous Fiscal Year, as defined below (the " Operating Cost
Report") by May 15 of each year, or as soon as reasonably possible thereafter (provided that the report will be provided no later than June 15 of each year),
setting forth (a) the actual Operating Costs incurred, (b) the amount of Operating Cost Share Rent due from Tenant, and (c) the amount of Operating Cost Share
Rent paid by Tenant. Within the later of (i) twenty (20) days after such delivery, or (ii) the date that the next monthly Base Rent payment is due, Tenant shall pay
to Landlord the amount due minus the amount paid. If the amount paid exceeds the amount due, Landlord shall apply the excess to Tenant's payments of
Operating Cost Share Rent next coming due. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Tenant's obligation for "Controllable Operating Costs," which shall mean those
costs payable pursuant to maintenance, repair or other service contracts entered into between Landlord and third parties (as opposed to costs incurred as a result
of one-time or occasional third party services), shall not increase by more than four percent (4%) per Fiscal Year on a compounding and cumulative basis over
the course of the Term. Attached as Appendix H is a schedule of Operating Cost categories for the 2005 Fiscal Year, including the Controllable Operating Cost
categories.

(3) Correction of Tax Share Rent . Landlord shall deliver to Tenant a report for the previous fiscal year (the "Tax Report") by May 15 of each year, or as soon as
reasonably possible thereafter (provided that the report will be provided no later than June 15 of each year), setting forth (a) the actual Taxes, (b) the amount of
Tax Share Rent due from Tenant, and (c) the amount of Tax Share Rent paid by Tenant. Within the later of (i) twenty (20) days after such delivery, or (ii) the
next monthly Base Rent payment, Tenant shall pay to Landlord the amount due from Tenant minus the amount paid by Tenant. If the amount paid exceeds the
amount due, Landlord shall apply the excess to Tenant's payments of Tax Share Rent next coming due.

(4) Information. In addition to any other rights Tenant has to audit the books and records of Landlord, Tenant may request, and Landlord agrees promptly to
provide (within five (5) business days), such additional documentation and assistance as may reasonably be required to allow Tenant to verify that the amounts to
be paid under this Section 2B are correct and appropriate as provided under this Lease. At a minimum, such documentation will provide a statement in
substantially the form of Appendix H, showing the applicable expense item for the applicable year and the prior year.

C. Definitions.

(1) Included Operating Costs. "Operating Costs" means any expenses, costs and disbursements of any kind other than Taxes, paid or incurred by Landlord in
connection with the management, maintenance, operation, insurance, repair and other related activities in connection with any part of the Project and of the
personal property, fixtures, machinery, equipment, systems and apparatus used in connection therewith, including the cost of providing those services required to
be furnished by Landlord under this Lease. Operating Costs shall also include the costs of any capital improvements which are intended to reduce Operating
Costs or improve safety, and those made to keep the Project in compliance with governmental requirements applicable from time to time (collectively, " Included
Capital Items"); provided, that the costs of any Included Capital Item shall be amortized by Landlord over the estimated useful life of such item and such
amortized costs are only included in Operating Costs for that portion of the useful life of the Included Capital Item which falls within the Term.

If the Project is not fully occupied during any portion of any fiscal year, or if Landlord does not furnish any particular service to a tenant (other than Tenant), the
cost of which would have constituted an Operating Cost, then Landlord may adjust (an "Equitable Adjustment") Operating Costs to equal what would have been
incurred by Landlord had the Project been fully occupied or had such service been furnished by Landlord to the tenant. This Equitable Adjustment shall apply
only to Operating Costs which are variable and therefore increase as occupancy of the Project increases. Landlord may incorporate the Equitable Adjustment in
its estimates of Operating Costs.

(2) Excluded Operating Costs. Operating Costs shall not include:

(a) costs including permit, license and inspection costs, incurred with respect to the installation of tenants' or other occupants' improvements in the
Buildings or incurred in renovating or otherwise improving, decorating, painting or redecorating vacant space for tenants or other occupants of the
Buildings;

(b) the cost of any repairs, alterations, additions, changes, tools, equipment replacements and the like which under generally accepted accounting
principles and practices are properly classified as Capital Items other than Included Capital Items;

(c) interest, principal, points and fee payments on mortgages or any other debt costs, or rental payments on any ground lease of the Project;

(d) real estate brokers' leasing commissions;

(e) legal fees, space planner fees and advertising expenses incurred with regard to leasing the Buildings or portions thereof;

(f) any cost or expenditure for which Landlord is reimbursed, by insurance proceeds or otherwise, except by Operating Cost Share Rent;

(g) the cost of any service or other benefit furnished to any office tenant of the Project which Landlord does not make available to Tenant;

(h) depreciation (except on any Included Capital Items);

(i) ground lease rental;



(j) costs of correcting defects in construction of the Buildings (as opposed to the cost of normal repair, maintenance and replacement expected
with the construction materials and equipment installed in the Buildings in light of their specifications);

(k) legal and auditing fees which are for the benefit of Landlord such as collecting delinquent rents, preparing tax returns and other financial
statements, and audits other than those incurred in connection with the preparation of reports required pursuant to Section 2B above;

(l) the wages of any employee for services not related directly to the management, maintenance, operation and repair of the Buildings;

(m) fines, penalties and interest;

(n) the costs of painting, decorating or making alterations exclusively benefiting the Premises or the premises of other tenants of the Buildings, or
the cost of any work furnished by Landlord without charge as an inducement for a tenant to lease space (i.e., free rent, improvement allowances);

(o) the cost of constructing, installing, operating or maintaining any special service or facility such as an observatory, broadcasting facility,
luncheon club, athletic or recreational club, cafeteria or dining facility;

(p) expenditures for repairs or maintenance which are covered by warranties, guarantees or service contracts (but shall include the cost of any
such service contracts), to the extent that Landlord has received or will receive the benefit of such warranties or guarantees. Landlord agrees to
use commercially reasonable efforts to enforce the terms of all such warranties and guarantees;

(q) bad debt loss, rent loss or reserves for bad debt or rent loss;

(r) Landlord's general corporate overhead and general and administrative expenses, except as set forth in Item 4 of the Schedule;

(s) costs occasioned by the violation of law by Landlord, any other tenant, or their respective agents, officers, employees or contractors;

(t) costs arising from Landlord's charitable or political contributions;

(u) costs of services to the extent they are materially and substantially in excess of competitive market rates for such services;

(v) to the extent Tenant leases only the first floor in either Building, the cost of repair and maintenance of the elevator; and

(w) costs for which Landlord has been compensated by a management fee.

(3) Taxes. "Taxes" means any and all taxes, assessments and charges of any kind, general or special, ordinary or extraordinary, levied against the Project, which
Landlord shall pay or become obligated to pay in connection with the ownership, leasing, renting, management, use, occupancy, control or operation of the
Project or of the personal property, fixtures, machinery, equipment, systems and apparatus used in connection therewith. Taxes shall include real estate taxes,
personal property taxes, sewer rents, water rents, special or general assessments, transit taxes, ad valorem taxes, and any tax levied on the rents hereunder or the
interest of Landlord under this Lease (the "Rent Tax"). Taxes shall also include all fees and other costs and expenses paid by Landlord in reviewing any tax and
in seeking a refund or reduction of any Taxes, whether or not the Landlord is ultimately successful.

For any year, the amount to be included in Taxes (a) from taxes or assessments payable in installments, shall be the amount of the installments (with any interest)
due and payable during such year, and (b) from all other Taxes, shall at Landlord's election be the amount accrued, assessed, or otherwise imposed for such year
or the amount due and payable in such year. Any refund or other adjustment to any Taxes by the taxing authority, shall apply during the year in which the
adjustment is made. Taxes shall not include any (y) net income, capital, stock, succession, transfer, franchise, gift, estate or inheritance tax, excise taxes imposed
upon Landlord based upon gross or net rentals (except for Rent Tax, as defined above), or other income received by it or any Business and Occupation Tax; (z)
Taxes for any time prior to the Commencement Date hereof of after the expiration or earlier termination hereof. If requested by Tenant, Landlord shall take all
reasonable action necessary to preserve the right to contest any Taxes, including paying them under protest, and shall consult with Tenant, and act in good faith
in cooperation with Tenant to contest or seek recovery of Taxes if and to the extent such action is reasonable, as determined by Landlord in its business judgment
exercised in good faith. Any payment of Taxes by Tenant either directly or by way of reimbursement to Landlord pursuant to any provision of this Lease shall be,
whenever such Taxes have not been directly assessed against Tenant, subject to appropriate substantiation by Landlord upon the request of Tenant. All costs
incurred by Landlord in any such contest, including attorneys' fees and court costs, shall be considered Taxes for purposes of this Lease. Tenant shall be entitled
to its Proportionate Share of any refund (net of Tenant's or Landlord's expenses in obtaining same) obtained by reason of any such proceeding or otherwise
whether obtained during or after the expiration of the Term, except that if the refund shall relate to the year in which the Term of this Lease commences or
expires, the refund (after deducting all costs of Landlord or Tenant in obtaining same) shall be apportioned between Landlord and Tenant according to the
number of days within the Term.

(4) Lease Year. "Lease Year" means each consecutive twelve-month period beginning with the Commencement Date, except that if the Commencement Date is
not the first day of a calendar month, then the first Lease Year shall be the period from the Commencement Date through the final day of the twelve months after
the first day of the following month, and each subsequent Lease Year shall be the twelve months following the prior Lease Year.

(5) Fiscal Year. "Fiscal Year" means the calendar year, except that the first fiscal year and the last fiscal year of the Term may be a partial calendar year.

D. Computation of Base Rent and Rent Adjustments.

(1) Prorations. If this Lease begins on a day other than the first day of a month, the Base Rent, Operating Cost Share Rent and Tax Share Rent shall be prorated
for such partial month based on the actual number of days in such month. If this Lease begins on a day other than the first day, or ends on a day other than the last
day, of the Fiscal Year, Operating Cost Share Rent and Tax Share Rent shall be prorated for the applicable Fiscal Year.

(2) Default Interest. Any sum due from Tenant to Landlord not paid within five (5) days of its due date shall bear interest from the date due until paid at twelve
percent (12%) per annum.

(3) Rent Adjustments. The square footage of the Premises and the Buildings set forth in the Schedule are conclusively deemed to be the actual square footage
thereof, without regard to any subsequent remeasurement of the Premises or the Buildings. If any Operating Cost paid in one fiscal year relates to more than one
Fiscal Year, Landlord may proportionately allocate such Operating Cost among the related fiscal years.

(4) Books and Records. Landlord shall maintain books and records reflecting the Operating Costs and Taxes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles and management practices. Tenant and/or its selected auditor, provided such auditor is required to be a certified public accountant ("Auditor"), shall
have the right to audit Landlord's records, including applicable backup materials, at Landlord's office upon at least seventy-two (72) hours' prior notice during
normal business hours during the three hundred sixty-five (365) days following the respective delivery of the Operating Cost Report or the Tax Report. The
results of any such inspection shall be kept strictly confidential by Tenant and its agents (except that such results may be used in any proceedings to resolve
disputes relating to charges that are the subject of such audits), and Tenant and its Auditor must agree, in their contract for such services, to such confidentiality
restrictions and shall specifically agree that the results shall not be made available to any other tenant of the Buildings. Unless Tenant sends to Landlord any
written exception to either such report within said 365-day period, such report shall be deemed final and accepted by Tenant. Tenant shall pay the amount shown
on both reports in the manner prescribed in this Lease, whether or not Tenant takes any such written exception, without any prejudice to such exception. If Tenant
makes a timely exception, Landlord shall respond within thirty (30) days of receipt of the exception notice, and if the parties are not able to resolve any dispute as
to the amounts due within forty-five (45) days thereafter, the matter will be submitted for arbitration as provided in Section 2.E below. If it is determined that
Landlord's original determination of annual Operating Costs or Taxes overstated the amounts thereof by more than three percent (3%), then in addition to the



reimbursement of the overpayment, together with interest at the rate of 12% per annum, Landlord will pay to Tenant the cost of the Auditor who performed the
audit.

(5) Miscellaneous. So long as Tenant is in default of any obligation under this Lease, Tenant shall not be entitled to any refund of any amount from Landlord. If
this Lease is terminated for any reason prior to the annual determination of Operating Cost Share Rent or Tax Share Rent, either party shall pay the full amount
due to the other within fifteen (15) days after Landlord's notice to Tenant of the amount when it is determined. Landlord may commingle any payments made
with respect to Operating Cost Share Rent or Tax Share Rent, without payment of interest.

E. Arbitration of Tenant Disputes re Operating Cost Share Rent or Tax Share Rent.

In the event that the parties are unable to resolve any dispute between them regarding Tenant's obligation for Operating Cost Share Rent or Tax Share Rent within the last forty-
five (45) day period set forth in Section 2D(4) above, either party may, within an additional fifteen (15) day period thereafter, demand binding arbitration pursuant to the
provisions set forth below. In the event neither party shall provide the other with notice of demand for arbitration within such additional fifteen (15) day period, Tenant shall be
deemed to have waived any further right to contest the amounts that were the subject of the process described in Section 2D(4), and Landlord's statements thereof shall be final
and binding on the parties.

(1) Notice of Demand. Either party may demand arbitration by notifying the other party in writing in accordance with the notice provisions of this Lease. The notice shall
describe the reasons for such demand, the amount involved, if any, and the particular remedy sought, and shall specifically reference the required ten (10) day response time
specified in Section 2E(2) below. The notice shall also list the name of one arbitrator qualified in accordance with subsection (3).

(2) Response. The party that has not demanded arbitration shall respond to the notice of demand within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of such notice by delivering a written
response in accordance with the notice provisions of this Lease. The response shall list the name of a second arbitrator qualified in accordance with Section 2E(3), below. The
response shall also describe the amount involved, and the particular remedy sought. If a party fails to respond timely to the notice of demand, the arbitrator selected by the party
making such demand under Section 2E(1), above, shall resolve the dispute, controversy or claim within seven (7) calendar days of the deadline for response.

(3) Qualified Arbitrator. Any arbitrator selected in accordance with Sections 2E(1) and 2E(2), above, shall be any natural person not employed by either of the parties or any
parent or affiliated partnership, corporation or other enterprise thereof, who shall also be a property management professional, commercial real estate broker, or real estate
attorney with at least ten (10) years' experience in the Seattle-Bellevue- Redmond area real state market.

(4) Appointment of Third Arbitrator. If a party responds timely to a notice of demand for expedited arbitration under Section 2E(2), the two arbitrators shall appoint a third
arbitrator who shall be qualified in accordance with Section 2E(3), above. Such third arbitrator shall be appointed within seven (7) calendar days of receipt by the party
demanding arbitration of notice of response provided for under Subsection 2E(3). If the two arbitrators fail to timely appoint a third arbitrator, the third arbitrator shall be
appointed by the parties if they can agree within a period of five (5) calendar days. If the parties cannot timely agree, then either party may request the appointment of such third
arbitrator by the Presiding Judge of the Superior Court of King County, Washington, and neither party shall raise any question as to the court's full power and jurisdiction to
entertain such application and to make such appointment.

(5) Arbitration Hearing; Discovery; Venue. The arbitration hearing shall commence within ten (10) calendar days of appointment of the third arbitrator as described in Section
2E(4). The hearing shall in no event last longer than two (2) calendar days. There shall be no discovery or dispositive motion practice (such as motions for summary judgment or
to dismiss or the like) except as may be permitted by the arbitrators; and any such discovery or dispositive motion practice permitted by the arbitrators shall accommodate to the
maximum extent practical the time limits contained herein. The arbitrators shall not be bound by any rules of civil procedure or evidence, but rather shall consider such writings
and oral presentations as reasonable business persons would use in the conduct of their day to day affairs, and may require the parties to submit some or all of their case by
written declaration or such other manner of presentation as the arbitrators may determine to be appropriate. It is the intention of the parties to limit live testimony and cross
examination to the extent absolutely necessary to insure a fair hearing to the parties on significant and material issues. Venue of any arbitration hearing conducted pursuant to
this Section shall be in Seattle, Washington.

(6) Decision. The arbitrators' decision shall be made in no event later than seven (7) calendar days of the commencement of the arbitration hearing described in Section 2E(5). If
three (3) arbitrators are appointed, a majority decision shall prevail. The award shall be final and binding upon the parties. The arbitrators may award reasonable attorney's fees
and costs to the substantially prevailing party.

3. PREPARATION AND CONDITION OF PREMISES; POSSESSION AND SURRENDER OF PREMISES.

A. Condition of Premises. Except to the extent of any Initial Improvements item on the Schedule, or any obligation with respect to Landlord's representations and warranties
expressly provided in this Lease, Landlord is leasing the Premises to Tenant "as is", without any obligation to alter, remodel, improve, repair or decorate any part of the
Premises; provided that Tenant's acceptance of the Premises does not relieve Landlord of any of its ongoing maintenance and repair obligations set forth in this Lease.

B. Tenant's Possession. If Tenant takes possession of any part of the Premises prior to the Commencement Date set forth in item 9 of the Schedule for purposes of doing
business (excluding testing of equipment and facilities), the Commencement Date shall be deemed to have occurred on such date, and all terms of this Lease shall apply
thereafter, including commencement Base Rent in accordance with item 12 of the Schedule, prorated for any partial month.

C. Maintenance. Throughout the Term, Tenant shall maintain the Premises in their condition as of the date of completion of Tenant's Initial Improvements, loss or damage
caused by the elements, ordinary wear, and fire and other casualty excepted, and at the termination of this Lease, or Tenant's right to possession, Tenant shall return the
Premises to Landlord in broom-clean condition. To the extent Tenant fails to perform either obligation, Landlord may, but need not, restore the Premises to such condition and
Tenant shall pay the cost thereof.

D. Delay in Delivery. If Landlord fails to deliver the Premises in the condition required under this Lease by August 1, 2005, Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease by written
notice given to Landlord at any time prior to delivery of the Premises, in which event this Lease shall terminate on the date of Tenant's termination notice, as if such date were
originally set forth as the termination date herein, and Landlord will immediately refund all amounts paid by Tenant to Landlord relating to this Lease (if any), including
amounts for prepayment of rent, deposits or other expenses, as well as return and release the Letter of Credit (defined in Section 20 of the Lease).

4. PROJECT SERVICES.

Landlord shall furnish services as follows:

A. Heating and Air Conditioning. During the normal business hours of 6:30 a.m. to 6:30 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 7:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Saturday, Landlord shall
furnish heating and air conditioning to provide a comfortable temperature, in Landlord's reasonable judgment, for normal business operations in that portion of the Premises
located in Building C, except to the extent Tenant installs equipment which adversely affects the temperature maintained by the air conditioning system. If Tenant installs such
equipment, then at Tenant's election, Tenant may install, at Tenant's sole cost, supplementary air conditioning units in the Premises (subject to Landlord's prior approval of such
Work, pursuant to Section 5, below), or, such supplementary air conditioning units may be installed by Landlord, and Tenant shall pay to Landlord upon demand as Additional
Rent the cost of installation, together with the cost of operation and maintenance thereof. Tenant shall have full control over setting the temperatures and hours of operation of
the heating and air conditioning for that portion of the Premises located in Building B. Accordingly, there shall be no additional charge for after hours operation of heating and
air conditioning for that portion of the Premises located in Building B.

Landlord shall furnish heating and air conditioning after normal business hours as to that portion of the Premises located in Building C if Tenant provides Landlord reasonable
prior notice, and pays Landlord all then current charges for such additional heating or air conditioning. Landlord's current charge is $15.50 per hour of operation after normal
business hours for additional heating or air conditioning. Landlord's charges shall be based on the actual cost of providing such additional heating or air conditioning, which will
be determined primarily by the utility charge to operate during the extended hours. Either party may request a review, not more than two times per Lease Year, to determine
whether a change in the after-hours charge is necessary based on the after-hours cost or usage. All changes in the after-hours charge will be made prospectively beginning with



the month following the month in which the review was completed.

B. Elevators. Except in cases of emergency, Landlord shall provide passenger elevator service in common with Landlord and all other tenants or visitors (i) to Building C during
normal business hours of 8:00 a.m. to 6:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, and 8:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. on Saturday (and limited passenger service at other times), and (ii) to
Building B during such days and hours as Tenant shall request. Landlord shall use commercially reasonable efforts promptly to restore passenger elevator service following any
emergency.

C. Electricity. Landlord shall provide sufficient electricity to operate normal office lighting and equipment. Tenant shall not install or operate in the Building C portion of the
Premises any electrically operated equipment or other machinery, other than business machines and equipment normally employed for general office use which do not require
high electricity consumption for operation, without obtaining the prior written consent of Landlord. Tenant may also operate various electronics and other equipment in the
Buildings provided such operation is consistent with the permitted uses under this Lease. If any or all of Tenant's equipment, including, without limitation, its electronics and
other equipment operated in accordance with Tenant's permitted use of the Premises, requires electricity consumption in excess of that which is necessary to operate normal
office equipment in the Building C portion of the Premises, such consumption (including consumption for computer or telephone rooms and special HVAC equipment) shall be
submetered by Landlord at Tenant's expense, and Tenant shall reimburse Landlord as Additional Rent for the cost of its submetered consumption based upon Landlord's actual
cost of electricity. Such Additional Rent shall be in addition to Tenant's obligations pursuant to Section 2A(2) to pay its Proportionate Share of Operating Costs. Tenant shall
pay the cost of electrical service to Building B directly to the electrical service provider.

D. Water. Landlord shall furnish hot and cold tap water for drinking and toilet purposes. Tenant shall pay Landlord for water furnished for any other purpose as Additional Rent
at rates fixed by Landlord. Tenant shall use reasonable efforts to avoid wasting water.

E. Janitorial Service. Tenant shall provide janitorial services to the Premises, at is own cost, to a standard consistent with good commercial practices in similar office buildings.

F. Interruption of Services. If any of the Building equipment or machinery ceases to function properly for any cause Landlord shall use reasonable diligence to repair the same
promptly. Landlord's inability to furnish, to any extent, the Project services set forth in this Section 4, or any cessation thereof resulting from any causes, including any entry for
repairs pursuant to this Lease, and any renovation, redecoration or rehabilitation of any area of the Buildings shall not render Landlord liable for damages to either person or
property or for interruption or loss to Tenant's business, nor be construed as an eviction of Tenant, nor work an abatement of any portion of Rent, nor relieve Tenant from
fulfillment of any covenant or agreement hereof. However, in the event that an interruption of the Project services set forth in this Section 4 causes the Premises to be
untenantable for a period of at least seven (7) consecutive business days, monthly Rent shall thereafter be abated proportionately, to the extent the Premises are unusable for
their normal purposes. Nothing herein precludes Tenant from seeking recovery of any and all damages suffered and losses incurred (including but not limited to loss of
business) due to an interruption of utilities for a period greater than five (5) business days, if such interruption was caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord,
its agents, employees, or contractors. Subject to closures due to Force Majeure, emergency or casualty, Tenant shall have full access and use of the Premises twenty-four hours a
day, seven days a week, 52 weeks a year.

G. Landlord's Maintenance Obligations. Landlord shall maintain, repair and replace as necessary the structural and common area portions of the Buildings and Project in good
working order and condition, including without limitation the roof, exterior surfaces of the Building, foundation, common area flooring, heating and electrical systems, HVAC
systems (provided that Tenant may elect to take responsibility for maintaining any additional HVAC system installed as part of the Initial Improvements), plumbing, elevators,
lobbies, stairs, corridors, restrooms, landscaping, parking areas, on-site utilities and improvements necessary for the operation of the Building, and all other common areas of
the Building. Furthermore, Landlord warrants that the common areas of the Buildings, including restrooms and lobbies are (or will be by or before the Commencement Date) in
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 and all other applicable building codes. Landlord shall remedy any violation of this warranty (at its sole cost and
expense) promptly following receipt of notice from Tenant of any such violation.

5. ALTERATIONS AND REPAIRS.

A. Landlord's Consent and Conditions.

Tenant shall not make any improvements or alterations to the Premises (the "Work") without in each instance submitting plans and specifications for the Work to Landlord and
obtaining Landlord's prior written consent which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, provided that (a) such Work does not impact the base structural
components or systems of the Buildings, (b) such Work will not impact any other tenant's premises, and (c) such Work is not visible from outside the Premises. Landlord may
withhold its consent in its sole discretion for any Work which (a) impacts the base structural components or systems of the Buildings, (b) impacts any other tenant's premises, or
(c) is visible from outside the Premises.

Subject to Landlord's review and approval of the plans and specifications for the same and the remaining requirements of this Section 5, Landlord hereby consents to the
installation, periodic testing, and use in an emergency of Tenant's backup generator in the location depicted on Appendix A-2 attached hereto or in alternative locations
reasonably approved by Landlord. Tenant agrees to screen the generator in a manner reasonably approved by Landlord and in compliance with any applicable requirements of
the City of Redmond and/or any other applicable governmental authorities.

Tenant shall pay for the cost of all Work. All Work shall become the property of Landlord upon its installation, except for Tenant's trade fixtures and for items which Tenant is
required to remove at Tenant's cost at the termination of the Lease pursuant to Section 5E.

The following requirements shall apply to all Work:

(1) Prior to commencement, Tenant shall furnish to Landlord building permits, certificates of insurance satisfactory to Landlord, and, at Landlord's request,
security for payment of all costs (which, as to the Initial Improvements, are not to be covered by the Landlord's allowances set forth in Appendix C hereto).

(2) Tenant shall perform all Work so as to maintain peace and harmony among other contractors serving the Project and shall avoid interference with other work
to be performed or services to be rendered in the Project.

(3) The Work shall be performed in a good and workmanlike manner, meeting the standard for construction and quality of materials in the Buildings, and shall
comply with all insurance requirements and all applicable governmental laws, ordinances and regulations ("Governmental Requirements").

(4) Tenant shall perform all Work so as to minimize or prevent disruption to other tenants, and Tenant shall comply with all reasonable requests of Landlord in
response to complaints from other tenants.

(5) Tenant shall perform all Work in compliance with Landlord's "Policies, Rules and Procedures for Construction Projects" in effect at the time the Work is
performed.

(6) Tenant shall supervise all Work.

(7) Upon completion, Tenant shall furnish Landlord with contractor's affidavits and full and final statutory waivers of liens, as-built plans and specifications, and
receipted bills covering all labor and materials, and all other close-out documentation required in Landlord's "Policies, Rules and Procedures for Construction
Projects".

B. Damage to Systems. If any part of the mechanical, electrical or other systems in the Premises shall be damaged, Tenant shall promptly notify Landlord, and Landlord shall
promptly commence, and diligently pursue the repair of such damage until completed. Landlord may also at any reasonable time make any repairs or alterations which
Landlord deems necessary for the safety or protection of the Project, or which Landlord is required to make by any court or pursuant to any Governmental Requirement. Tenant
shall at its expense make all other repairs necessary to keep the Premises, and Tenant's fixtures and personal property, in good order, condition and repair; to the extent Tenant
fails to do so, Landlord may make such repairs itself. The cost of any repairs made by Landlord on account of Tenant's default, or on account of the mis-use or neglect by Tenant



or its contractors or agents anywhere in the Project, or its invitees within the Premises, shall become Additional Rent payable by Tenant on demand. Notwithstanding any
provision set forth in this Lease to the contrary, if Tenant provides written notice (or oral notice in the event of an emergency such as damage or destruction to or of any portion
of the Building and/or the Building systems and/or anything that could cause material disruption to Tenant's business) to Landlord of an event or circumstance which requires
the action of Landlord with respect to repair and/or maintenance, and Landlord fails to provide such action within a reasonable period of time, given the circumstances, after the
receipt of such notice, but in any event not later than seven (7) days after receipt of such notice, then Tenant may proceed to take the required action upon delivery of an
additional three (3) business days' notice to Landlord specifying that Tenant is taking such required action (provided, however, that neither of the notices shall be required in the
event of an emergency which threatens life or where there is imminent danger to property), and if such action was required under the terms of the Lease to be taken by Landlord
and was not taken by Landlord within such ten (10) day period (unless such notice was not required as provided above), then Tenant shall be entitled to prompt reimbursement
by Landlord of Tenant's reasonable costs and expenses in taking such action plus interest thereon at the default interest rate (described in Section 2D(2)), plus any abatement of
Rent otherwise available pursuant to Section 4F. Subject to the reasonable security requirements of any other tenant in the Buildings and the Project, Landlord agrees that
Tenant shall have access to the Buildings and Building systems and the Project, to the extent reasonably necessary to perform the work contemplated by this provision.

C. No Liens. Tenant has no authority to cause or permit any lien or encumbrance of any kind to affect Landlord's interest in the Project; any such lien or encumbrance shall
attach to Tenant's interest only. If any mechanic's lien shall be filed or claim of lien made for work or materials furnished to Tenant, then Tenant shall at its expense within ten
(10) days thereafter either discharge or contest the lien or claim. If Tenant contests the lien or claim, then Tenant shall (i) within such ten (10) day period, provide Landlord
adequate security for the lien or claim, (ii) contest the lien or claim in good faith by appropriate proceedings that operate to stay its enforcement, and (iii) pay promptly any final
adverse judgment entered in any such proceeding. If Tenant does not comply with these requirements, Landlord may discharge the lien or claim, and the amount paid, as well as
attorney's fees and other expenses incurred by Landlord, shall become Additional Rent payable by Tenant on demand.

D. Ownership of Improvements. Except as expressly provided otherwise in this Lease, all Work as defined in this Section 5, affixed partitions, affixed hardware, equipment
affixed to become part of the Building systems, machinery affixed to become part of the Building systems and all other improvements and all affixed fixtures except trade
fixtures, constructed in the Premises by either Landlord or Tenant, (i) shall become Landlord's property upon installation without compensation to Tenant, unless Landlord
consents otherwise in writing, and (ii) shall at Landlord's option either (a) be surrendered to Landlord with the Premises at the termination of the Lease or of Tenant's right to
possession, or (b) be removed in accordance with Subsection 5E below. Landlord shall notify Tenant at the time of its approval of the construction of any such items whether
Tenant shall be required to remove the same at the expiration or sooner termination of this Lease. The parties agree that notwithstanding any provision to the contrary in this
Lease, unless specifically stated otherwise as part of Landlord's consent to Work, Tenant shall retain ownership of all trade fixtures and equipment used in its business
operations, whether or not affixed to the Premises or identified by Tenant at the time plans are submitted for approval to Landlord, and Tenant shall have the right to remove
such items upon termination of this Lease. For avoidance of doubt, this includes all laboratory and manufacturing equipment. Unless Landlord at the time it gives its consent to
the performance of such construction expressly requires the removal of the constructed items, then Tenant shall not be obligated to remove such items upon termination of the
Lease.

E. Removal at Termination. Upon the termination of this Lease or Tenant's right of possession Tenant shall remove from the Project its trade fixtures, furniture, equipment and
other personal property, interior and exterior signage, any improvements which Tenant is required to remove pursuant to Section 5D, and any improvements to any portion of
the Project other than the Premises (Tenant specifically agreeing to remove any emergency generator). Tenant shall repair all damage caused by the installation or removal of
any of the foregoing items. If Tenant does not timely remove such property, and Tenant fails to remove it within 20 days of receipt of written notice requesting such removal,
Tenant shall be conclusively presumed to have, at Landlord's election, (i) conveyed such property to Landlord without compensation, or (ii) abandoned such property, and
Landlord may dispose of or store any part thereof in any manner at Tenant's sole cost, without waiving Landlord's right to claim from Tenant all expenses arising out of Tenant's
failure to remove the property, and without liability to Tenant or any other person. Landlord shall have no duty to be a bailee of any such personal property. If Landlord elects
abandonment, Tenant shall pay to Landlord, upon demand, any expenses incurred for disposition.

F. Satellite Dish Equipment. During the Term, Tenant shall have the right at its sole cost to install, maintain, and from time to time replace one or more satellite dish, antenna or
communication device on the roof of one or both Buildings, together with necessary antenna(e) cabling and wiring connecting the same to the Premises (such dish, antenna,
communication equipment, cabling and wiring being collectively referred to as the "Dish Equipment") for purposes of facilitating communications of Tenant to and from the
Premises, provided that (a) Tenant shall obtain Landlord's prior written approval of the proposed size, weight, location and aesthetic impact of the Dish Equipment and the
method for fastening the Dish Equipment to the Building, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned; (b) Tenant will at its sole cost comply with (i)
all Governmental Requirements, (ii) Landlord's reasonable requirements from time to time, and (iii) the conditions of any bond or warranty maintained by Landlord on the roof;
and (c) the Dish Equipment shall not interfere, electronically or otherwise, with the equipment, facilities, use or operations of Landlord or of other licensees or tenants of
Landlord in the Project or on adjoining properties owned by Landlord or its affiliates as such equipment, facilities, use or operations exist at the time that Tenant submits its
plans to Landlord for use of Dish Equipment. Landlord may supervise any roof penetration. In no event shall Landlord's approval of plans for the Dish Equipment or
supervision of roof penetration be deemed a representation that the Dish Equipment will not cause, or be subject to, interference or that such plans will comply with
Governmental Requirements, future requirements of Landlord, or the conditions of any bond or warranty maintained by Landlord on the roof. Tenant shall repair any damage to
the Building caused by the installation, maintenance, replacement, use or removal of the Dish Equipment. The Dish Equipment shall remain the property of Tenant. Tenant may
remove the Dish Equipment at its sole cost during the Term, and Tenant shall remove the Dish Equipment at its sole cost upon expiration or termination of the Lease, and
Tenant's failure to do so shall entitle Landlord to pursue the remedies set forth in Section 5E, above. Landlord agrees that it shall not permit any third party to locate any other
rooftop communications equipment or similar facilities on Building B without Tenant's prior written consent. Landlord may install rooftop communications equipment or
similar facilities on Building B, so long as such equipment or facilities do not interfere with the operation of Tenant's Dish Equipment, and Landlord agrees promptly following
written notice from Tenant to relocate any such equipment or facilities on Building B that cause such interference. With respect to Dish Equipment placed on Building C,
Landlord shall have the right to require Tenant to relocate all or any part of the Dish Equipment from time to time, provided that such relocation does not interfere with the
functionality of the Dish Equipment and that Landlord reimburses Tenant for the cost of such relocation within thirty (30) days of completion. In the event Landlord requires
Tenant to relocate the Dish Equipment to comply with Governmental Requirements, such relocation shall be performed at Tenant's sole cost. In the event Landlord otherwise
requires the Dish Equipment to be relocated, such relocation shall be performed at Landlord's sole cost. Tenant shall protect, defend, indemnify and hold harmless Landlord
from and against claims, damages, liabilities, costs and expenses of every kind and nature, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incurred by or asserted against Landlord arising
out of the installation, maintenance, replacement, use or removal of the Dish Equipment (including the reasonable costs and expenses of Landlord's review of plans for the Dish
Equipment), except to the extent caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or its employees, agents or contractors. Prior to the installation of the Dish
Equipment, Tenant shall provide Landlord with a revised certificate of insurance showing that Tenant's liability coverage includes the Dish Equipment installation and use
thereof and shall secure from any Dish Equipment installation contractors a certificate of insurance in the same form and with the same requirements as Tenant's certificate of
insurance. Tenant shall have no obligation to pay Rent for the rights conferred under this Section, but Tenant shall maintain any Dish Equipment in good repair.

6. USE OF PREMISES. Tenant shall use the Premises primarily for general office, research and development, and light manufacturing, and incidentally for other ancillary
purposes reasonably related to its primary use. Tenant shall not allow any use of the Premises which will negatively affect the cost of coverage of Landlord's insurance on the
Project. Tenant shall not allow any use of the Premises which would interfere with any other Tenant or with the operation of the Project by Landlord; provided that Landlord
confirms that Tenant's intended use of the Premises as described above will not violate the restrictions of this Section 6. Tenant shall not permit any nuisance or waste upon the
Premises, or allow any offensive noise or odor in or around the Premises.

If any governmental authority shall deem the Premises to be a "place of public accommodation" under the Americans with Disabilities Act or any other comparable law as a
result of Tenant's use, Tenant shall either modify its use to cause such authority to rescind its designation or be responsible for any alterations, structural or otherwise, required
to be made to the Buildings or the Premises under such laws. Landlord shall be responsible, at its own cost without reimbursement, for the compliance of the Project and the
entries and access points to the Buildings with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act existing as of the date of this Lease; any modifications required as a
result of changes to the Americans with Disabilities Act taking effect after the date of this Lease and thereafter applicable from time to time shall be included within Operating
Costs (and Included Capital Items, to the extent applicable).

7. GOVERNMENTAL REQUIREMENTS AND BUILDING RULES. Tenant shall comply with all Governmental Requirements applying to its use of the Premises. Tenant
shall also comply with Landlord's rules and regulations contained in Appendix B hereto, and with all future reasonable rules reasonably established for the Project from time to
time by Landlord, provided that it is understood and agreed that the provisions of this Lease, including Appendix C hereto, take precedence and control in the event of any
conflicting provisions or obligations set forth in any such future rules. Failure by another tenant to comply with the rules or failure by Landlord to enforce them shall not relieve
Tenant of its obligation to comply with the rules or make Landlord responsible to Tenant in any way. Landlord shall use reasonable efforts to apply the rules and regulations



uniformly with respect to Tenant and tenants in the Buildings under leases containing rules and regulations similar to this Lease. In the event of alterations and repairs performed
by Tenant, Tenant shall comply with the provisions of Section 5 of this Lease and also Landlord's "Policies, Rules and Regulations for Construction Projects".

8. WAIVER OF CLAIMS; INDEMNIFICATION; INSURANCE.

A. Indemnification. Tenant shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Landlord and its officers, directors, employees and agents against any claim by any third party for injury
to any person or damage to or loss of any property occurring in the Project and arising from the use of the Premises or from any other act or omission or negligence of Tenant or
any of Tenant's officers, directors, employees or agents; except to the extent any such claim is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Landlord or its officers,
directors, employees or agents. Tenant's obligations under this section shall survive the termination of this Lease.

Landlord shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless Tenant and its officers, directors, employees and agents against any claim by any third party for injury to any person or
damage to or loss of any property occurring in the Project or from any other act or omission or negligence of Landlord or any of Landlord's officers, directors, employees or
agents; except to the extent any such claim is caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant or its officers, directors, employees or agents. Landlord's obligations
under this section shall survive the termination of this Lease.

AS BETWEEN LANDLORD AND TENANT, AND NOT FOR THE BENEFIT OF ANY THIRD PARTY, TENANT HEREBY WAIVES ITS IMMUNITY WITH
RESPECT TO LANDLORD UNDER THE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ACT (RCW TITLE 51) AND/OR ANY EQUIVALENT ACTS AND TENANT
EXPRESSLY AGREES TO ASSUME POTENTIAL LIABILITY FOR ACTIONS BROUGHT AGAINST LANDLORD BY TENANT'S EMPLOYEES. THIS
WAIVER HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES TO THIS LEASE AND TENANT HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO, AND HAS
BEEN ENCOURAGED, TO CONSULT WITH INDEPENDENT COUNSEL REGARDING THIS WAIVER.

AS BETWEEN LANDLORD AND TENANT, AND NOT FOR THE BENEFIT OF ANY THIRD PARTY, LANDLORD HEREBY WAIVES ITS IMMUNITY
WITH RESPECT TO TENANT UNDER THE INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ACT (RCW TITLE 51) AND/OR ANY EQUIVALENT ACTS AND LANDLORD
EXPRESSLY AGREES TO ASSUME POTENTIAL LIABILITY FOR ACTIONS BROUGHT AGAINST TENANT BY LANDLORD'S EMPLOYEES. THIS
WAIVER HAS BEEN SPECIFICALLY NEGOTIATED BY THE PARTIES TO THIS LEASE AND LANDLORD HAS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO, AND HAS
BEEN ENCOURAGED, TO CONSULT WITH INDEPENDENT COUNSEL REGARDING THIS WAIVER.

B. Tenant's Insurance. Tenant shall maintain insurance as follows, with such other terms, coverages and insurers, as Landlord shall reasonably require from time to time:

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance, with (a) Contractual Liability including the indemnification provisions contained in this Lease, (b) a severability of
interest endorsement, (c) limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) combined single limit per occurrence and not less than Two Million Dollars
($2,000,000) in the aggregate for bodily injury, sickness or death, and property damage, and umbrella coverage of not less than Three Million Dollars
($3,000,000).

(2) Property Insurance against "All Risks" of physical loss covering the replacement cost of all improvements, fixtures and personal property.

(3) Workers' compensation or similar insurance in form and amounts required by law, and Employer's Liability with not less than the following limits:

Each Occurrence $500,000

Aggregate--Policy Limit $500,000

Per Employee $500,000

Tenant's insurance shall be primary and not contributory to that carried by Landlord, its agents, or mortgagee. Landlord, and if any, Landlord's building manager or agent and
ground lessor shall be named as additional insureds as respects to insurance required of the Tenant in Section 8B(1). The company or companies writing any insurance which
Tenant is required to maintain under this Lease, as well as the form of such insurance, shall at all times be subject to Landlord's approval, and any such company shall be
licensed to do business in the state in which the Buildings are located. Such insurance companies shall have a A.M. Best rating of A VI or better.

Tenant shall cause any contractor of Tenant performing work on the Premises to maintain insurance as follows, with such other terms, coverages and insurers, as Landlord shall
reasonably require from time to time:

(1) Commercial General Liability Insurance, including contractor's liability coverage, contractual liability coverage, completed operations coverage, broad form
property damage endorsement, and contractor's protective liability coverage, to afford protection with limits, for each occurrence, of not less than One Million
Dollars ($1,000,000) with respect to personal injury, death or property damage.

(2) Workers' compensation or similar insurance in form and amounts required by law, and Employer's Liability with not less than the following limits:

Each Occurrence $500,000

Aggregate Policy Limit $500,000

Per Employee $500,000

Tenant's contractor's insurance shall be primary and not contributory to that carried by Tenant, Landlord, their agents or mortgagees. Tenant and Landlord, and if any, Landlord's
building manager or agent, mortgagee or ground lessor shall be named as additional insured on Tenant's contractor's insurance policies.

C. Insurance Certificates. Tenant shall deliver to Landlord certificates evidencing all required insurance no later than five (5) days prior to the Commencement Date and each
renewal date. Each certificate will provide for thirty (30) days prior written notice of cancellation to Landlord and Tenant.

D. Landlord's Insurance. Landlord shall maintain "All-Risk" property insurance at replacement cost, including loss of rents, on the Buildings, and Commercial General Liability
insurance policies covering the common areas of the Buildings, each with such terms, coverages and conditions as are normally carried by reasonably prudent owners of
properties similar to the Project.

E. Waiver of Subrogation. Notwithstanding any other term or provision of this Lease, Landlord and Tenant each waive any and all rights to recover against the other, or against
the officers, directors, shareholders, partners, joint ventures, employees, agents, customers, invitees or business visitors of such other party, for any loss or damage to such
waiving party arising from any cause covered by any property insurance required to be carried pursuant to this Lease or any other property insurance actually carried by such
party. Landlord and Tenant, from time to time, will cause their respective insurers to issue appropriate waiver of subrogation rights endorsements to all property insurance
policies carried in connection with the Building or the Premises or the contents of either.

9. FIRE AND OTHER CASUALTY.

A. Termination. If a fire or other casualty causes substantial damage to the Buildings or the Premises, Landlord shall engage a registered architect to certify within one (1) month
of the casualty to both Landlord and Tenant the amount of time needed to restore the Buildings and the Premises to tenantability, using standard working methods. If the time
needed exceeds twelve (12) months from the date of damage, or five (5) months therefrom if the damage occurs during the last twenty-four (24) months of the Lease, then in the
case of the Premises, either Landlord or Tenant may terminate this Lease, and in the case of substantial damage to portions of Building C other than the Premises, Landlord may
terminate this Lease, by notice to the other party within ten (10) days after the notifying party's receipt of the architect's certificate. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if flood,
earthquake or other peril for which Landlord does not carry insurance causes substantial damage to the Premises or the Buildings, Landlord may also terminate this Lease by



written notice given to Tenant within thirty (30) days from the date of the casualty. The termination under this paragraph shall be effective thirty (30) days from the date of the
notice and Rent shall be paid by Tenant to that date, with an abatement for any portion of the Premises which has been untenantable after the casualty.

B. Restoration. If a casualty causes damage to the Buildings or the Premises but this Lease is not terminated for any reason, then subject to the rights of any mortgagees or
ground lessors, Landlord shall obtain the applicable insurance proceeds and diligently restore the Buildings and the Premises subject to current Governmental Requirements.
Tenant shall replace its damaged improvements, personal property and fixtures as it deems appropriate. Rent shall be abated on a per diem basis during the restoration for any
portion of the Premises which is untenantable.

10. EMINENT DOMAIN. If a part of the Project is taken by eminent domain or deed in lieu thereof which is so substantial that the Premises cannot reasonably be used by
Tenant for the operation of its business as contemplated (one location to combine business operations), then either party may terminate this Lease effective as of the date of the
taking. If any substantial portion of the Project is taken without affecting the Premises, then Landlord may terminate this Lease as of the date of such taking. Rent shall abate
from the date of the taking in proportion to any part of the Premises taken. The entire award for a taking of any kind shall be paid to Landlord, and Tenant shall have no right to
share in the award; provided that Tenant shall be permitted to pursue recovery of (a) any available award for the unamortized cost of any permanent improvements made to the
Premises by Tenant at its sole cost ( i.e., in excess of the Landlord's Contribution and Additional Landlord's Contribution set forth in Appendix C hereto), and (b) any separate
award available for Tenant's relocation expenses. All obligations accrued to the date of the taking shall be performed by the party liable to perform said obligations, as set forth
herein.

11. RIGHTS RESERVED TO LANDLORD.

Landlord may exercise at any time any of the following rights respecting the operation of the Project without liability to the Tenant of any kind:

A. Name. To change the name of the Buildings (provided that Landlord reimburses Tenant for all reasonable costs associated with changes to letterhead, stationary, and other
similar expenses attributable to the change), or if mandated by applicable governmental authority, to change the street address of the Buildings or suite number(s) of the
Premises.

B. Signs. To install and maintain any signs on the exterior and in the interior of the Buildings, and to approve at its sole discretion, prior to installation, any of Tenant's signs in
the Premises visible from the common areas or the exterior of the Buildings.

Subject to Landlord's prior written approval of the size, design, materials and location of the Tenant's sign, Tenant shall have the right to install, maintain, and replace a sign for
its commercial identification on the exterior façades of each of the Buildings. The size of any Tenant sign to be located on Building C shall not reduce the exterior signage area
available to other tenants in Building C, on a proportionate basis or as may otherwise be determined pursuant to any applicable signage codes. Landlord's approval of Tenant's
signage shall not be unreasonably withheld, provided that the signs comply with all applicable codes and ordinances, and are aesthetically compatible in Landlord's judgment
with the Buildings and the Project. The parties agree to work together in good faith to determine the exact location for the signs. Tenant shall pay for all costs of construction,
installation, maintenance and repair of its signs, and shall remove the signs upon the expiration or sooner termination of the Lease and repair all damage resulting from such
removal at Tenant's sole cost.

C. Window Treatments. To approve, at its discretion, prior to installation, any shades, blinds, ventilators or window treatments of any kind, as well as any lighting within the
Premises that may be visible from the exterior of the Buildings or any interior common area.

D. Keys. To retain and use at any time passkeys to enter the Premises or any door within the Premises. Tenant shall not alter or add any lock or bolt.

E. Access. Upon not less than 24 hours' prior notice (except in the case of an emergency or in response to a Tenant initiated service request), and subject to Tenant's reasonable
security requirements, including the requirement that Landlord be accompanied by an authorized employee of Tenant, to have access to inspect the Premises, and to perform its
obligations, or make repairs, alterations, additions or improvements, as permitted by this Lease. Landlord agrees to use reasonable efforts to coordinate with Tenant any entry
into the Premises pursuant to this Section 11E when reasonably possible.

F. Preparation for Reoccupancy. To decorate, remodel, repair, alter or otherwise prepare the Premises for reoccupancy at any time after Tenant abandons the Premises, without
relieving Tenant of any obligation to pay Rent.

G. Heavy Articles. To approve the weight, size, placement and time and manner of movement within the Buildings of any safe, central filing system or other heavy article of
Tenant's property. Tenant shall move its property entirely at its own risk.

H. Show Premises. To show the Premises to prospective purchasers, tenants, brokers, lenders, investors, rating agencies or others at any reasonable time (subject to restrictions
on access as described in Section 11E above), provided that Landlord gives prior notice to Tenant and does not materially interfere with Tenant's use of the Premises.

I. Intentionally Omitted.

J. Use of Lockbox. To designate a lockbox collection agent for collections of amounts due Landlord. In that case, the date of payment of Rent or other sums shall be the date of
the agent's receipt of such payment or the date of actual collection if payment is made in the form of a negotiable instrument thereafter dishonored upon presentment. However,
Landlord may reject any payment for all purposes as of the date of receipt or actual collection by mailing to Tenant within 21 days after such receipt or collection a check equal
to the amount sent by Tenant.

K. Repairs and Alterations . To make repairs or alterations to the Project and in doing so transport any required material through the Premises, to close entrances, doors,
corridors, elevators and other facilities in the Project, to open any ceiling in the Premises, or to temporarily suspend services or use of common areas in the Buildings. Landlord
shall use reasonable efforts to ensure that Landlord's entry onto the Premises and any alterations, repairs or improvements do not unreasonably interfere with Tenant's use,
parking, access, of and to the Premises. Tenant may require any Work in the Premises to be done after business hours if Tenant pays Landlord for overtime and any other
expenses incurred. Landlord may do or permit any work on any nearby building, land, street, alley or way.

L. Landlord's Agents. If Tenant is in default under this Lease, possession of Tenant's funds or negotiation of Tenant's negotiable instrument by any of Landlord's agents shall not
waive any breach by Tenant or any remedies of Landlord under this Lease.

M . Building Services. To install, use and maintain through the Premises, pipes, conduits, wires and ducts serving the Buildings, provided that such installation, use and
maintenance does not unreasonably interfere with Tenant's use of the Premises.

N. Other Actions. To take any other action which Landlord deems reasonable in connection with the operation, maintenance or preservation of the Buildings.

12. TENANT'S DEFAULT.

Any of the following shall constitute a default by Tenant:

A. Rent Default. Tenant fails to pay any Rent when due and such failure continues for a period of five (5) business days after Tenant's receipt of written notice of such failure;

B. Assignment/Sublease or Hazardous Substances Default. Tenant defaults in its obligations under Section 17 Assignment and Sublease or Section 28 Hazardous Substances;

C. Other Performance Default. Tenant fails to perform any other obligation to Landlord under this Lease, and, in the case of only the first two (2) such failures during the Term
of this Lease, this failure continues for thirty (30) days after receipt of written notice from Landlord, except that if Tenant begins to cure its failure within the thirty (30) day
period but cannot reasonably complete its cure within such period, then, so long as Tenant continues to diligently attempt to cure its failure, the thirty (30) day period shall be
extended to sixty (60) days, or such lesser period as is reasonably necessary to complete the cure;



D. Credit Default. One of the following credit defaults occurs:

(1) Tenant commences any proceeding under any law relating to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization or relief of debts, or seeks appointment of a receiver,
trustee, custodian or other similar official for the Tenant or for any substantial part of its property, or any such proceeding is commenced against Tenant and
either remains undismissed for a period of thirty days or results in the entry of an order for relief against Tenant which is not fully stayed within seven days after
entry;

(2) Tenant becomes insolvent or bankrupt, does not generally pay its debts as they become due, or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts, or makes a
general assignment for the benefit of creditors;

(3) Any third party obtains a levy or attachment under process of law against Tenant's leasehold interest.

E. Vacation or Abandonment Default. Tenant vacates or abandons the entire Premises.

13. REMEDIES.

A. Termination of Lease or Possession. If Tenant defaults, Landlord may elect by notice to Tenant either to terminate this Lease or to terminate Tenant's possession of the
Premises without terminating this Lease. In either case, Tenant shall immediately vacate the Premises and deliver possession to Landlord, and Landlord may repossess the
Premises and may, at Tenant's sole cost, remove any of Tenant's signs and any of its other property, without relinquishing its right to receive Rent or any other right against
Tenant.

B. Lease Termination Damages. If Landlord terminates the Lease pursuant to Section 13A, Tenant shall pay to Landlord all Rent due on or before the date of termination, plus
Landlord's reasonable estimate of the aggregate Rent (excluding Landlord's Additional Contribution, as defined in Appendix C hereto) that would have been payable from the
date of termination through the Termination Date, reduced by the rental value of the Premises calculated as of the date of termination for the same period, taking into account
anticipated vacancy prior to reletting, reletting expenses and market concessions, both discounted to present value at the rate of five percent (5%) per annum, plus 100% of the
then unpaid principal balance of the Additional Landlord's Contribution. If Landlord shall relet any part of the Premises for any part of such period before the present value
amount described in the preceding sentence shall have been paid by Tenant or finally determined by a court, then the amount of Rent payable pursuant to such reletting (taking
into account vacancy prior to reletting and any reletting expenses or concessions) shall be deemed to be the reasonable rental value for that portion of the Premises relet during
the period of the reletting.

C. Possession Termination Damages. If Landlord terminates Tenant's right to possession without terminating the Lease and Landlord takes possession of the Premises itself,
Landlord may relet any part of the Premises for such Rent, for such time, and upon such terms as Landlord in its sole discretion shall determine, without any obligation to do so
prior to renting other vacant areas in the Buildings. Any proceeds from reletting the Premises shall first be applied to the expenses of reletting, including redecoration, repair,
alteration, advertising, brokerage, legal, and other reasonably necessary expenses. If the reletting proceeds after payment of expenses are insufficient to pay the full amount of
Rent under this Lease, Tenant shall pay such deficiency to Landlord monthly upon demand as it becomes due. Any excess proceeds shall be retained by Landlord.

D. Remedies Cumulative. All of Landlord's remedies under this Lease shall be in addition to all other remedies Landlord may have at law or in equity. Waiver by either party of
any breach of any obligation by the other party shall be effective only if it is in writing, and shall not be deemed a waiver of any other breach, or any subsequent breach of the
same obligation. Landlord's acceptance of payment by Tenant shall not constitute a waiver of any breach by Tenant, and if the acceptance occurs after Landlord's notice to
Tenant, or termination of the Lease or of Tenant's right to possession, the acceptance shall not affect such notice or termination. Acceptance of payment by Landlord after
commencement of a legal proceeding or final judgment shall not affect such proceeding or judgment. Landlord may advance such monies and take such other actions for
Tenant's account as reasonably may be required to cure or mitigate any default by Tenant. Tenant shall immediately reimburse Landlord for any such advance, and such sums
shall bear interest at the default interest rate described in Section 2D(2) until paid.

E. WAIVER OF TRIAL BY JURY. EACH PARTY WAIVES TRIAL BY JURY IN THE EVENT OF ANY LEGAL PROCEEDING BROUGHT BY THE OTHER
IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE. EACH PARTY SHALL BRING ANY ACTION AGAINST THE OTHER IN CONNECTION WITH THIS LEASE IN A
FEDERAL OR STATE COURT LOCATED IN WASHINGTON, CONSENTS TO THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURTS, AND WAIVES ANY RIGHT TO
HAVE ANY PROCEEDING TRANSFERRED FROM SUCH COURTS ON THE GROUND OF IMPROPER VENUE OR INCONVENIENT FORUM.

F. Litigation Costs. If either party hereto fails to perform any of its obligations under this Lease or if any dispute arises between the parties hereto concerning the meaning or
interpretation of any provision of this Lease, then the defaulting party or the party not prevailing in such dispute, as the case may be, shall pay any and all costs and expenses
incurred by the other party on account of such default and/or in enforcing or establishing its rights hereunder, including, without limitation, court costs and reasonable attorneys'
fees and disbursements. Any such attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred by either party in enforcing a judgment in its favor under this Lease shall be recoverable
separately from and in addition to any other amount included in such judgment, and such attorneys' fees obligation is intended to be severable from the other provisions of this
Lease and to survive and not be merged into any such judgment.

Without limiting the generality of this Section, if Landlord utilizes the services of an attorney for the purpose of collecting any unpaid Rent due or in connection with any other
breach of this Lease by Tenant, Tenant agrees to pay Landlord actual attorneys' fees, regardless of the fact that no legal action may be commenced or filed by Landlord.

G. Default by Landlord. Landlord shall be in default in the performance of any obligation required to be performed by Landlord under the Lease if Landlord has failed to
perform such obligation within thirty (30) days after the receipt of notice from Tenant specifying in detail Landlord's failure to perform; provided, however, that if the nature of
Landlord's obligation is such that more than thirty (30) calendar days are reasonably required for its performance, Landlord shall not be deemed in default if it shall commence
such performance within thirty (30) days and thereafter diligently pursues the same to completion.

14. SURRENDER. Upon termination of this Lease or Tenant's right to possession, Tenant shall return the Premises to Landlord in good order and condition, ordinary wear and
casualty damage excepted. If Tenant is required to remove any alterations under the terms of this Lease, then Tenant shall remove the alterations in a good and workmanlike
manner and restore the Premises to its condition prior to their installation.

15. HOLDOVER. Tenant shall have no right to holdover possession of the Premises after the expiration or termination of this Lease without Landlord's prior written consent,
which consent may be withheld in Landlord's sole and absolute discretion. If Tenant retains possession of any part of the Premises after the Term, Tenant shall become a
month-to-month tenant for the entire Premises upon all of the terms of this Lease as might be applicable to such month-to-month tenancy, except that Tenant agrees to pay for
each full or partial month that Tenant remains in possession, and an amount equal to 125% of the Base Rent, estimated Operating Cost Share Rent and estimated Tax Share Rent
in effect immediately prior to such holdover, computed on a monthly basis. Tenant shall also pay Landlord all of Landlord's direct and consequential damages. No acceptance of
Rent or other payments by Landlord under these holdover provisions shall operate as a waiver of Landlord's right to regain possession or any other of Landlord's remedies.

16. SUBORDINATION TO GROUND LEASES AND MORTGAGES.

A. Subordination. This Lease shall be subordinate to any present or future ground lease or mortgage respecting the Project, and any amendments to such ground lease or
mortgage, at the election of the ground lessor or mortgagee as the case may be, effected by notice to Tenant in the manner provided in this Lease. The subordination shall be
effective upon such notice, but at the request of Landlord or ground lessor or mortgagee, Tenant shall within ten (10) days of the request, execute and deliver to the requesting
party any reasonable documents provided to evidence the subordination. Any mortgagee has the right, at its option, to subordinate its mortgage to the terms of this Lease,
without notice to, nor the consent of, Tenant. Tenant's obligation to subordinate this Lease or execute agreements effecting subordination is conditioned on Tenant's receipt of a
commercially reasonable agreement from such ground lessor, mortgagee or trust deed beneficiary not to disturb Tenant's rights under the Lease (including without limitation the
right to possession of the Premises) upon any termination of the ground lease or foreclosure, except as expressly permitted by the terms of the Lease.

B. Termination of Ground Lease or Foreclosure of Mortgage. If any ground lease is terminated or mortgage foreclosed or deed in lieu of foreclosure given and the ground
lessor, mortgagee, or purchaser at a foreclosure sale shall thereby become the owner of the Project, Tenant shall attorn to such ground lessor or mortgagee or purchaser without



any deduction or setoff by Tenant, and this Lease shall continue in effect as a direct lease between Tenant and such ground lessor, mortgagee or purchaser. The ground lessor or
mortgagee or purchaser shall be liable as Landlord only during the time such ground lessor or mortgagee or purchaser is the owner of the Project. At the request of Landlord,
ground lessor or mortgagee, Tenant shall execute and deliver within ten (10) days of the request any reasonable document furnished by the requesting party to evidence Tenant's
agreement to attorn.

C. Security Deposit. Any ground lessor or mortgagee shall be responsible for the return of any security deposit by Tenant only to the extent the security deposit is received by
such ground lessor or mortgagee.

D. Notice and Right to Cure. The Project is subject to any ground lease and mortgage identified with name and address of ground lessor or mortgagee in Appendix D to this
Lease (as the same may be amended from time to time by written notice to Tenant). Tenant agrees to send by registered or certified mail to any ground lessor or mortgagee
identified either in such Appendix or in any later notice from Landlord to Tenant a copy of any notice of default sent by Tenant to Landlord. If Landlord fails to cure such
default within the required time period under this Lease, but ground lessor or mortgagee begins to cure within ten (10) days after such period and proceeds diligently to complete
such cure, then ground lessor or mortgagee shall have such additional time as is necessary to complete such cure, including any time necessary to obtain possession if
possession is necessary to cure, and Tenant shall not begin to enforce its remedies so long as the cure is being diligently pursued.

E. Definitions. As used in this Section 16, "mortgage" shall include "deed of trust" and/or "trust deed" and "mortgagee" shall include "beneficiary" and/or "trustee", "mortgagee"
shall include the mortgagee of any ground lessee, and "ground lessor", "mortgagee", and "purchaser at a foreclosure sale" shall include, in each case, all of its successors and
assigns, however remote.

17. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBLEASE.

A. In General. Tenant shall not, without the prior consent of Landlord in each case, (i) make or allow any assignment or transfer, by operation of law or otherwise, of any part of
Tenant's interest in this Lease, (ii) grant or allow any lien or encumbrance, by operation of law or otherwise, upon any part of Tenant's interest in this Lease, (iii) sublet any part
of the Premises, or (iv) permit anyone other than Tenant and its employees to occupy any part of the Premises. Tenant shall remain primarily liable for all of its obligations
under this Lease, notwithstanding any assignment or transfer. No consent granted by Landlord shall be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment or transfer, lien or
encumbrance, sublease or occupancy. Tenant shall pay all of Landlord's reasonable attorneys' fees and other expenses incurred in connection with any consent requested by
Tenant or in reviewing any proposed assignment or subletting, such amount not to exceed $1,000 for each instance of request. Any assignment or transfer, grant of lien or
encumbrance, or sublease or occupancy without Landlord's prior written consent shall be void. If Tenant shall assign this Lease or sublet the Premises in its entirety (other than
to an affiliate) any rights of Tenant to renew this Lease, extend the Term or to lease additional space in the Project shall be extinguished thereby and will not be transferred to
the assignee or subtenant, all such rights being personal to the Tenant named herein.

B. Landlord's Consent. Landlord will not unreasonably withhold, delay or condition its consent to any proposed assignment or subletting. It shall be reasonable for Landlord to
withhold its consent to any assignment or sublease if (i) Tenant is in default under this Lease, (ii) the proposed assignee or sublessee is a tenant in the Project or an affiliate of
such a tenant or a party that Landlord has identified as a prospective tenant in the Project and Landlord has space available elsewhere for such tenant or prospective tenant; (iii)
the financial responsibility, nature of business, and character of the proposed assignee or subtenant are not all reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, (iv) in the reasonable
judgment of Landlord the purpose for which the assignee or subtenant intends to use the Premises (or a portion thereof) is not in keeping with Landlord's standards for the
Buildings or are in violation of the terms any other leases in the Project, or (v) the proposed assignment is for less than the entire Premises or for less than the remaining Term of
the Lease. The foregoing shall not exclude any other reasonable bases for Landlord to withhold its consent.

C. Procedure. Tenant shall notify Landlord of any proposed assignment or sublease at least thirty (30) days prior to its proposed effective date. The notice shall include the
name and address of the proposed assignee or subtenant, its corporate affiliates in the case of a corporation and its partners in a case of a partnership, an execution copy of the
proposed assignment or sublease, and sufficient information to permit Landlord to determine the financial responsibility and character of the proposed assignee or subtenant. As
a condition to any effective assignment of this Lease, the assignee shall execute and deliver in form satisfactory to Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date
of the assignment, an assumption of all of the obligations of Tenant under this Lease. As a condition to any effective sublease, subtenant shall execute and deliver in form
satisfactory to Landlord at least fifteen (15) days prior to the effective date of the sublease, an agreement to comply with all of Tenant's obligations under this Lease, and at
Landlord's option, an agreement to attorn to Landlord (except for the economic obligations which subtenant will undertake directly to Tenant) under the terms of the sublease in
the event this Lease terminates before the sublease expires.

D. Tenant Affiliate or Successor by Merger. Notwithstanding anything in this Section 17 to the contrary, Tenant may assign this Lease, or sublease all or any part of the
Premises, without Landlord's consent, to an affiliate (as defined in Section 26C, below) of Tenant, or, so long as the net worth and financial responsibility of any such successor
entity is equal to or greater than that of Tenant as of the date of this Lease, to any corporation or other entity resulting from the reorganization, merger of or consolidation with
Tenant. In that case, the Tenant affiliate or successor entity shall assume in writing all of Tenants obligations under this Lease. Tenant shall provide Landlord with a final
execution copy of the assignment or sublease as soon as practicable, but in no event later than thirty (30) days after the effective date thereof. In addition, no transfer, sale, or
other disposition of the stock of Tenant occurring in connection with or as result of a private or public offering or placement of Tenant's stock, the principal purpose of which is
to raise capital for Tenant and not to effect a change in control of Tenant, shall be deemed an assignment of this Lease or otherwise require Landlord's consent.

18. CONVEYANCE BY LANDLORD. If Landlord shall at any time transfer its interest in the Project or this Lease, Landlord shall be released of any obligations occurring
after such transfer, except the obligation to return to Tenant any security deposit not delivered to its transferee, and Tenant shall look solely to Landlord's successors for
performance of such obligations. This Lease shall not be affected by any such transfer.

19. ESTOPPEL CERTIFICATE. Each party shall, within ten (10) days of receiving a request from the other party, execute, acknowledge in recordable form, and deliver to
the other party or its designee a certificate stating, subject to a specific statement of any applicable exceptions, that the Lease as amended to date is in full force and effect, that
the Tenant is paying Rent and other charges on a current basis, and that to the best of the knowledge of the certifying party, the other party has committed no uncured defaults
and has no offsets or claims. The certifying party may also be required to state the date of commencement of payment of Rent, the Commencement Date, the Termination Date,
the Base Rent, the current Operating Cost Share Rent and Tax Share Rent estimates, the status of any improvements required to be completed by Landlord, the amount of any
security deposit, and such other matters as may be reasonably requested. Failure to deliver such statement within the time required shall be conclusive evidence against the non-
certifying party that this Lease, with any amendments identified by the requesting party, is in full force and effect, that there are no uncured defaults by the requesting party, that
not more than one month's Rent has been paid in advance, that the non-certifying party has not paid any security deposit, and that the non-certifying party has no claims or
offsets against the requesting party.

20. SECURITY DEPOSIT. Upon the later of (a) the date that Landlord delivers possession of the Premises to Tenant pursuant to Appendix C, or (b) August 1, 2005, Tenant
shall deposit with Landlord security (the "Security Deposit") in the amount of One Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), which security shall be in the form of an unconditional and
irrevocable letter of credit (the "Letter of Credit") (i) in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, (ii) naming Landlord as beneficiary, (iii) expressly allowing
Landlord to draw upon it at any time from time to time by delivering to the issuer notice that Landlord is entitled to draw thereunder, (iv) drawable on an FDIC-insured financial
institution reasonably satisfactory to Landlord, and (v) redeemable in the state of Landlord's choice. In addition, no later than fifteen (15) days following the Commencement
Date, Tenant shall deposit with Landlord an additional Security Deposit in an amount equal to fifty percent (50%) of any portion of the Additional Landlord's Contribution
Tenant elects to receive pursuant to Section 4 of Appendix C hereto. Such additional Security Deposit shall also be in the form of an unconditional and irrevocable Letter of
Credit meeting the requirements of items (i) through (v) of the first sentence of this Section 20.

If Tenant does not provide Landlord with a substitute or substitutes for such Letter(s) of Credit complying with all of the requirements hereof at least thirty (30) days before the
stated expiration date of the current Letter(s) of Credit then, upon five (5) business days' notice to Tenant, Landlord shall have the right to draw upon the current Letter(s) of
Credit and hold the funds drawn as the Security Deposit.

On the last day of the calendar year during which the twelfth (12th) month of the Lease term occurs, and on the last day of each of the four calendar years thereafter, and
provided that Tenant shall not be in default under the terms of this Lease, Landlord agrees to reduce the amount of the Letter of Credit by One Hundred Forty-two Thousand
Eight Hundred Fifty-seven Dollars ($142,857.00), as illustrated by the following table:



 

Example Periods
Required Letter of Credit
Balance

If Commencement Date
occurs between 02/01/06
and 12/31/06

Required deposit date of
Letter of Credit - 12/30/07 $ 1,000,000

 12/31/07 - 12/30/08 $ 857,143

 12/31/08 - 12/30/09 $ 714,286

12/31/09 - 12/30/10 $ 571,429

 12/31/10 - 12/30/11 $ 428,572

 12/31/11 - 12/30/12 $ 285,715

 

In addition, and provided that Tenant shall not be in default hereunder and shall, at least thirty (30) days prior to the expiration of the 72nd month of the Lease term, deliver cash
to Landlord in the amount of One Hundred Sixty-one Thousand Eight Hundred Twenty-seven and 26/100 Dollars ($161,827.26) as a replacement Security Deposit Landlord
agrees that the Letter of Credit shall be released in its entirety at the expiration of the 72nd month of the Lease term.

If Tenant defaults under this Lease and such default is not cured within the applicable cure period, Landlord may use any part of the Security Deposit to pay or perform any
obligation of Tenant under this Lease, or to compensate Landlord for any loss or damage resulting from any default. To the extent any portion of the deposit is used, Tenant
shall within five (5) days after demand from Landlord restore the deposit to its full amount. Landlord may keep the Security Deposit in its general funds and shall not be
required to pay interest to Tenant on the deposit amount. If Tenant shall perform all of its obligations under this Lease and return the Premises to Landlord at the end of the
Term, Landlord shall return all of the remaining Security Deposit to Tenant within thirty (30) days after the end of the Term. The Security Deposit shall not serve as an advance
payment of Rent or a measure of Landlord's damages for any default under this Lease.

If Landlord transfers its interest in the Project or this Lease, Landlord may transfer the Security Deposit to its transferee. Upon such transfer, Landlord shall have no further
obligation to return the Security Deposit to Tenant, and Tenant's right to the return of the Security Deposit shall apply solely against Landlord's transferee.

21. FORCE MAJEURE. Landlord shall not be in default under this Lease to the extent Landlord is unable to perform any of its obligations on account of any strike or labor
problem, energy shortage, governmental pre-emption or prescription, national emergency, or any other cause of any kind beyond the reasonable control of Landlord ("Force
Majeure").

22. TENANT'S PERSONAL PROPERTY AND FIXTURES. Landlord hereby waives any statutory or common law landlord's lien or other lien or any other interest
whatsoever in any item personal property owned by Tenant, or any portion thereof or interest therein, located in the Building, the Premises or elsewhere.

23. NOTICES. All notices, consents, approvals and similar communications to be given by one party to the other under this Lease, shall be given in writing, mailed or
personally delivered as follows:

A. Landlord. To Landlord as follows:

CarrAmerica Realty Operating Partnership. L.P.

10735 Willows Road NE, Suite 100

Redmond, WA 98052

Attn: Market Managing Director

with a copy to:

CarrAmerica Realty Corporation

1850 K Street, NW

Suite 500

Washington, D.C. 20006

Attn: Legal Department

or to such other person at such other address as Landlord may designate by notice to Tenant.

B. Tenant. To Tenant as follows:

Pre-Occupancy Address: A copy each to the attention of the CFO and the Director, Facilities at the following addresses:

By Delivery:

19910 North Creek Parkway

Bothell, Washington 98011

For Mail:

P.O. Box 3008

Bothell

98041-3008



With a copy to the attention of General Counsel at the same addresses.

 

 

Post-Occupancy Address: A copy each to the attention of the CFO and the Director, Facilities at the following address:

Microvision, Inc.

6222 - 185th Avenue NE,

Redmond, WA 98052

With a copy to the attention of General Counsel at the same addresses.

or to such other person at such other address as Tenant may designate by notice to Landlord.

Mailed notices shall be sent by United States certified or registered mail, or by a reputable national overnight courier service, postage prepaid. Mailed notices shall be deemed
to have been given on the earlier of actual delivery or three (3) business days after posting in the United States mail in the case of registered or certified mail, and one business
day in the case of overnight courier.

24. QUIET POSSESSION. So long as Tenant shall perform all of its obligations under this Lease, Tenant shall enjoy peaceful and quiet possession of the Premises against any
party claiming through the Landlord.

25. REAL ESTATE BROKER. Each party represents to the other party that it has not dealt with any real estate broker with respect to this Lease except for any broker(s) listed
in the Schedule, and no other broker is in any way entitled to any broker's fee or other payment in connection with this Lease. Landlord is solely responsible for any
commissions or other payments due to the real estate brokers listed in the Schedule. Each party shall indemnify and defend the other party against any claims by any other
broker or third party for any payment of any kind for a breach of the representations in this Section 25.

26. MISCELLANEOUS.

A. Successors and Assigns. Subject to the limits on Tenant's assignment contained in Section 17, the provisions of this Lease shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of all
successors and assigns of Landlord and Tenant.

B. Date Payments Are Due. Except for payments to be made by Tenant under this Lease which are due upon demand, in advance (such as Base Rent), or on some other stated
due date in this lease, Tenant shall pay to Landlord any amount for which Landlord renders a statement of account within the later of (i) twenty (20) days after receipt of such
statement, or (ii) the date that the next Base Rent payment is due.

C. Meaning of "Landlord", "Re-Entry, "including" and "Affiliate". The term "Landlord" means only the owner of the Project and the lessor's interest in this Lease from time to
time. The words "re-entry" and "re-enter" are not restricted to their technical legal meaning. The words "including" and similar words shall mean "without limitation." The word
"affiliate" shall mean a person or entity controlling, controlled by or under common control with the applicable entity. "Control" shall mean the power directly or indirectly, by
contract or otherwise, to direct the management and policies of the applicable entity.

D. Time of the Essence. Time is of the essence of each provision of this Lease.

E. No Option. This document shall not be effective for any purpose until it has been executed and delivered by both parties; execution and delivery by one party shall not create
any option or other right in the other party.

F. Severability. The unenforceability of any provision of this Lease shall not affect any other provision.

G. Governing Law. This Lease shall be governed in all respects by the laws of the state in which the Project is located, without regard to the principles of conflicts of laws.

H. Intentionally Omitted.

I. No Oral Modification. No modification of this Lease shall be effective unless it is a written modification signed by both parties.

J. Landlord's Right to Cure. Following the expiration of any applicable cure period (except in an emergency), Landlord may cure any default by Tenant; any expenses incurred
shall become Additional Rent due from Tenant on demand by Landlord.

K. Captions. The captions used in this Lease shall have no effect on the construction of this Lease.

L. Authority. Landlord and Tenant each represents to the other that it has full power and authority to execute and perform this Lease.

M. Landlord's Enforcement of Remedies. Landlord may enforce any of its remedies under this Lease either in its own name or through an agent.

N. Entire Agreement. This Lease, together with all Appendices and Addendum 1 hereto, constitutes the entire agreement between the parties. No representations or agreements
of any kind have been made by either party which are not contained in this Lease.

O. Landlord's Title. Landlord's title shall always be paramount to the interest of the Tenant, and nothing in this Lease shall empower Tenant to do anything which might in any
way impair Landlord's title.

P. Light and Air Rights. Landlord does not grant in this Lease any rights to light and air in connection with Project. Landlord reserves to itself, the Land, the Buildings below the
improved floor of each floor of the Premises, the Buildings above the ceiling of each floor of the Premises, the exterior of the Premises and the areas on the same floor outside
the Premises, along with the areas within the Premises required for the installation and repair of utility lines and other items required to serve other tenants of the Buildings.

Q. Singular and Plural. Wherever appropriate in this Lease, a singular term shall be construed to mean the plural where necessary, and a plural term the singular. For example, if
at any time two parties shall constitute Landlord or Tenant, then the relevant term shall refer to both parties together.

R. No Recording by Tenant. Tenant shall not record in any public records any memorandum or any portion of this Lease.

S. Exclusivity. Landlord does not grant to Tenant in this Lease any exclusive right except the right to occupy its Premises.

T. No Construction Against Drafting Party. The rule of construction that ambiguities are resolved against the drafting party shall not apply to this Lease.

U. Survival. All obligations of Landlord and Tenant under this Lease that may reasonably be interpreted as intending to survive shall survive the termination of this Lease.

V. Rent Not Based on Income. No rent or other payment in respect of the Premises shall be based in any way upon net income or profits from the Premises. Tenant may not
enter into or permit any sublease or license or other agreement in connection with the Premises which provides for a rental or other payment based on net income or profit.



W. Building Manager and Service Providers. Landlord may perform any of its obligations under this Lease through its employees or third parties hired by the Landlord.

X. Late Charge and Interest on Late Payments. Without limiting the provisions of Section 12A, if Tenant fails to pay any installment of Rent or other charge to be paid by
Tenant pursuant to this Lease within five (5) business days after the same becomes due and payable, then Tenant shall pay a late charge equal to the greater of three percent (3%)
of the amount of such payment or $250. In addition, interest shall be paid by Tenant to Landlord on any payments of Rent made after the expiration of 5 days following the date
due until paid at the rate provided in Section 2D(2). Such late charge and interest shall constitute Additional Rent due and payable by Tenant to Landlord upon the date of
payment of the delinquent payment referenced above.

Y. Landlord's Representations and Warranties. Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant to Tenant that as of the date of delivery of the Premises to Tenant, the building
systems serving the Premises shall be in good working order and condition. Landlord further represents to Tenant, to the best of Landlord's knowledge, that as of the date of
delivery of the Premises to Tenant, the Premises shall be in the condition and shall contain the equipment described in Appendix G hereto.

Z. Parking. Landlord shall maintain a parking ratio of three (3) parking spaces per 1,000 rentable square feet of Premises area in the parking area serving the Premises, and
Tenant's parking allowance shall consist of three (3) parking spaces per 1000 rentable square feet of Premises area.

27. UNRELATED BUSINESS INCOME. If Landlord is advised by its counsel at any time that any part of the payments by Tenant to Landlord under this Lease may be
characterized as unrelated business income under the United States Internal Revenue Code and its regulations, then Tenant shall enter into any amendment proposed by
Landlord to avoid such income, so long as the amendment does not require Tenant to make more payments or accept fewer services from Landlord, than this Lease provides.

28. HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES. Tenant shall not cause or permit any Hazardous Substances to be brought upon, produced, stored, used, discharged or disposed of in or
near the Project, except such Hazardous Substances that are typical in Tenant's business and that are at all times used, kept and stored and disposed of in compliance with
applicable Governmental Requirements. "Hazardous Substances" include those hazardous substances described in the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation
and Liability Act of 1980, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 9601 et seq., the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. Section 6901 et seq., any other
applicable federal, state or local law, and the regulations adopted under these laws. "Hazardous substance" specifically includes but is not restricted to asbestos,
polychlorobiphenyls ("PCBs") and petroleum. Landlord consents to Tenant's use and storage on the Premises of reasonable quantities of substances and cleaning supplies
normally found in office environments and reasonable quantities of diesel fuel to be used in connection with or contained in Tenant's emergency generator (if any), provided
that all of the same shall be used, stored and disposed of in compliance with all applicable Governmental Requirements. If any lender or governmental agency believes that
Tenant's use of the Premises has caused contamination by Hazardous Substances and shall require testing for Hazardous Substances in the Premises, Tenant shall pay for such
testing.

A. Landlord represents and warrants to Tenant, to the best of Landlord's knowledge and belief, that the Premises, Buildings and Project are free of the presence of Hazardous
Substances in reportable quantities as of the date of this Lease, except for those materials typically used, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, in the construction
industry and for those substances and cleaning supplies normally found in office environments. Landlord shall defend, indemnify and hold Tenant and its officers, agents and
employees harmless from and against any claims, demands, penalties, fines, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses (including without limitation reasonable
attorney and reasonable consultant fees, court costs and litigation expenses) of whatever kind or nature, arising out of the presence, disposal, or release of any Hazardous
Substance arising out of or related to (a) Hazardous Substances located in the Premises, the Buildings or the Project as of the date of this Lease or released onto the Premises or
the Project by Landlord or its agents or employees hereafter; (b) Landlord's negligence or willful misconduct, or that of its agents, employees, or contractors; and/or (c) any
breach of Landlord's representation and warranty regarding Hazardous Substances herein and any violation by Landlord of any law applicable thereto.

B. Tenant shall defend, indemnify, and hold Landlord and its officers, agents, employees, and property manager harmless from and against any claims, demands, penalties,
fines, liabilities, settlements, damages, costs, or expenses (including, without limitation, reasonable attorney fees and reasonable consultant fees, court costs and litigation
expenses) of whatever kind or nature, arising out of or in any way related to the presence, disposal, release or threatened release of any Hazardous Substances arising out of or
related to (a) all Hazardous Substances placed, disposed or released on the Premises or the Project by Tenant, its agents, employees, contractors, or invitees; (b) Tenant's
negligence or willful misconduct, or that of its agents, employees, contractors, or invitees; and/or (c) Tenant's violation of any law or breach of Tenant's obligations under this
Lease applicable to Hazardous Substances.

29. EXCULPATION. Landlord shall have no personal liability under this Lease; its liability shall be limited to its interest in the Project, and shall not extend to any other
property or assets of the Landlord. In no event shall any officer, director, employee, agent, shareholder, partner, member or beneficiary of Landlord be personally liable for any
of Landlord's obligations hereunder.

30. RIGHT OF FIRST OFFER. Subject to Subsection B below, and the right of Landlord to extend the Lease and/or expand the Premises area of any current tenant in the
Building, Landlord hereby grants to Tenant for the term of the Lease a right of first offer for any space that becomes available for lease in Building C (collectively, the " ROFO
Space"), to be exercised in accordance with Subsection A below.

A. If any ROFO Space becomes available for lease to anyone other than a Prior Tenant, and provided that at least 24 months shall be remaining on the term of Tenant's Lease at
the time such ROFO space becomes available, Landlord shall so notify Tenant ("Landlord's ROFO Notice") identifying the available ROFO Space (the "Subject ROFO Space").
Landlord's ROFO Notice may be given up to twelve (12) months in advance of such availability and shall contain the terms upon which Landlord intends to offer the Subject
ROFO Space for lease to the market. Tenant shall notify Landlord within fifteen (15) business days of receipt of Landlord's ROFO Notice whether it desires to lease the Subject
ROFO Space on the terms set forth in Landlord's ROFO Notice. If Tenant does not notify Landlord within said 15 business-day period that it will lease the Subject ROFO
Space, Tenant shall be deemed to have refused the Subject ROFO Space. After any refusal, Tenant shall have no further right of first offer for such Subject ROFO Space and
Landlord shall be free to lease such space to any party for any term and upon any terms it desires; provided, however, that in the event that Landlord shall have failed to enter
into a letter of intent to lease the Subject ROFO Space to a third party within ninety (90) days following any refusal by Tenant, Landlord shall not lease the Subject ROFO
Space to any third party without again offering the Subject ROFO Space to Tenant, pursuant to the terms hereof. In addition, Landlord shall not lease the Subject ROFO space
on terms which are materially more favorable to the third party than those set forth in Landlord's ROFO Notice, without again offering the Subject ROFO Space to Tenant,
pursuant to the terms hereof. As used herein, "materially more favorable" shall mean essential economic terms, including Base Rent, any rent concessions and any tenant
improvement allowance or obligation, which, taken as a whole, are more favorable to the third party than those set forth in Landlord's ROFO Notice by more than ten percent
(10%). If Tenant exercises its right of first offer with respect to the Subject ROFO Space, such space shall be added to the Premises for all purposes of this lease for the
remaining Term of the Lease on (a) the terms specified in Landlord's ROFO Notice, and (b) the terms of this Lease to the extent that they do not conflict with the terms specified
in Landlord's ROFO Notice, except that the terms of Landlord's ROFO Notice shall not apply during any Renewal Term, and instead, the terms of the Lease applying to the
remainder of the Premises during the Renewal Term shall also apply to the Subject ROFO Space.

B. Tenant's right of first offer is subject to the condition that: (i) on the date that Tenant delivers its notice exercising its right of first offer, Tenant is not in default under this
Lease, and (ii) except for an assignment or sublease to (a) a subsidiary, affiliate, parent or other entity which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with,
Tenant; (b) a successor entity related to Tenant by merger, consolidation, non-bankruptcy reorganization, or government action; (c) a purchaser of substantially all of Tenant's
assets in the Premises; or (d) a joint venture in which Tenant is a general partner, Tenant shall not have assigned the Lease or sublet all of the Premises under a sublease which is
in effect at any time during the period commencing with Tenant's delivery of its notice and ending on the date the ROFO Space is added to the Premises.

C. Promptly after Tenant's exercise of its right of first offer, Landlord shall execute and deliver to Tenant an amendment to the Lease to reflect changes in the Premises, Base
Rent, Tenant's Proportionate Share and any other appropriate terms changed by the addition of the ROFO Space. Within 20 days thereafter, Tenant shall execute and return the
amendment.

31 . TENANT'S CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION . Landlord recognizes that it is imperative that Tenant's Confidential Information, as hereafter defined, remain
confidential, subject to the terms hereof. For purposes hereof, "Confidential Information" means any non-public information observed or otherwise obtained by any employee of
Landlord while performing work in or inspecting the Premises, or any non-public information otherwise provided by Tenant to Landlord that Tenant designates as confidential
or proprietary; provided, however, that Confidential Information shall not include any information required to be provided by Tenant to Landlord pursuant to the terms of this
Lease. Confidential Information may be communicated by any method and in any form, including but not limited to, written, oral or visual.



A. Preservation of Confidentiality. Except as may be required by any applicable Governmental Requirements, and except in the context of any litigation between the parties or
any other action reasonably taken by Landlord to enforce its rights or Tenant's obligations under this Lease, Landlord agrees (a) not to disclose, or otherwise reveal, without
Tenant's prior written consent, any portion of any Confidential Information or any notes, extracts, or summaries of such Confidential Information obtained by Landlord, (b) not
to use Confidential Information for personal gain or to advance or support Landlord's business operations or those of third parties, and (c) upon discovery of any unauthorized
disclosure, to use reasonable efforts to prevent further disclosure or use thereof, and to notify Tenant immediately. Landlord's obligations under this Section 31 shall survive the
expiration or sooner termination of this Lease.

B . Equitable Remedies. Landlord acknowledges that Tenant's Confidential Information is of a special and unique character and nature, and that a breach of Landlord's
obligations under this Section 31 could cause irreparable damage and injury to Tenant. Accordingly, Landlord agrees that upon Landlord's breach of the provisions of this
Section 31, Tenant shall be entitled to injunctive and/or other appropriate equitable relief, without the need for posting any bond or comparable security. Landlord agrees not to
assert the claim or defense in any equitable action that Tenant has an adequate remedy at law or in damages, all without affecting Tenant's right to make a claim against
Landlord for any damages it may suffer as a result of Landlord's breach of its obligations under this Section 31.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease.

LANDLORD:

CarrAmerica Realty Operating Partnership, L.P.,

A Delaware limited partnership

By: CarrAmerica Realty Corporation,

a Maryland corporation, its general partner

 

By:

Print Name:

Print Title:

 

TENANT:

Microvision, Inc.,

a Delaware corporation

 

By: _______________________

Print Name: ______________________

Print Title: _______________________

STATE OF WASHINGTON )

)ss.

County of K I N G )

 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that is the person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that ___ signed this instrument, on oath stated that
___ was authorized to execute this instrument and acknowledged it as the of CarrAmerica Realty Corporation, a Maryland corporation, to be the free and voluntary act of such
party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument.

Dated: ______________________

____________________

____________________

(Print name)

Notary public in and for the State of Washington,
residing at _______________________

My commission expires: ___________________________

 

STATE OF )

) ss.

COUNTY OF )

On this _______ day of _________________, 200__, before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for the State of ___________, duly commissioned and sworn as such,
personally appeared __________________________________, to me known to be the _______________ of Microvision, Inc., the corporation that executed the within and
foregoing instrument, and acknowledged the said instrument to be the free and voluntary act and deed of said corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned, and on
oath stated that he/she was authorized to execute said instrument, and that the seal affixed is the corporate seal of said corporation.

WITNESS my hand and official seal the day and year in this certificate first above written.

___________________________



Printed Name: __________________________

NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of ________________,
residing at _______________________

My commission expires: ___________________________

APPENDIX A

PLAN OF THE PREMISES

 

(attach floor plan depicting the Premises)

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX A-2

EMERGENCY GENERATOR LOCATION

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPENDIX B

RULES AND REGULATIONS

 

1. Tenant shall not place anything, or allow anything to be placed near the glass of any window, door, partition or wall which may, in Landlord's judgment, appear unsightly
from outside of the Project.

2. The Project directory shall be available to Tenant solely to display names and their location in the Project, which display shall be as directed by Landlord.

3. The sidewalks, halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators and stairways shall not be obstructed by Tenant or used by Tenant for any purposes other than for ingress to and
egress from the Premises. Tenant shall lend its full cooperation to keep such areas free from all obstruction and in a clean and sightly condition and shall move all supplies,
furniture and equipment as soon as received directly to the Premises and move all such items and waste being taken from the Premises (other than waste customarily removed
by employees of the Building) directly to the shipping platform at or about the time arranged for removal therefrom. The halls, passages, exits, entrances, elevators, stairways,
balconies and roof are not for the use of the general public and Landlord shall, in all cases, retain the right to control and prevent access thereto by all persons whose presence in
the judgment of Landlord, reasonably exercised, shall be prejudicial to the safety, character, reputation and interests of the Project. Neither Tenant nor any employee or invitee
of Tenant shall go upon the roof of the Project.



4. The toilet rooms, urinals, wash bowls and other apparatuses shall not be used for any purposes other than that for which they were constructed, and no foreign substance of
any kind whatsoever shall be thrown therein, and to the extent caused by Tenant or its employees or invitees, the expense of any breakage or damage resulting from the
violation of this rule shall be borne by Tenant.

5. Tenant shall not cause any unnecessary janitorial labor or services by reason of Tenant's carelessness or indifference in the preservation of good order and cleanliness.

6. Except as provided in the Initial Improvements approved by Landlord, Tenant shall not install or operate any refrigerating (other than refrigerators designed for home use to
be used for employee meals, snacks, etc., or otherwise in connection with Tenant's permitted use of the Premises), heating or air conditioning apparatus, or carry on any
mechanical business without the prior written consent of Landlord; or use the Premises for housing, lodging or sleeping purposes.

7. Tenant shall not use any method of heating or air conditioning other than that supplied by Landlord or contemplated by the Initial Improvements.

8. Landlord shall have sole power to direct electricians as to where and how telephone and other wires are to be introduced. No boring or cutting for wires is to be allowed
without the consent of Landlord. The location of telephones, call boxes and other office equipment affixed to the Premises shall be subject to the approval of Landlord.

9. No additional locks shall be placed upon any doors, windows or transoms in or to the Premises except Tenant installed security systems as approved by Landlord. Tenant shall
not change existing locks or the mechanism thereof without providing keys or key cards for use by Landlord for approved access. Upon termination of the lease, Tenant shall
deliver to Landlord all keys and passes for offices, rooms, parking lot and toilet rooms which shall have been furnished Tenant.

In the event of the loss of keys so furnished, Tenant shall pay Landlord therefor. Tenant shall not make, or cause to be made, any such keys and shall order all such keys solely
from Landlord and shall pay Landlord for any keys in addition to the two sets of keys originally furnished by Landlord for each lock.

10. Subject to approved Tenant Improvement plans, Tenant shall not install linoleum, tile, carpet or other floor covering so that the same shall be affixed to the floor of the
Premises in any manner except as approved by Landlord.

11. In Buildings where Tenant is not the sole tenant, no furniture, packages, supplies, equipment or merchandise will be received in the Project or carried up or down in the
freight elevator, except between such hours and in such freight elevator as shall be designated by Landlord. Tenant shall not take or permit to be taken in or out of other
entrances of the Buildings, or take or permit on other elevators, any item normally taken in or out through the trucking concourse or service doors or in or on freight elevators.

12. Tenant shall cause all doors to the Premises to be closed and securely locked before leaving the Project at the end of the day, and shall turn off all unnecessary utilities, lights
and machines before leaving the Project at the end of the day, to the extent reasonably required to avoid undue waste of electricity.

13. Without the prior written consent of Landlord, Tenant shall not use the name of the Project or any picture of the Project in connection with, or in promoting or advertising
the business of, Tenant, except Tenant may use the address of the Project as the address of its business.

14. Tenant shall cooperate fully with Landlord to assure the most effective operation of the Premises' or the Project's heating and air conditioning, and shall refrain from
attempting to adjust any controls, other than controls for its Premises. Tenant shall keep corridor doors closed.

15. Tenant assumes full responsibility for protecting the Premises from theft, robbery, and pilferage, which may arise from a cause other than negligence, which includes
keeping doors locked and other means of entry to the Premises closed and secured.

16. Peddlers, solicitors and beggars shall be reported to the office of the Project or as Landlord otherwise requests.

17. Tenant shall not advertise the business, profession or activities of Tenant conducted in the Project in any manner which violates the letter or spirit of any code of ethics
adopted by any recognized association or organization pertaining to such business, profession or activities.

18. No vehicle (other than bicycles stored in locations approved in advance by Landlord) and no animals or pets shall be allowed in the Premises, halls, freight docks, or any
other parts of the Buildings except that impaired persons may be accompanied by assist animals. Tenant shall not make or permit any noise, vibration or odor to emanate from
the Premises, or do anything therein tending to create, or maintain, a nuisance, or do any act tending to injure the reputation of the Buildings.

19. Tenant acknowledges that Building security problems may occur which may require the employment of extreme security measures in the day-to-day operation of the
Project.

Accordingly:

(a) Landlord may, at any time, or from time to time, or for regularly scheduled time periods, as deemed advisable by Landlord and/or its agents, in their sole discretion, require
that persons entering or leaving the Project or the Property identify themselves to watchmen or other employees designated by Landlord, by registration, identification or
otherwise.

(b) Tenant agrees that it and its employees will cooperate fully with Project employees in the implementation of any and all security procedures.

(c) Such security measures shall be the sole responsibility of Landlord, and Tenant shall have no liability for any action taken by Landlord in connection therewith, it being
understood that Landlord is not required to provide any security procedures and shall have no liability for such security procedures or the lack thereof.

20. Tenant shall not do or permit the manufacture, sale, purchase or use of any fermented, intoxicating or alcoholic beverages without obtaining written consent of Landlord.

21. Tenant shall not disturb the quiet enjoyment of any other tenant.

22. Tenant shall not provide any janitorial services or cleaning without Landlord's written consent and then only subject to supervision of Landlord and at Tenant's sole
responsibility and by janitor or cleaning contractor or employees at all times satisfactory to Landlord.

23. Intentionally Omitted.

24. No equipment, mechanical ventilators, awnings, special shades or other forms of window covering shall be permitted either inside or outside the windows of the Premises
without the prior written consent of Landlord, and then only at the expense and risk of Tenant, and they shall be of such shape, color, material, quality, design and make as may
be approved by Landlord.

25. Tenant shall not during the term of this Lease canvas or solicit other tenants of the Buildings for any purpose.

26. Tenant shall not operate any electrical device from which emanates electrical waves which interfere with or impair radio or television broadcasting or reception from or in
the Buildings or elsewhere, without in each instance the prior written approval of Landlord. In the event of any such interference, Tenant shall take reasonable steps to eliminate
the interference. The use thereof, if permitted, shall be subject to reasonable control by Landlord to the end that others shall not be disturbed.

27. Tenant shall promptly remove all rubbish and waste from the Premises.

28. Tenant shall not exhibit, sell or offer for sale, Rent or exchange in the Premises or at the Project any article, thing or service, except those ordinarily embraced within the use
of the Premises specified in Section 6 of this Lease, without the prior written consent of Landlord.

29. Intentionally Omitted.



30. Tenant shall not overload any floors in the Premises or any public corridors or elevators in the Buildings.

31. Tenant shall not do any painting or mark, paint, cut or drill into, drive nails or screws into any portion of the Buildings outside of the Premises, or in any way deface any part
of the Premises or the Buildings, outside or inside, without the prior written consent of Landlord.

32. Whenever Landlord's consent, approval or satisfaction is required under these Rules, then unless otherwise stated, any such consent, approval or satisfaction must be
obtained in advance, such consent or approval may be granted or withheld in Landlord's sole discretion, and Landlord's satisfaction shall be determined in its sole judgment.

33. Tenant and its employees shall cooperate in all fire drills conducted by Landlord in the Buildings.

APPENDIX C

TENANT IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT

Tenant shall improve the Premises in accordance with plans and specifications approved by Landlord (the "Plans"), which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld (such
improvements are referred to herein as the "Initial Improvements"). Tenant shall perform the Initial Improvements at its own cost, subject to the Landlord's Contribution
(hereinafter defined) and the Additional Landlord's Contribution (hereinafter defined). Tenant shall cause the Plans to be prepared, at Landlord's cost, by a registered
professional architect, and mechanical and electrical engineer(s). Such engineer(s) shall be approved in advance by Landlord. Prior to the close of business on July 14, 2005,
Tenant shall deliver to Landlord for its approval, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, Design Development Drawings incorporating
Tenant's initial plans for improvements to the Premises. Landlord shall within seven (7) business days after receipt either provide comments to such Plans or approve the same.
Landlord shall be deemed to have approved such Plans if it does not timely provide comments on such Plans. If Landlord provides Tenant with comments to the initial draft of
the Plans, Tenant shall provide revised Plans to Landlord incorporating Landlord's comments within five (5) business days after receipt of Landlord's comments. Landlord shall
within five (5) business days after receipt then either provide comments to such revised Plans or approve such Plans. Landlord shall be deemed to have approved such revised
Plans if Landlord does not timely provide comments on such Plans. The process described above shall be repeated, if necessary, until the Plans have been finally approved by
Landlord. The Initial Improvements shall be performed by Unimark Construction, BN Builders, or any other contractor reasonably acceptable to Landlord (the "Contractor").
Tenant hereby agrees that the Plans for the Initial Improvements shall comply with all applicable Governmental Requirements. Landlord's approval of any of the Plans (or any
modifications or changes thereto) shall not impose upon Landlord or its agents or representatives any obligation with respect to the design of the Initial Improvements or the
compliance of such Initial Improvements or the Plans with applicable Governmental Requirements.

As a condition of the Lease, Landlord has reviewed and approved the attached Design Development Drawings June 7, 2005, as prepared by JPC Architects, subject to review
and approval of Mechanical and Electrical Drawings and engineering specifications.

All Initial Improvements shall be insured under a construction property insurance policy, insuring the replacement value from time to time of the Initial Improvements. All
Initial Improvements shall be constructed in a good and workmanlike manner, and only good grades of material shall be used. All Initial Improvements shall be performed in
such a fashion and by such means as necessary to maintain a professional work environment in the areas surrounding the space to be improved. Tenant shall only use labor that
will work in peace and harmony with other contractors and workers serving the Building in constructing the Initial Improvements. Tenant shall avoid actions which interfere
with or delay the activities of other contractors serving the Building and other tenants. All Initial Improvements shall be performed in compliance with Landlord's "Policies,
Rules and Regulations for Construction Projects". Tenant shall permit Landlord to observe and monitor all Initial Improvements.

2. CHANGE ORDERS. If Tenant shall require improvements ("Change Orders") to the Premises in addition to or substitution for the Initial Improvements, Tenant shall deliver
to Landlord for its approval, which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, plans and specifications for such Change Orders. Landlord shall within
three (3) business days after receipt of such initial draft of plans and specifications for the Change Orders (the "Change Order Plans") either provide comments to such Change
Order Plans or approve the same, and Landlord's failure to respond within three (3) business days after receipt of such initial draft shall be deemed approval. If Landlord
provides Tenant with comments to the initial draft of the Change Order Plans, Tenant shall provide revised Change Order Plans to Landlord incorporating Landlord's comments
within three (3) business days after receipt of Landlord's comments. Landlord shall then either provide comments to such revised Change Order Plans or approve such Change
Order Plans, and Landlord's failure to respond within three (3) business days after receipt of such revised Change Order Plans shall be deemed approval. The process described
in the previous sentence shall be repeated, if necessary, until the Change Order Plans have been finally approved by Landlord. Tenant shall pay for all preparations and revisions
of the Change Order Plans and the construction of all Change Orders.

3. LANDLORD'S CONTRIBUTION. Landlord shall contribute an amount not to exceed $26.50 per rentable square foot of Premises area, or $1,774,519.50 (the "Landlord's
Contribution") to be applied toward the following "Eligible Expenses": (i) costs incurred by Tenant for construction of the Initial Improvements and any Change Orders,(ii)
project management / telecom / relocation fees or expenses, (iii) data/telephone cabling and wireless systems, (iv) security equipment (access control, alarm and close circuit
TV) and cabling, (v) Tenant's permitted interior or exterior signage and (vi) auxiliary equipment such as supplemental HVAC. In addition, Landlord shall contribute $1.50 per
rentable square foot, or $100,444.50, toward the costs incurred by Tenant for design development and construction drawings for the Initial Improvements. In the event that the
total cost of Tenant's design development and construction drawing shall be less than $100,444.50, then the balance of such amount may be applied by Tenant towards any
Eligible Expense outlined in this Paragraph 3 above. Landlord has no obligation to pay for costs of the Initial Improvements or Change Orders in excess of Landlord's
Contribution, except as provided in Section 4, below.

Upon written request of Tenant (not more frequently than twice each month), Landlord shall pay all or any portion of the Landlord's Contribution to Tenant, as soon as
practicable but in any event within thirty (30) days after receipt of (a) invoices, (b) confirmation in writing (which may be by e-mail) from Tenant that the invoices are correct
and should be paid, (c) evidence reasonably satisfactory to Landlord that the work covered by such invoices has been completed in a satisfactory manner, (d) all necessary lien
waivers and sworn affidavits, (e) marked reproducible copies of the originally approved Plans showing all substantial changes made in constructing the Initial Improvements
during such period from the Plans as originally approved, (f) all close-out documentation set forth in Landlord's "Policies, Rules and Procedures for Construction Projects" in
effect at the execution of the Lease, and (g) such other documentation as Landlord may reasonably require under the circumstances. Tenant shall deliver reproducible as-built
Plans to Landlord at the conclusion of Initial Improvements.

4. ADDITIONAL LANDLORD'S CONTRIBUTION. In addition to the Landlord's Contribution provided for in Section 3, above, Tenant may, by giving Landlord written
notice no later than the Commencement Date, elect to have Landlord pay up to $8.00 per rentable square foot, or $535,704.00 (the "Additional Landlord's Contribution") toward
Tenant's costs incurred toward any Eligible Expense outlined above and/or towards the cost of exterior painting or installation of a covered walkway between the Buildings, as
described in Section 7 below.

The Additional Landlord's Contribution will be separated into two (2) tiers of expense categories, as outlined below:

 

Additional Landlord's Contribution - Tier 1

 



Up to $5.00 per RSF ($334,815), which may be used to fund any Eligible Expense outlined above and/or to supplement the covered walkway allowance set forth in Section 7,
below.

 

Additional Landlord's Contribution - Tier 2

 

Up to $3.00 per RSF ($200,889), which may only be used to fund additional HVAC capacity to support laboratory/manufacturing use.

In the event Tenant elects to receive all or a portion of the Additional Landlord's Contribution as set forth herein, the Additional Landlord's Contribution, together with interest
at nine percent (9%) per annum, shall be amortized over the primary Term of the Lease and paid by Tenant as additional Base Rent; provided, however, that Tenant may pay to
Landlord the entire principal balance of the Additional Landlord's Contribution at any time without penalty. In the event this Lease should be terminated for any reason prior to
its scheduled expiration date, the entire unpaid principal balance of the Additional Landlord's Contribution, together with any unpaid interest, shall immediately be due and
payable on such earlier termination date. The Additional Landlord's Contribution shall be paid by Landlord with, and in the manner applicable to Landlord's Contribution, as
provided in the second subparagraph of Section 3, above.

5. ACCESS BY TENANT PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF TERM. Landlord shall deliver possession of the Premises to Tenant no later than three (3) days following the
date of mutual execution hereof, and Tenant and its agents and construction contractor shall be permitted to enter the Premises from and after such date, at no cost to Tenant
(unless Tenant begins to operate its business from the Premises prior to the Commencement Date in which event the terms of Section 3B of the Lease shall apply), to perform
the Initial Improvements and prepare the Premises for Tenant's use and occupancy, including testing and installation of Tenant's equipment. Any such permission shall
constitute a license only, conditioned upon Tenant's:

(a) working in harmony with Landlord and Landlord's agents, contractors, workmen, mechanics and suppliers and with other tenants and occupants of the Building;

(b) obtaining in advance Landlord's approval of the contractors proposed to be used by Tenant and depositing with Landlord in advance of any work the Contractor's affidavit
for the proposed work and as necessary, from time to time, waivers of lien from the Contractor and all subcontractors and suppliers of material; and

(c) furnishing Landlord with the insurance required of Tenant and its contractors pursuant to Section 8 of the Lease, and causing all other parties entering the Project to perform
the Initial Improvements to provide Landlord with the same types, and amounts, of coverages required of Tenant and its contractors in Section 8 of the Lease.

Landlord shall not be liable in any way for any injury, loss or damage which may occur to any of Tenant's property or installations in the Premises prior to the Commencement
Date. Tenant shall protect, defend, indemnify and save harmless Landlord from all liabilities, costs, damages, fees and expenses arising out of the activities of Tenant or its
agents, the Contractor, other contractors, suppliers or workmen in the Premises or the Building. Any entry and occupation permitted under this Appendix C shall be governed by
Section 5 and all other terms of the Lease.

6. MOVING ALLOWANCE. Landlord agrees to reimburse the actual, out-of-pocket moving expenses incurred by Tenant, in an amount not to exceed $2.50 per rentable square
foot of Premises area, or $167,407.50 (the "Moving Allowance"). The Moving Allowance shall be eligible to cover the following costs: the relocation, wiring and installation of
telecommunications equipment and server equipment; the relocation and installation of office furniture; installation of data and telephone cabling; and the reasonable expenses
associated with change of address notification and new stationary (Tenant's "Moving Expenses"). All invoices and documentation reasonably evidencing such Moving Expenses
shall be submitted to Landlord no later than sixty (60) days following the Commencement Date, and Landlord shall reimburse such amounts from the Moving Allowance within
the later of thirty (30) days of receipt of such invoices and documentation or the Commencement Date.

In the event that the total of Tenant's Moving Expenses shall be less than $167,407.50, then the balance of the Moving Allowance may be applied by Tenant towards any
Eligible Expense outlined in Paragraph 3 above.

7. EXTERIOR IMPROVEMENTS. Subject to applicable City of Redmond and other Governmental Requirements and the parties' mutual agreement as to the location, and
design, and plans and specifications therefor, Landlord shall construct a covered walkway between the Buildings, and further shall repaint the covered entrance awnings to the
Buildings in a color mutually acceptable to Landlord and Tenant (the "Exterior Improvements"). Landlord shall complete construction of such Exterior Improvements no later
than thirty (30) days prior to the Commencement Date. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Landlord's total costs, including architectural and permitting fees, for the Exterior
Improvements shall not exceed Twenty-five Thousand Dollars ($25,000.00), and in the event the actual costs for such improvements exceed $25,000.00, the difference shall be
paid by Tenant to Landlord as Additional Rent no later than thirty (30) days following the later of the Lease Commencement Date or Tenant's receipt of Landlord's billing
therefor.

8. DELAY OF COMMENCEMENT DATE. The Commencement Date shall be delayed by one (1) day for each day of delay in substantial completion of the Initial
Improvements that is caused by a Landlord Delay. The term "Landlord Delay" shall mean any delay in substantial completion of the Initial Improvements to the extent caused
by Landlord's negligence, willful misconduct, or breach of its obligations under Section 9(c) of this Appendix C, or any other interruption in water or electrical service to the
Premises, provided that any such other interruption was not scheduled or caused by Tenant, its agents, employees or contractors during the course of construction.. Landlord
shall further use commercially reasonable efforts to avoid scheduling any non-emergency alterations or repairs to the Building or Project that would materially interfere with
Tenant's construction activities. No Landlord Delay shall be deemed to have occurred until and unless Tenant has provided written notice to Landlord specifying the action or
inaction that Tenant contends constitutes a Landlord Delay. If any such action or inaction properly identified is not cured prior to the expiration of the first business day
following Landlord's receipt of such notice, then notwithstanding the provisions of Section 13G and Section 21 of this Lease, a Landlord Delay shall be deemed to have
occurred commencing on the date such notice is received and continuing for the number of days substantial completion was in fact delayed as a result of such action or inaction
so identified.

In addition, in the event that fire or other casualty causes delay in completion of the Initial Improvements (including any delay associated with any restoration of the Building(s)
undertaken by Landlord pursuant to Section 9B of this Lease), and provided that such fire or other casualty was not caused by the negligence or willful misconduct of Tenant,
its agents, employees, or contractors, then the Commencement Date shall be delayed for the number of days that substantial completion of the Initial Improvements was in fact
delayed as a result of such fire or other casualty; provided further, however, that no such delay due to fire or other casualty shall be deemed to have commenced until the earlier
of the date that (a) Tenant has provided written notice to Landlord of the occurrence and nature thereof, or (b) Landlord shall otherwise have received actual notice of the
occurrence of such fire or other casualty. Nothing contained herein shall be deemed to affect either party's right to terminate this Lease following fire or casualty if and to the
extent permitted in Section 9A of this Lease.

9. MISCELLANEOUS.

(a) Terms used in this Appendix C shall have the meanings assigned to them in the Lease. The terms of this Appendix C are subject to the terms of the Lease.

(b) Landlord shall receive no fee for supervision, profit, overhead or general conditions in connection with the Initial Improvements.

(c) Neither Tenant nor the general contractor shall be charged for, and Landlord shall provide, parking in areas reasonably designated by Landlord (to the extent parking is
available) for Tenant's architects, designers, contractors and subcontractors (including those people working on the Tenant Improvements), electricity, water, toilet facilities,
HVAC, and elevators during the construction and move in periods. All such equipment, areas, elevators and utilities shall be made reasonably available to the Contractor and the
subcontractors during such time; provided, however, that Landlord shall not be liable to Tenant or its contractor(s) for, nor shall any Landlord Delay result from, any
interruption in water service or any power outages scheduled or caused by Tenant, its agents, employees or contractors during the course of construction.

(d) Notwithstanding anything contained in the Lease to the contrary, Landlord shall pay for all utilities to the Premises for the time period beginning on the date Landlord



delivers possession of the Premises to Tenant and ending on the earlier of (i) the Commencement Date, or (ii) the date Tenant begins to do business from the Premises.

APPENDIX D

MORTGAGES CURRENTLY AFFECTING THE PROJECT

[NONE]

APPENDIX E

COMMENCEMENT DATE CONFIRMATION

 

Landlord: CarrAmerica Realty Operating Partnership, L.P.,

a Delaware limited partnership

Tenant: Microvision, Inc., a Delaware corporation

This Commencement Date Confirmation is made by Landlord and Tenant pursuant to that certain Lease dated as of _______________________, 2005 (the "Lease") for certain
premises located within Buildings B and C of Redmond Hilltop, Redmond, Washington (the "Premises"). This Confirmation is made pursuant to Item 9 of the Schedule to the
Lease.

1 . Lease Commencement Date, Termination Date. Landlord and Tenant hereby agree that the Commencement Date of the Lease is _____________, 200___ and the
Termination Date of the Lease is _______________, _____.

2. Acceptance of Premises. Tenant has inspected the Premises and affirms that the Premises is acceptable in all respects in its current "as is" condition subject to the exceptions
set forth in Section 3A of the Lease.

3. Incorporation. This Confirmation is incorporated into the Lease, and forms an integral part thereof. This Confirmation shall be construed and interpreted in accordance with
the terms of the Lease for all purposes.

TENANT: LANDLORD:

MICROVISION, INC. CARRAMERICA REALTY OPERATING

a Delaware corporation PARTNERSHIP, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership

By:

Print Name: By: CARRAMERICA REALTY CORPORATION,

Title: a Maryland corporation, its general partner

 

By:

Print Name:

Print Title:

APPENDIX F

LEGAL DESCRIPTION



APPENDIX G

PREMISES CONDITION AND EQUIPMENT

 

Common Areas - Restrooms, exit stairs, lobby stairs, elevators and building lobby are in a finished condition and in accordance with codes applicable at the time of
construction.

Drinking fountains are located at the core of each building.

Electrical, telephone and janitorial closets exist in each building.

The main electrical service at Building B and Building C is rated at 1200 amps.

1.2 watts per square foot are available for lighting.

2.4 watts are available for miscellaneous equipment load.

The building mechanical system is designed with one Variable Air Volume (VAV) zone per 938 rentable square feet.

Building B and Building C each contain the following exhaust fans:
(1) - 2,400 cfm restroom exhaust
(1) - 300 cfm elevator machine room exhaust
(1) - 200 cfm electrical room exhaust.

Building B contains one ten (10) ton supplemental air conditioning unit available for Tenant's use.

Building C contains three five (5) ton supplemental air conditioning units and one seven (7) ton supplemental air conditioning unit available for Tenant's use.

The building mechanical system is designed to deliver one ton of air conditioning per 438 rentable square feet.

The building mechanical system was designed under the following parameters:
Outdoor Winter: 17F, dry-bulb
Outdoor Summer: 85F, dry-bulb
Outdoor Summer: 67F, wet-bulb
Indoor Temperature: 70F-heating, 75F- cooling

Fire and life safety systems exist in accordance with building codes applicable at the time of construction.

Perimeter window blinds are provided in accordance with original building specifications.

APPENDIX H

OPERATING EXPENSE BUDGET

(See Attached)
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ADDENDUM 1 - EXTENSION OPTION

ADDENDUM 1

EXTENSION OPTION

Subject to Subsection B below, Tenant may at its option extend the Term of this Lease for one period of five (5) years from the expiration of the Termination Date. Such period
is called a "Renewal Term." The Renewal Term shall be upon the same terms contained in this Lease, except for the payment of Base Rent during the Renewal Term; and any
reference in the Lease to the "Term" of the Lease shall be deemed to include the Renewal Term and apply thereto, unless it is expressly provided otherwise. Tenant shall have
no additional extension options.

A. The Base Rent during the Renewal Term shall be ninety-five percent (95%) the Market Rate (defined hereinafter) for such space for a term commencing on the first day of
the Renewal Term. "Market Rate" shall mean the then prevailing market rate for a comparable term commencing on the first day of the Renewal Term for comparable space in
the Buildings and comparable space in comparable buildings in the Redmond area marketplace. In determining "Market Rate", the parties shall take into consideration all
essential economic terms, including Base Rent, rent concessions and any allowances then being offered by landlords and accepted by tenants (including, but not limited to,
initial month rent abatements, allowances for tenant improvements, relocation, or data cabling) for comparable space in comparable buildings in the Redmond marketplace.

B. To exercise any option, Tenant must deliver a binding notice to Landlord not less than nine (9) months prior to the expiration of the initial Term of this Lease. Thereafter, the
Market Rate for the Renewal Term shall be calculated pursuant to Subsection C below and Landlord shall inform Tenant of the Market Rate. Such calculations shall be final
and shall not be recalculated at the actual commencement of such Renewal Term. If Tenant fails to timely give its notice of exercise, Tenant will be deemed to have waived its
option to extend.

C. Market Rate shall be determined as follows:

(i) If Tenant provides Landlord with its notice of exercise pursuant to Subsection B above, then at some point between ten (10) and eight (8) months prior to the
commencement of the Renewal Term, Landlord shall calculate and inform Tenant of the Market Rate. If Tenant rejects the Market Rate as calculated by
Landlord, Tenant shall inform Landlord of its rejection within ten (10) business days after Tenant's receipt of Landlord's calculation, and within such notice,
either (a) notify Landlord that it is terminating its exercise of the Extension Option, or (b) notify Landlord of its desire to commence negotiations to agree upon
the Market Rate. If Tenant fails to timely reject Landlord's calculation of the Market Rate it will be deemed to have accepted such calculation. If Landlord and
Tenant are unable to reach agreement within twenty-one (21) days after Landlord's receipt of Tenant's notice of rejection, then the Market Rate shall be
determined in accordance with (ii) below.

(ii) If Landlord and Tenant are unable to reach agreement on the Market Rate within said twenty-one (21) day period, then within seven (7) business days,
Landlord and Tenant shall each simultaneously submit to the other in a sealed envelope its good faith estimate of the Market Rate. If the higher of such estimates
is not more than one hundred five percent (105%) of the lower, then the Market Rate shall be the average of the two. Otherwise, the dispute shall be resolved by
arbitration in accordance with (iii) and (iv) below.

(iii) Within seven (7) business days after the exchange of estimates, the parties shall select as an arbitrator an independent MAI appraiser with at least five (5)
years of experience in appraising office space in the metropolitan area in which the Project is located (a "Qualified Appraiser"). If the parties cannot agree on a
Qualified Appraiser, then within a second period of seven (7) business days, each shall select a Qualified Appraiser and within ten (10) business days thereafter
the two appointed Qualified Appraisers shall select a third Qualified Appraiser and the third Qualified Appraiser shall be the sole arbitrator. If one party shall fail
to select a Qualified Appraiser within the second seven (7) business day period, then the Qualified Appraiser chosen by the other party shall be the sole arbitrator.

(iv) Within twenty-one (21) days after submission of the matter to the arbitrator, the arbitrator shall determine the Market Rate by choosing whichever of the
estimates submitted by Landlord and Tenant the arbitrator judges to be more accurate. The arbitrator shall notify Landlord and Tenant of its decision, which shall
be final and binding. If the arbitrator believes that expert advice would materially assist him, the arbitrator may retain one or more qualified persons to provide
expert advice. The fees of the arbitrator and the expenses of the arbitration proceeding, including the fees of any expert witnesses retained by the arbitrator, shall
be paid by the party whose estimate is not selected. Each party shall pay the fees of its respective counsel and the fees of any witness called by that party.

D. Tenant's option to extend this Lease is subject to the conditions that: (i) on the date that Tenant delivers its notice exercising an option to extend, Tenant is not in default
under this Lease after the expiration of any applicable notice and cure periods, and (ii) Tenant shall not have assigned the Lease, or sublet more than fifty percent (50%) any
portion of the Premises under a sublease which is effective at any time during the final twelve (12) months of the initial Term; provided that the assignment and sublease



limitations do not apply to the following assignees or sublessee: (a) a subsidiary, affiliate, parent or other entity which controls, is controlled by, or is under common control
with, Tenant; (b) a successor entity related to Tenant by merger, consolidation, non-bankruptcy reorganization, or government action; (c) a purchaser of substantially all of
Tenant's assets in the Premises; or (d) a joint venture in which Tenant is a general partner.



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard F. Rutkowski, Chief Executive Officer and Director of the Company, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Microvision, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d- 15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principals:

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: August 9, 2005 By: /s/ Richard F. Rutkowski 
Richard F. Rutkowski 
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
RULE 13A-14 OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Richard A. Raisig, Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Microvision, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules
13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d- 15(f) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that
material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principals:

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter
(the registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant's other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's
auditors and the audit committee of registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to
adversely affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: August 9, 2005 By: /s/ Richard A. Raisig
Richard A. Raisig
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, as chief executive
officer of Microvision, Inc. (the "Company"), does hereby certify that to the undersigned's knowledge:

1 )    the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2)    the information contained in the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: August 9, 2005 By: /s/ Richard F. Rutkowski 
Richard F. Rutkowski 
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 1350, CHAPTER 63 OF TITLE 18, UNITED STATES CODE,

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to Section 1350, Chapter 63 of Title 18, United States Code, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the undersigned, as chief financial
officer of Microvision, Inc. (the "Company"), does hereby certify that to the undersigned's knowledge:

1 )    the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934; and

2)    the information contained in the Company's Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005 fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the Company.

Date: August 9, 2005 By: /s/ Richard A. Raisig
Richard A. Raisig
Chief Financial Officer


